
Rogers Communications Inc.
2003 Annual Report





At Rogers, we constantly seek to improve people’s lives by offering them new 

and innovative ways of staying informed, in touch and entertained. As a premier

Canadian integrated communications company, we have a long history of pioneer-

ing new technologies, bringing new services to market in ways uniquely Canadian,

and adding choice, value and convenience to people’s lives.

Everything we do is inspired by our customers. This core belief is the foundation

upon which we have built a unique and vibrant mix of cable, wireless, Internet and

media offerings that touch the lives of Canadians every day, year-after-year.

Our products share not just a common heritage, but a common brand as well – the

Rogers brand – a brand which increasingly has come to stand for innovation and

value in Canadian communications, entertainment and information.

This is Rogers. This is your world, right now.



ROGERS 
SOLUTION

> Cheers to Rogers
Sportsnet in HDTV

> Relies on Rogers Wireless
network coverage

> Clicks onto The Shopping
Channel

> Loves VOD and PVR from
Rogers Cable

> Uses Hi-Speed Internet
access from Rogers Cable

> Uses a BlackBerry from
Rogers Wireless

> Subscribes to Rogers
Digital Cable TV

> Follows Canadian
Business magazine or
Moneysense.ca

GREG
NEEDS

> Leading selection of 
TV programming

> To call girlfriend 
from gym

> Live coverage of
regional sporting events

> Best rate on 
new mortgage

> Immediate access to
home and work e-mail

> To take control of 
TV viewing

> Birthday present for 
girlfriend

> Speed for Wi-Fi home
network
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choice

Today’s technically savvy customer wants
everything, and wants it right now. 

Rogers Cable is continually bringing new and
innovative products to market that dramati-
cally increase the variety of choice for our
customers. More than a thousand on-demand
titles and hundreds of channels of program-
ming are offering Rogers’ customers choice
like never before, while new technologies like
video on demand, high definition television
and personal video recorders are changing
the way customers watch TV.

Rogers Hi-Speed Internet is the broadband
connection of choice for today’s wired home
or business. A reliable broadband connection
for checking e-mail, surfing the Web, or con-
ducting e-commerce, Rogers Hi-Speed Internet
is a suite of products ranging from the entry-
level “Lite” product all the way up to the
super-fast Rogers Business Solutions product.

Rogers Wireless offers a broad array of wire-
less voice and data services and devices on
Canada’s largest integrated wireless voice
and data network, a network built on the
global standard for wireless communications
technology, GSM/GPRS. Whether you are a
business or a consumer, Rogers Wireless
offers an extensive choice of wireless services
and pricing packages to suit your needs.

Rogers Media is a powerful combination of
Canadian radio and television broadcasting
properties, a televised home shopping channel
and a strong collection of print publications.
Whether it is access to breaking news on
680News radio, a hockey game on Sportsnet
television, insightful editorial in Maclean’s mag-
azine, or home accessories from The Shopping
Channel, Rogers Media provides choice. 

Customers want choice, flexibility and value
and Rogers provides it, right now.
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value

Rogers recognizes that value is something
that it must provide to customers every day –
value in features, value in packaging and
value for money. Rogers meets this challenge
by understanding our customers’ needs and
providing innovative solutions to meet the
demands their lives throw at them at home
and at work.

For customers who subscribe to multiple 
services, Rogers offers additional value and
convenience with its product bundles and cus-
tomer loyalty plans. For added convenience,
we provide our customers with a combined
bill and single point of contact for all of their
Rogers products.

Rogers’ VIP program offers qualified customers
great pricing on their cable TV, as well as
additional value on their Hi-Speed Internet,

wireless services and Rogers Video rentals.
Rogers Incredible Bundles offer a variety of
“bundled” packages combining basic and dig-
ital cable, premium programming, Hi-Speed
Internet and wireless services for a single price. 

Businesses, in particular, value the innovation
and choice that Rogers provides. Rogers
Wireless offers a leading-edge array of wire-
less voice and data devices and services on
its global standard GSM/GPRS network. Rogers
Cable offers businesses broadband Internet
access and private networking – at the office
and for remote access to the office. And Rogers
Media can fulfill the advertising requirements
of any business with integrated media expo-
sure across television, radio and print.

No matter what the busy world is demanding
today, Rogers is there, right now.



ROGERS 
SOLUTION

> Uses Rogers Hi-Speed
Internet for streaming
video chat

> Relies on Enhanced
Wireless Desktop from
Rogers Wireless 

> Drops into neighbour-
hood Rogers Video store

> Snaps photo with Rogers
Wireless camera phone

> Loves her Rogers
Incredible Bundle

> Tunes to 680News radio

> Subscribes to Chatelaine
magazine

> Roams globally with
Rogers Wireless GSM
phone

JACKIE
NEEDS

> Up-to-the-minute traffic
and weather info

> To capture child’s 
first steps

> Best value for cable,
Internet and wireless 
services

> Access to desktop and 
e-mail while out of office

> New meal planning ideas

> Video and snacks for
babysitter and kids

> To keep in touch with 
distant relative

> Wireless coverage while
on European trip
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ROGERS 
SOLUTION

> Surf the Web with Rogers
Hi-Speed Internet 

> Log on to Rogers.com
day or night

> Select from hundreds
with Rogers Cable’s VOD

> Visit one of Rogers
Wireless’ thousands of
locations

> Watch OMNI and
Fairchild TV on 
Rogers Cable

> Choose Family Plan and
Calling Circles from
Rogers Wireless

> Tune to JackFM radio

> Become Rogers “one-bill”
subscriber

THE LEE FAMILY
NEEDS

> Choice of movies 
without leaving home

> To research school 
project, due tomorrow!

> To add voicemail to
Rogers Wireless account

> Wireless phones for 
the whole family

> To reduce number of
monthly bills

> Cool tunes for
impromptu house party

> To check out latest 
wireless devices

> News and entertainment 
in Cantonese 
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convenience

Time is a valuable commodity with today’s
families and Rogers is bringing customer-
focused solutions that offer convenience and
ease to their hectic lives.

Rogers Hi-Speed Internet keeps the family in
touch with reliable, “always on” broadband
access, multiple e-mail addresses and tools to
harness the power of the Web. If it is for 
e-mailing or instant messaging, for research-
ing a school assignment or for just keeping
up on news and sports scores, our broadband
connection will provide a superb on-line 
experience.

Family Plan from Rogers Wireless provides an
innovative way for up to five members of a
family to share one price plan and one bucket
of minutes all on one bill. Customers who
choose Family Plan from Rogers Wireless also
benefit from Calling Circles – a unique option
that provides local calling between Family
Plan members.

With 24-hour-a-day, 7-day-a-week shop-
ping and self-directed customer service at
rogers.com our customers can perform a host
of functions at their convenience. Rogers
Cable offers flexible 7-day-a-week installa-
tions and home servicing guaranteed within a
three-hour window. Rogers Wireless has an
extensive dealer and retail location network
through which customers can purchase hand-
sets and subscribe to service plans. And, in
addition to offering a huge library of movie
titles, many of our neighbourhood Rogers
Video stores also provide subscribers with the
ability to pick up or return cable TV and
Internet equipment, and purchase wireless
services, handsets and accessories. 

Families need convenience, and Rogers is pro-
viding it to them, right now.
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Rogers Cable

Rogers Cable’s advanced fibre-to-the-feeder network in Ontario,
New Brunswick and Newfoundland is more than 96% two-way
addressable, 99% digital-ready and 92% 750/860 megahertz
(“MHz”) – ideally suited for delivering advanced television and
Internet services requiring interactivity and significant bandwidth.

Rogers Cable offers one of Canada’s largest selections of pro-
gramming, packaged with content ranging from local television
stations to Canadian and U.S. networks to a plethora of premium
and specialty channels. With up to 400 channels available,
Rogers Cable offers the ultimate in choice and flexibility. Rogers
Cable also offers up to 19 channels of high definition television
(“HDTV”) programming – the television signal of the future. 

Rogers on Demand is a suite of services that includes video on
demand (“VOD”), personal video recorders (“PVR”) and time-
shifted programming. PVRs allow customers to pause and
rewind live television, record up to 50 hours of programming

and watch their favourite shows while recording another pro-
gram. Using Rogers’ PVR, combined with VOD – now available
to over 1.8 million homes with a library of more than 1,000
program titles – and time-shifted channels, provides the ulti-
mate television viewing experience and is available only to
Rogers Cable subscribers. 

Rogers Cable offers two different broadband Internet services
for customers: Rogers Hi-Speed, the choice of most residential
customers and Rogers Hi-Speed Lite, a lower-priced, less 
feature-rich option for customers. In addition, Rogers Business
Solutions offers a range of high-speed service options to the
business market. 

In mid-2005, Rogers Cable intends to introduce a high-quality
digital local telephone service with many of today’s popular
calling features plus many new services that will be enabled by
the advanced Internet Protocol (“IP”) platform.
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Rogers Wireless

Rogers Wireless is Canada’s wireless network leader – deliver-
ing advanced wireless voice, data and messaging solutions to
more than 4 million wireless customers across the country.

The Rogers Wireless GSM/GPRS network is the largest inte-
grated wireless voice and data network in Canada and operates
on the world standard for wireless communications technology.
With industry-leading coverage that reaches more than 93% of
the Canadian population plus global coverage through roam-
ing agreements with carriers around the world, Rogers Wireless
enables customers to do more of what matters most to them,
wherever they are.

Rogers Wireless combines superior voice communications and
an industry-leading suite of wireless data services and high-
speed access to the wireless Internet with flexible pricing
packages that address the needs of all segments of the wireless
market. The Company is successfully embracing the unique
needs of the youth and young adult market in Canada with 
targeted offers that provide these important trend-setting, new

technology adopting customers with the ability to express them-
selves and stay in touch in their way. At the same time, Rogers
Wireless shares strongly in the entrepreneurial spirit of Canada’s
businesses, and provides innovative wireless communications
solutions to increase both their productivity and profitability.

Rogers Wireless is committed to delivering on its successful,
profitable growth strategy through the optimization of its
customer mix by targeting postpaid business and youth cus-
tomers through the most appropriate channels. At the same
time, Rogers Wireless maintains a consistent focus on its
existing customers to enhance customer loyalty and satisfac-
tion and reduce customer churn.

Rogers Wireless provides service to its new and existing cus-
tomers at more than 7,000 points of distribution that include
Rogers Plus, Rogers Video and RadioShack stores across Canada.
Customers can also purchase wireless devices and features or
make changes to their account, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week,
at www.rogers.com.
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Rogers started in radio more than 40 years ago as a pioneer FM

station in Toronto – CHFI FM98. Today, Rogers Media is a rapidly
growing collection of broadcasting and publishing businesses
with unique market positions and category-leading brands in
all of its segments. 

Media’s Broadcasting group includes 43 radio stations, with a
variety of formats, primarily clustered in and around major cen-
tres including Ottawa, Toronto, Calgary and Vancouver; the
OMNI.1 and OMNI.2 multicultural television stations in Ontario;
its Rogers Sportsnet regional sports network, which provides
regional sports programming across Canada; and The Shopping
Channel, Canada’s only nationally televised shopping service.
Broadcasting also holds minority interests in several Canadian
specialty television services, including Viewers Choice Canada,
Outdoor Life Network, TechTV Canada, The Biography Channel
Canada and MSNBC Canada.

Media’s Publishing group produces approximately 70 consumer
magazines and trade and professional publications and directo-
ries. The portfolio of magazines includes many Canadian
household names such as Maclean’s, Chatelaine, Flare, Today’s
Parent, L’actualité, Canadian Business, MoneySense and Profit,
as well as industry journals and directories for numerous
Canadian trades and professions. 

In addition to its more traditional broadcast and print media plat-
forms, the Media group also delivers content over the Internet
relating to many of its broadcasting and publishing properties.

Rogers Media leverages its strong brand names to increase
advertising and subscription revenues, assisted by the cross-
promotion of its properties across its various media formats and
in association with the Rogers brand.

Rogers Media



2003 Annual ReportRogers Communications Inc. 11

In addition to the many community organizations and initia-
tives it supports, Rogers is proud to support the following
charitable causes:

Rogers Pumpkin Patrol. For nearly 20 years, employee volun-
teers in red Rogers Cable vans have patrolled the communities
served by Rogers, working with local police and other emer-
gency services to keep kids safe on Halloween. 

Rogers Television. Our 31 local stations in Ontario, New Brunswick
and Newfoundland produce over 19,000 hours of program-
ming annually. Working closely with community groups and
thousands of volunteers it helps train, Rogers Television offers a
fresh, diverse and locally focused alternative to commercial
television.

Jays Care Foundation. The Toronto Blue Jays, in addition to 
providing fans with exciting Major League Baseball, make their
presence felt in the community through the Jays Care
Foundation, which supports programs, groups and activities
that enhance the quality of life for children and youth. 

Jolly Trolley. Rogers Video’s Jolly Trolley Movie Caboose Program
entertains sick children in 29 hospitals and other healthcare
facilities with carts integrating a television, VCR, DVD and
library of current video releases and children’s classics. 

The Rogers Group of Funds. Rogers is a major supporter of
Canada’s independent television and film producers, through
the Rogers Telefund, the Rogers Documentary Fund and the
Rogers Cable Network Fund.

SupportLink. Rogers Wireless, together with Ericsson Canada
and the Ontario government, provides SupportLink, a program
to improve the safety of individuals at risk from domestic vio-
lence, abuse and stalking.

For more information about these and other community initia-
tives we support, visit www.rogers.com. For more complete
details of Rogers’ community support, corporate donations and
sponsorship activities, please visit the About Rogers section of
the rogers.com Web site. 

Connecting to the community



Rogers Cable
Cable Television, High-Speed Internet, Video Stores

Rogers Cable passes 3.2 million homes in Ontario, New Brunswick and
Newfoundland, with 71% basic penetration of its homes passed. Rogers
Cable pioneered high-speed Internet access with the first commercial
launch in North America in 1995 and now approximately 25% of homes
passed are Internet customers. With 99% of its network digital-ready,
Rogers Cable offers an extensive array of high definition television, a
suite of Rogers on Demand services (including video on demand (“VOD”),
personal video recorders and time-shifting channels) as well as a large
line-up of digital, ethnic and sports programming. Approximately one
quarter of Rogers basic subscribers are also digital customers and
approximately 35% are Rogers Hi-Speed residential and business cus-
tomers. Rogers Cable also owns and operates 279 Rogers Video stores.

Rogers Wireless
Advanced Wireless Voice and Data Solutions

Rogers Wireless operates Canada’s largest integrated wireless voice
and data network in Canada, providing customers with the benefits of
GSM/GPRS – the world standard for wireless communications technol-
ogy. Rogers Wireless offers advanced voice and wireless data solutions
to more than 4.0 million customers across the country. Rogers Wireless
Communications Inc. (TSX: RCM.B; NYSE: RCN) is approximately 56%
owned by Rogers Communications Inc., and approximately one-third
owned by AT&T Wireless Services, Inc.

Rogers Media
Radio and Television Broadcasting, Consumer and Trade Magazine
Publishing, Televised Home Shopping

Rogers Media holds Rogers’ radio and television broadcasting opera-
tions, its consumer and trade publishing operations and its televised
home shopping service. The Broadcasting group comprises 43 radio
stations across Canada (32 FM and 11 AM radio stations), two multicul-
tural television stations in Ontario (OMNI.1 and OMNI.2), an 80%
interest in a sports specialty service licenced to provide regional sports
programming across Canada (Rogers Sportsnet), and Canada’s only
nationally televised shopping service (The Shopping Channel). The
Publishing group produces approximately 70 consumer magazines and
trade and professional publications and directories. In addition to its
more traditional broadcast and print media platforms, the Media group
also delivers content over the Internet relating to many of its individual
broadcasting and publishing properties.

Rogers Communications Inc.
The Rogers Group of Companies is Canada’s premier provider 
of communications, entertainment and information services.
TSX: RCI.A RCI.B    NYSE: RG

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 C h a n g e

Revenue $ 1,769,200 $ 1,596,400 10.8%
Operating profit1 663,500 563,500 17.8%
PP&E expenditures 509,600 650,900 (21.7)%

Homes passed 3,215,400 3,103,200 3.6%
Basic cable subscribers 2,269,400 2,270,400 –
Basic penetration of homes passed 71% 73%

High-speed Internet subscribers 790,500 639,400 23.6%
High-speed Internet penetration of homes passed 25% 21%

Digital terminals in service 613,600 456,200 34.5%
Digital households/subscribers 535,300 401,500 33.3%
Digital household penetration of 

basic cable subscribers 24% 18%
VOD-enabled homes passed 1,800,000 530,000 –

VIP customer loyalty program members 661,600 593,000 11.6%

Rogers Video stores 279 272 

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2  C h a n g e

Revenue $ 855,000 $ 810,800 5.5%
Operating profit1 106,700 87,600 21.8%

Radio stations 43 43 
Weekly Canadian radio audience reach 6,700,000 6,500,000
Ethnocultural percentage programming –

OMNI.1 and OMNI.2 >60% 60%
Number of languages represented –

OMNI.1 and OMNI.2 33 33
Number of cultures represented – 

OMNI.1 and OMNI.2 40 40
Rogers Sportsnet subscribers 7,200,000 7,100,000 
The Shopping Channel subscribers 7,200,000 6,800,000 
The Shopping Channel items shipped 2,937,000 2,978,000
Monthly consumer magazine reach 12,100,000 12,100,000

1 As defined in “Key Performance Indicators – Operating Profit and Operating Profit Margin”
section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 C h a n g e

Revenue $ 2,282,200 $ 1,965,900 16.1%
Operating profit1 727,600 527,700 37.9%
PP&E expenditures 411,900 564,600 (27.0)%

Wireless voice and data – postpaid subscribers 3,029,600 2,629,300 15.2%
Wireless voice and data – prepaid subscribers 759,800 778,700 (2.4)%

Total wireless voice and data subscribers 3,789,400 3,408,000 11.2%
One-way messaging subscribers 241,300 302,300 (20.2)%

Total wireless subscribers 4,030,700 3,710,300 8.6%

Average monthly postpaid usage (minutes) 361 324 11.4%

Percentage of population network coverage (digital) 93% 93%

Average monthly postpaid voice subscriber churn 1.88% 1.98%

Average monthly prepaid voice subscriber churn 2.82% 2.23%

FY2003 Revenue – $1,769M

1. Core cable 66%
2. High-speed Internet 18%
3. Video stores 16%

FY2003 Revenue – $2,282M

1. Postpaid voice and data 84%
2. Equipment sales 11%
3. Prepaid voice and data 4%
4. One-way messaging 1%

FY2003 Revenue – $855M

1. Publishing 34%
2. The Shopping Channel 25%
3. Radio 20%
4. Television 21%

FY2003 Revenue

$4,847M

1. Cable 36%
2. Wireless 47%
3. Media 17%

FY2003 Operating Profit1

$1,449M

1. Cable 44%
2. Wireless 49%
3. Media 7%

4
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In 2003, Rogers Communications delivered double-digit
growth in both revenue and operating profit through 
continued subscriber growth, greater customer retention
levels, operating efficiency gains and relatively stable pricing
environments in each of our businesses. But at the core of
our success has been the continual deployment of exciting
new products and services that bring innovation and value
to Canadians, delivered over our advanced cable and wireless
networks and through our category-leading media assets. 

The results of this year speak for themselves and we deliv-
ered on our commitments – with a 12% increase in revenue
to $4.8 billion, a 27% increase in operating profit to
$1.4 billion and a 24% or $298.3 million reduction in cap-
ital expenditures. With solid momentum and financial
flexibility, crisp product portfolios and sharpened focus
around marketing and sales, all three of our businesses are
well-positioned strategically in their respective markets.
The businesses have excellent operating management and
are well-financed for continued success into the future.

Taking control of the television experience
At Rogers Cable, in addition to delivering 11% revenue
growth, 18% operating profit growth and a 22% reduction
in capital expenditures, 2003 was the year when we
reversed the notion that consumers have to adjust their
schedules to suit their television. With Rogers Digital
Cable, consumers now decide the type of programming
they want to watch, when it’s convenient for them. Today,
the power of what and when to watch on television is offi-
cially in their hands, thanks to a unique and powerful
combination of services that customers simply can’t get
from satellite. 

For starters, Rogers Cable subscribers can choose instantly
from over 1,000 titles, available when they want, with
Rogers video on demand (“VOD”). Everything is available,
from comedies and action movies to documentaries and

children’s programs, with new programming added every
week. Customers just order the title they want and it’s
theirs to watch as often as they like for 24 hours – with
pause, rewind and fast-forward control on their remote
control – it’s like having a DVD player and video store built
into their television. And Rogers’ on-demand program-
ming will soon evolve to include new services such as
subscription VOD services, which provide subscribers
instant access to an entire month or season of their
favourite premium programming.

With our PVR, or personal video recorder, customers basi-
cally become their own television network executive. They
can digitally record what they want to see, up to 50 hours
of programming, and play it back whenever they want.
They can record two programs at the same time or view
two shows simultaneously with picture-in-picture. They
can even pause and rewind not only the programs they’ve
recorded but live television too, continuing uninterrupted
whenever they’re ready.

Finally, with up to 20 channels of “time-shifted” television
signals from distant markets available locally, Rogers Cable
customers can watch their favourite television shows at
times that are convenient for them because they can view
them from their choice of multiple time zones across
North America. 

Customers simply can’t get all these services from satellite.
Rogers Digital Cable is the clear choice when it comes to
giving consumers power over their television. And with
Rogers Digital Cable growing by more than 33% in 2003
to over 535,000 subscribers, it’s clear that consumers are
getting the message. Unparalleled selection is available
with hundreds of digital channels, including the ultimate
television viewing experience – high definition television
(“HDTV”) – with one of the most robust offerings of HDTV

in North America.

Edward “Ted” S. Rogers, O.C.

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ROGERS COMMUNICATIONS INC.

Making

To our shareholders
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Letter to Shareholders

Rogers Cable also continued to deliver strong growth in its
high-speed Internet subscribers and revenues. In 2003
high-speed Internet subscribers climbed by almost 24% to
790,500, while high-speed Internet revenues grew by
almost 33% to $322.3 million. And robust growth is
expected to continue, assisted in 2004 as we further
increase the speed of our cable Internet service to 5Mbit
per second, and we launch a whole new Internet experi-
ence in alliance with Yahoo! – one of the world’s most
recognized global Internet brands. This partnership will
deliver high-speed Internet access bundled with a combi-
nation of customized Yahoo! products and services
optimized for broadband.

The digital and interactive services we are able to offer
today are made possible by the strength of our highly-
clustered network, which is one of the most advanced in
North America, with 99% of our homes passed digital-
ready and more than 92% of our plant upgraded to
750/860 MHz. 

During 2004, Rogers Cable will begin to deploy the infra-
structure necessary to launch services representing another
exciting leg of its growth – investing in the future by
putting in place an advanced broadband IP multimedia
network to provide digital telephone and other new 
services. The deployment plan, completion of which is
conditional upon supportive regulatory conditions, targets
a local telephony product launch in mid-2005 with initial
availability to approximately 1.8 million households.
Rogers’ local telephone service will allow consumers that
switch their home or business telephone service to Rogers’
Digital Phone service to keep their existing phone numbers
and receive popular calling features such as directory 
assistance, enhanced 911 emergency service, call waiting,
caller ID and voicemail, as well as many new services that
are expected in the future such as videoconferencing and
integration of wired and wireless telephone services.

Wireless powers ahead as data gains traction
At Rogers Wireless, 2003 was a year when essentially all
of the key business metrics were moving in the right 
direction – wireless voice and data subscribers up 11% to
3.8 million, network revenue up 16%, postpaid average
revenue per user (“ARPU”) up 2.9%, postpaid churn down
to 1.88%, operating profit up 38%, operating margins up
570 basis points and capital expenditures down 27%. 

These results at Rogers Wireless reflect the significant
growth in the Canadian market; they reflect the consistent
discipline and focus around the core objective of profitable
growth; and they reflect the tremendous take-up of wire-
less data services. 

The 16% growth in network revenue was driven by the
combination of a clear focus on the acquisition of higher-
value postpaid subscribers and the retention of and sale
of additional services to our existing customers. Our suc-
cess is clear and is evident in the double-digit increase in
subscribers, in the higher levels of postpaid net additions,
in the lower levels of churn and in the rising ARPU.

While the growing number of subscriber additions by the
industry is a clear sign that there is still ample growth
ahead in wireless voice services in Canada, wireless data
services have proven to be an exciting and profitable 
addition to the already significant market opportunity.

The promise of wireless data has long been held out by
the industry as a significant source of future growth.
Increasingly, the future is becoming the present as the take-
up of wireless data services becomes a reality. In Canada,
Rogers Wireless is the best-positioned provider to capture
the wireless data opportunity by leveraging the power of
its coast-to-coast, global standard GSM/GPRS network and
universe of GSM/GPRS devices. 



Letter to Shareholders
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In 2003, revenues from wireless data totalled $68 million,
an increase of 125% from 2002. Yet wireless data revenues
only amounted to just over 3% of total network revenues
for Rogers Wireless, while in many Asian and European
countries, data revenues are approaching 20% of network
revenues. The opportunity is significant, it is growing, and
Rogers Wireless has been preparing to ensure a com-
manding capability in the space, including plans to overlay
Enhanced Data Rates for Global Evolution (“EDGE”) tech-
nology in 2004 to further increase data speeds.

Today, Rogers Wireless has arguably the most robust and
comprehensive portfolio of wireless data services in
Canada – a portfolio that addresses the simplest of youth
text messaging needs to the most complex of wireless
enterprise data solution requirements. In most areas of
wireless data, Rogers has led, and continues to lead, the
market in Canada. And today – whether it’s text messag-
ing, downloadable games and ring tones, mobile access to
e-mail and the Internet, camera phones and picture mes-
saging, personalized information portals, or highly scalable
point-of-sale and fleet management applications – Rogers
Wireless can deliver the solution. Our world standard
GSM/GPRS network ensures customers have access to the
latest and broadest selection of devices – whether they are
cool phones; BlackBerry and other PDAs that integrate
voice and data; laptop air cards; or specialized wireless
field service units – in Canada.

In 2004, Wireless is transitioning its branding to Rogers
Wireless from Rogers AT&T Wireless. Our research shows
that the Rogers brand stands solidly in Canada as a symbol
of innovation, choice and value in communications, 
entertainment and information. This change, which will be
complete before the second half of the year, will bring
greater clarity to the Rogers brand in Canada and more
simplicity to our sales and marketing initiatives. 

Category-leading media brands
At Rogers Media, 2003 was the year which saw the begin-
nings of a general recovery in the advertising markets,
a year in which we saw significant growth in our sports
and multicultural television channels, and a year in
which we took the opportunity to reposition certain of
our radio stations and to realign the cost structure in our
Publishing division. 

While we are pleased with the 6% revenue growth and
22% operating profit growth at Rogers Media, we believe
that the initiatives undertaken in 2003 set the stage for
continued strong growth in 2004 and beyond, across its
portfolio of category-leading radio, television and publish-
ing media brands.

This was an especially strong year for Rogers Sportsnet,
our regional sports television network, which we acquired
control of in late 2001, and which just celebrated the 
fifth anniversary of its launch. Not only did Sportsnet
deliver strong top-line growth as advertising continued to
strengthen, but it also crossed break-even to generate
positive and meaningful operating profit for the year.
And to assure our continued participation in the profitable
and growing sports programming business, Rogers Media
also announced a partnership with CTV, each with a 50%
interest, in Dome Productions, which will, amongst other
things, accelerate the production and distribution of HDTV

content in Canada.

This was also the first full year of operations of OMNI.2,
our second multicultural television station in Ontario,
which we launched in the Fall of 2002. While advertising
in the Toronto market remained somewhat soft during the
year, OMNI.2 still delivered a strong first year performance
and added meaningful growth to the Rogers Media group. 
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Another significant 2003 initiative was the reformatting of
several of Rogers Media’s radio stations in key Canadian
markets. While the reformatting process at each station
created an initial drop in revenues until new ratings were
attained and also drove incremental sales and marketing
costs during the re-launches, the end results were well
worth it. In market after market – including Vancouver,
Calgary and Toronto – Rogers Media’s “JackFM, Playing
What We Want” format has created some of the top rated
and grossing radio stations in Canada. 

Both the Publishing division and The Shopping Channel
also contributed to the operating profit growth in 2003.
And both expanded their operating margins year-over-
year, with The Shopping Channel leveraging its newly
constructed state-of-the-art national distribution centre,
and the Publishing division benefiting from solid cost con-
trol and productivity gains.

More powerful together
Not only does each of our businesses have solid opportu-
nities in its own right, but additional opportunities also
exist through further leveraging the strengths of our com-
plementary set of strategic assets across the Rogers Group
of Companies. 

Increasingly, we are bundling and cross promoting prod-
ucts to boost Rogers’ share of wallet and customer loyalty.
We’re leveraging our extensive distribution channels and
retail presence from across the group to attract customers.
We’re utilizing common call centres and issuing common
bills to service customers who take more than one of our
products. Our Rogers Video stores serve as a window on
the community, not only generating cash flow from the
rental and sale of DVDs, VHS cassettes, games and confec-
tionery, but also functioning as sales and service outlets for
our Cable and Wireless products and services. And we’re
co-ordinating and integrating the utilization of assets and
sharing of infrastructure across the businesses to improve
efficiency, reduce cost and increase asset utilization. 

But, perhaps most importantly, we’re sharing the benefit
of a common brand – the Rogers brand – a brand which
increasingly has come to stand for innovation and value in
Canadian communications, entertainment and information.

The best is yet to come
The objective we articulated for 2003 was to deliver 
double-digit revenue and operating profit growth with a
corresponding reduction in capital expenditures, driven by
both operational enhancements and a disciplined approach
to our markets. Once again, the Rogers team across the
Company delivered against the financial commitments
while also providing unparalleled innovation, convenience
and value for our customers. We entered into the new
year with solid momentum and with each of our busi-
nesses increasingly well-positioned for continued success,
and so far have been pleased with our results in 2004.

We invite you to sample and subscribe to our services.
We’d welcome the opportunity to provide you with our
innovative service offerings that will entertain you, inform
you and help you communicate – all in ways uniquely
Canadian and all in ways that add choice, value and con-
venience to your life.

Thank you for your continued support, and please rest
assured that we take our responsibilities to our sharehold-
ers, customers, employees and communities very seriously.
The best is yet to come!

Edward “Ted” S. Rogers, O.C.

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ROGERS COMMUNICATIONS INC.

Letter to Shareholders
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2003 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the purposes of this discussion, the operations of Rogers Communications Inc. (“Rogers”, “RCI” or the “Company”) and
the financial results relating to its operations have been reported in three segments:

• “Cable” or “Rogers Cable”, which refers to Rogers’ wholly owned subsidiary Rogers Cable Inc.; 
• “Wireless”, “Rogers Wireless” or “RWCI”, which refers to Rogers’ 55.8% owned subsidiary Rogers Wireless

Communications Inc.; and
• “Media” or “Rogers Media”, which refers to Rogers’ wholly owned subsidiary Rogers Media Inc. 

RCI, Cable, Wireless and Media are collectively referred to as the “Rogers Group of Companies”.
This discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

thereto for 2003.
The financial information presented herein has been prepared on the basis of Canadian generally accepted account-

ing principles (“GAAP”). Please refer to Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a summary of differences
between Canadian and United States (“U.S.”) GAAP.

Throughout this discussion, percentage changes are calculated using numbers rounded to the decimal to which
they appear. All dollar amounts are in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis includes forward-looking statements concerning the future performance of
the Company’s business, its operations and its financial performance and condition. When used in this Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, the words “believe”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “estimate”, “expect”, “project” and similar expres-
sions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking statements contain such
words. These forward-looking statements are based on current expectations. The Company cautions that all forward-
looking information is inherently uncertain and actual results may differ materially from the assumptions, estimates or
expectations reflected or contained in the forward-looking information, and that actual future performance will be
affected by a number of factors, including economic conditions, technological change, regulatory change and competitive
factors, many of which are beyond its control. Therefore, future events and results may vary significantly from what the
Company currently foresees. The Company is under no obligation (and expressly disclaims any such obligation) to update
or alter the forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. For a more
detailed discussion of factors that may affect actual results, see discussions under “Cable Risks and Uncertainties”,
“Media Risks and Uncertainties” and “Wireless Risks and Uncertainties” below.

OVERVIEW

Company 
Rogers is a diversified national Canadian communications company, which is engaged in cable television, broadband
Internet (“Internet”) access and video retailing through its wholly owned subsidiary Rogers Cable, in wireless voice, data
and messaging services through its 55.8% owned subsidiary Rogers Wireless, and in radio and television broadcasting,
televised shopping, consumer magazines and trade and professional publications through its wholly owned subsidiary
Rogers Media. In addition, Rogers holds other investment interests, including an interest in the Toronto Blue Jays
Baseball Club (the “Blue Jays”) and in a pay-per-view movie service as well as in several digital specialty channels, all of
which are accounted for by the equity method.

COMPANY STRATEGY 

The Company’s business strategy is to maximize revenue, operating profit and return on invested capital by maintaining
and enhancing its position as one of Canada’s leading national diversified communications and media companies. Rogers’
objective is to be the preferred provider of communications, entertainment and information services to Canadians. The
Company seeks to take advantage of opportunities to leverage its networks, infrastructure, sales channels and marketing
opportunities across the Rogers Group of Companies to create value for its customers and shareholders.

RCI helps to identify and facilitate opportunities for its cable, wireless and media businesses to create bundled
product and service offerings, as well as for the cross-marketing and cross-promotion of products and services to increase
sales and enhance subscriber loyalty. The Company also works to identify and implement areas of opportunity for its
businesses that will enhance operating efficiencies and capital utilization by sharing infrastructure, corporate services
and sales distribution channels. During 2003, the sharing of call centre and information technology infrastructure enabled
the Company to form an integrated Cable and Wireless customer service group serving the needs of customers subscrib-
ing to both Cable and Wireless services. The Company also offers a combined bill for customers who subscribe to multiple
services from across the Rogers Group of Companies.



2003 Annual ReportRogers Communications Inc. 19

Cable, together with RCI, announced an initiative on February 12, 2004, to deploy an advanced broadband Internet
Protocol (IP) multimedia network to support primary line voice-over-cable telephony and other new services across cable
service areas. This investment plan, the completion of which assumes a regulatory environment supportive of competi-
tion from voice-over-cable telephony, includes the capital costs required to deploy a scalable primary line quality digital
voice-over-cable telephony service utilizing PacketCable and DOCSIS standards, including the costs associated with
switching, transport, IP network redundancy, multi-hour network and customer premises powering, network status mon-
itoring, customer premises equipment, information technologies and systems integration. Cable also expects the PP&E
expenditures required to deploy this platform will be approximately $200 million over two years. Cable also expects the
majority of the PP&E expenditures will occur in the first 12 to 18 months of the deployment, with 2004 expenditures
expected to be between $140 million and $170 million. Once this initial platform is deployed, the additional variable PP&E
expenditures associated with adding each voice-over-cable telephony service subscriber, which includes uninterruptible
backup powering at the home, is expected to be in the range of $300 to $340 per subscriber.

Cable is currently refining its business strategies with respect to voice-over-cable telephony services. As a result,
the PP&E expenditures, costs and timeline described above are initial estimates. In addition, Cable, together with RCI, is
considering offering the telephony services described above through another wholly owned RCI subsidiary, Rogers
Telecom Inc. (Rogers Telecom). RCI is currently in the process of recruiting an industry executive to lead Rogers Telecom.
Although Cable’s business strategies and organizational structure with respect to telephony services continue to be
refined, it plans to incur most or all of the PP&E expenditures described above to upgrade its network to an advanced
broadband multimedia platform capable of supporting voice-over-cable telephony and other new services. In the event
that Rogers Telecom offers voice-over-cable telephony services, Cable would enter into an agreement with Rogers
Telecom which could relate to, among other things, access to and the use of Cable’s network.

For a more detailed discussion of the business strategies of the Cable, Wireless and Media divisions, please refer to
the respective sections below.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

The Company measures the success of its strategies using a number of key performance indicators, which are outlined
below. With the exception of revenue, the following key performance indicators are not measurements in accordance
with Canadian or U.S. GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to net income or any other measure of perfor-
mance under Canadian or U.S. GAAP.

Revenue 
Revenue is a measurement defined by Canadian and U.S. GAAP. Revenue is net of items such as trade or volume discounts
and certain excise and sales taxes. It is the base on which operating profit cash flow, a key performance indicator defined
below, is determined. It measures the potential to deliver operating profit cash flow as well as indicating the level of
growth in a competitive marketplace.

The Company derives its revenues principally from a combination of: 

• recurring monthly subscription-based fees for services from Cable and Wireless; 
• incremental usage-based fees from subscribers of Cable and Wireless; 
• revenues from retail operations at Cable and Wireless; and 
• revenues at its Media division, which derives its revenues from a combination of magazine subscriptions and advertis-

ing revenues in television, radio and publishing, subscriptions for television stations received from cable and satellite
providers and retail sales derived from its televised home shopping network.

Subscriber Counts 
The Company determines the number of subscribers to its services and publications based on active subscribers. A wire-
less subscriber is, generally, represented by each identifiable telephone number. A cable subscriber is represented by a
dwelling unit. In the case of multiple units in one dwelling, such as an apartment building, each tenant with cable service,
whether invoiced individually or having services included in his or her rent, is counted as one subscriber. Commercial or
institutional units, such as hospitals or hotels, are each considered to be one subscriber. When subscribers are deactivated,
either voluntarily or involuntarily for non-payment, these customers are considered to be deactivations in the month that
service is discontinued.

Subscriber Churn 
Subscriber churn is calculated on a monthly basis. For any particular month, subscriber churn for Cable or Wireless repre-
sents the number of subscribers deactivating in the month divided by the aggregate number of subscribers at the
beginning of the month. When used or reported for a period greater than one month, subscriber churn represents the
monthly average of the subscriber churn for the period.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Average Revenue per Subscriber
The average revenue per subscriber, or ARPU, is calculated on a monthly basis. For any particular month, ARPU represents
monthly revenue divided by the average number of subscribers during the month. In the case of Wireless, ARPU repre-
sents monthly network revenue divided by the average number of subscribers during the month. Network revenue is
used, instead of total revenue, because network revenue excludes the impact of the sale of equipment, which is generally
sold at a price that approximates cost to facilitate competitive pricing at the retail level. ARPU, when used in connection
with a particular type of subscriber, represents monthly revenue generated from these subscribers divided by the aver-
age number of these subscribers during the month. When used or reported for a period greater than one month, ARPU
represents the average of the ARPU calculations for each period. The Company believes ARPU helps indicate whether the
Company has been successful in attracting and retaining higher value subscribers.

Operating Expenses 
Operating expenses are segregated into three categories for assessing business performance:

• cost of sales, which is comprised of wireless equipment costs, Rogers Video (a subsidiary of Cable “Video”) store mer-
chandise and depreciation of Video store rental assets, as well as cost of goods sold by the Shopping Channel, a
subsidiary of Media;

• sales and marketing expenses, which represent the costs to acquire new subscribers in the Company’s subscription-
based businesses and include items such as commissions paid to third parties for new activations remuneration and
benefits to sales and marketing employees, as well as direct overheads related to these activities, and the costs of
operating the video chain store locations and retail operations of Wireless stores; and

• operating, general and administrative expenses, which include all other expenses incurred to operate the business on a
day-to-day basis and service existing subscriber relationships, including retention costs, inter-carrier payments to
roaming partners and long-distance carriers, programming related costs, Internet and e-mail services and printing and
production costs.

In the wireless and cable industries in Canada, the demand for services continues to grow and the variable costs, such as
commissions paid for subscriber activations, as well as the fixed costs of acquiring new subscribers are significant.
Fluctuations in the number of activations of new subscribers from period-to-period and the seasonal nature of both Cable
and Wireless’ subscriber additions result in fluctuations in sales and marketing expenses. In the Company’s Media busi-
ness, sales and marketing expenses may be significant to promote publishing, radio and television properties, which in
turn attract advertisers, viewers, listeners and readers.

Cost of Acquisit ion per Subscriber 
Cost of acquisition per subscriber (“COA”), which is also often referred to in the industry as “subscriber acquisition cost”
or “cost per gross addition”, is calculated by dividing total sales and marketing expense, for the period by the total num-
ber of gross subscriber activations. COA is a measure followed closely by the Company and used most commonly in a
Wireless context and is generally in direct proportion to the level of ARPU and term of a subscriber’s contract.

Operating Expense per Subscriber 
Operating expense per subscriber, expressed as a monthly average, is calculated by dividing total operating, general and
administrative expenses by the average number of subscribers during the period. Operating expense per subscriber is
tracked as a measure of the Company’s ability to leverage its operating cost structure across a growing subscriber base,
and the Company believes that it is an important measure of its ability to attain the benefits of scale as the Company
increases its business.

Operating Profit  and Operating Profit  Margin 
The Company defines operating profit as net income before depreciation and amortization, interest expense, income
taxes and non-operating items which include losses from investments accounted for by the equity method, foreign
exchange gains, loss on repayment of long-term debt, gain (loss) on the sale of other investments, writedown of invest-
ments, the gain on the disposition of AT&T Canada Deposit Receipts, other income and non-controlling interest as well as
the 2002 workforce reduction costs and the Wireless net recovery related to the change in estimates of sales tax and CRTC
contribution liabilities. Operating profit is a standard measure used in the communications industry to assist in under-
standing and comparing operating results and is often referred to by the Company’s competitors as earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) or operating income before depreciation and amortization (OIBDA).
The Company believes this is an important measure as it allows the Company to assess its ongoing businesses without the
impact of depreciation or amortization expenses as well as non-operating factors. It is intended to indicate the Company’s
ability to incur or service debt, invest in property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”) and allow the Company to compare itself
to competitors who have different capital or organizational structures. This measure is not a defined term under GAAP.

The Company calculates operating profit margin by dividing operating profit by revenue for operating segments
in the case of the Cable and Media businesses. For Wireless, operating profit margin is calculated by dividing operating
profit by network revenue. Network revenue is used in the calculation, instead of total revenue, because network rev-
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enue excludes the impact of the sale of equipment, which is generally sold at a price that approximates cost to facilitate
competitive pricing at the retail level. This measure is not a defined term under GAAP.

PP&E Expenditures 
PP&E expenditures include those costs associated with acquiring and placing into service the Company’s PP&E. Because
the communications business requires extensive and continual investment in equipment, including investment in new
technologies and expansion of geographical reach and capacity, PP&E expenditures are significant and management
focuses continually on the planning, funding and management of these expenditures. The Company focuses more on
managing PP&E expenditures than it does on managing depreciation and amortization expense because PP&E expendi-
tures directly impact the Company’s cash flow, whereas depreciation and amortization are non-cash accounting measures
required under GAAP.

SEASONALITY 

The Company’s operating results are subject to seasonal fluctuations that materially impact quarter-to-quarter operating
results. Accordingly, one quarter’s operating results are not necessarily indicative of what a subsequent quarter’s operating
results will be. Each of Cable, Wireless and Media has unique seasonal aspects to their businesses. For a detailed discussion
of the seasonal trends effecting the Cable, Wireless and Media businesses, refer to the respective sections below.

OVERVIEW OF GOVERNMENT REGULATION 

Substantially all of the business activities of the Company and its subsidiaries, except for the non-broadcasting operations
of Rogers Media, are regulated by the Canadian Federal Department of Industry, Science and Technology, on behalf of the
Minister of Industry (Canada) (collectively “Industry Canada”) and the Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications
Commission (“CRTC”) under the Telecommunications Act (Canada) (the “Telecommunications Act”) and the Broadcasting
Act (Canada) (the “Broadcasting Act”), and, accordingly, the Company’s results of operations are affected by changes in
regulations and decisions by these regulators.

Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commission 
Canadian broadcasting operations, including Rogers’ cable television systems, radio and television stations, and specialty
services are licenced and regulated by the CRTC pursuant to the Broadcasting Act. Under the Broadcasting Act (Canada),
the CRTC is responsible for regulating and supervising all aspects of the Canadian broadcasting system with a view to
implementing certain broadcasting policy objectives enunciated in the Broadcasting Act (Canada). The CRTC is also
responsible under the Telecommunications Act for the regulation of telecommunications carriers, including Wireless’ cel-
lular and messaging operations and the Internet services provided by Cable.

Copyright Board of Canada 
The Copyright Board is a regulatory body established pursuant to the Copyright Act (Canada) (the “Copyright Act”) to
oversee the collective administration of copyright royalties in Canada and to establish the royalties payable for the use of
certain copyrighted works. Historically, the Copyright Board (Canada) has been responsible for the review, consideration
and approval of copyright tariff royalties payable to copyright collectives by Canadian broadcasting undertakings, includ-
ing cable, radio, television and specialty services.

Industry Canada 
The technical aspects of the operation of radio and television stations, frequency-related operations of the cable televi-
sion networks and the awarding of spectrum for cellular, messaging and other radio-telecommunications systems in
Canada are subject to the licensing requirements and oversight of Industry Canada. Industry Canada may set technical
standards for telecommunications under the Radiocommunication Act (Canada) and the Telecommunications Act (Canada).

Restrict ions on Non-Canadian Ownership and Control  
Non-Canadians are permitted to own and control directly or indirectly up to 331/3% of the voting shares and 331/3% of the
votes of a holding company which has a subsidiary operating company licenced under the Broadcasting Act (Canada). In
addition, up to 20% of the voting shares and 20% of the votes of the operating licencee company may be owned and con-
trolled directly or indirectly by non-Canadians. The chief executive officer and 80% of the members of the board of
directors of the operating licencee must be resident Canadians. There are no restrictions on the number of non-voting
shares that may be held by non-Canadians at either the holding company or licencee company level. The CRTC retains the
discretion to determine as a question of fact whether a given licencee is controlled by non-Canadians.

On May 10, 2001, the Minister of Canadian Heritage asked a Parliamentary Committee to conduct a review of the
Broadcasting Act (Canada) and examine, among other things, the current restrictions on foreign ownership of companies
licenced under the Broadcasting Act (Canada).
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Pursuant to the Telecommunications Act (Canada) and associated regulations, up to 20% of the voting shares of a
Canadian carrier, such as the Company’s operating subsidiary Rogers Wireless Inc. (“RWI”) and up to 331/3% of the vot-
ing shares of a parent company, such as Wireless or RCI, may be held by non-Canadians, provided that neither the
Canadian carrier nor its parent is otherwise controlled by non-Canadians. Similar restrictions are contained in the
Radiocommunication Act (Canada).

In April 2003, the House of Commons Industry Committee released a report calling for the removal of foreign own-
ership restrictions for telecommunications carriers and broadcasting distribution undertakings. In June 2003, the House of
Commons Heritage Committee released a report which opposed the Industry Committee’s recommendation. The Cabinet
responded to the Industry Committee report in September 2003 and to the Heritage Committee report in November 2003.
Officials from the Industry and Heritage departments will convene to reconcile the two positions. It is expected that
sometime during 2004, the Government of Canada intends to be in a position to examine possible solutions. Rogers sup-
ports the recommendation as it pertains to the removal of foreign ownership restrictions for both telecommunications
carriers and broadcasting distribution undertakings but cannot predict what, if any, changes might result.

For recent regulatory developments related specifically to the Cable, Wireless and Media divisions, please refer to
the respective sections below.

COMPETITION 

The Company currently faces effective competition in each of its primary businesses from entities providing substantially
similar services, some of which entities have significantly greater resources than the Company. Each of the Company’s
businesses also faces competition from entities utilizing alternative communications technologies and may face competi-
tion from other technologies being developed or to be developed in the future. For a detailed discussion of the specific
competition facing each of the Cable, Wireless and Media businesses, please refer to the respective sections below.

INTERCOMPANY AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

From time to time, the Company enters into agreements with its subsidiaries and other related parties that the Company
believes are mutually advantageous to the Company and its affiliates. The Company’s subsidiaries also enter into agree-
ments with related parties. For example, Wireless has entered into a reciprocal roaming arrangement and other agreements
related to the marketing and delivery of wireless services with AWE, one of Wireless’ significant shareholders.

Each of Wireless, Cable and Media has entered into a management services agreement under which the Company
provides a range of services, including strategic planning, financial and information technology services. The Company
also maintains contractual relationships with Wireless and Cable involving other cost sharing and services agreements.
In late 2001, the Company began providing customer service call centre services to Wireless and Cable thereby expanding
the contractual relationships between the companies. In January 2003, the Company began managing the collection of
accounts receivable of Wireless and Cable.

The Company monitors its intercompany and related party agreements to ensure that the agreements remain ben-
eficial to the Company. The Company is continually evaluating the expansion of existing arrangements and entry into
new contracts.

See “Intercompany and Related Party Transactions” below. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Operating Results and Financial Position is made with reference to the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto which have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the period. These estimates are
based on management’s historical experience and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could dif-
fer from these estimates.

The Company has identified the accounting policies outlined below as critical to an understanding of its business
operations and an understanding of its results of operations. The impact and any associated risks related to these policies
on its business operations are discussed throughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

The Audit Committee reviews the Company’s accounting policies. The Audit Committee also reviews all quarterly
and annual filings and recommends adoption of the Company’s annual financial statements to the Company’s board of
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directors. For a detailed discussion on the application of these and other accounting policies, see Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition 
The Company considers revenue to be earned as services are performed, provided that ultimate collection is reasonably
assured at the time of performance. Revenue is categorized into the following types, the majority of which are recurring
in nature on a monthly basis from ongoing relationships, contractual or otherwise, with the Company’s subscribers:

• monthly subscriber fees in connection with wireless services and equipment, cable and Internet services and equipment,
equipment rental and media subscriptions are recorded as revenue on a pro rata basis over the month;

• revenue from wireless airtime, wireless long-distance and optional services, pay-per-view and video on demand
movies, installation and activation charges, video rentals and other transactional sales of products, including retail, are
recorded as revenue as the services or products are provided;

• advertising revenue is recorded in the month the advertising airs on the Company’s radio or television stations and the
month in which advertising is featured in the Company’s media publications; and

• monthly subscription revenue received by television stations for subscriptions from video service providers are
recorded in the month in which they are earned.

Unearned revenue includes subscriber deposits and amounts received from subscribers related to services and subscrip-
tions to be provided in future periods.

Allowance for Doubtful  Accounts 
A significant portion of the Company’s revenue is earned from selling on credit to individual consumer and business cus-
tomers. The allowance for doubtful accounts, as disclosed on the consolidated balance sheet of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, is calculated by taking into account factors such as the Company’s historical collection and write-off experi-
ence, the number of days the customer is past due, and the status of a customer’s account with respect to whether or not
the customer is continuing to receive service in the case of Cable and Wireless. As a result, fluctuations in the aging of
subscriber accounts will directly impact the reported amount of bad debt expense. For example, events or circumstances
that result in a deterioration in the aging of subscriber accounts will in turn increase the reported amount of bad debt
expense. Conversely, as circumstances improve and customer accounts are adjusted and brought current, the reported
amount of bad debt expense will decline.

Subscriber Acquisit ion Costs 
Cable and Wireless operate within highly-competitive industries and generally incur significant costs to attract new sub-
scribers. All sales and marketing expenditures, such as commissions and equipment subsidies (generally relating to
wireless equipment and digital set top converters) related to subscriber acquisitions are expensed at the time of activation
of the subscriber. A large percentage of the subscriber acquisition costs, such as equipment subsidies and commissions,
are variable in nature and directly related to the acquisition of a subscriber. In addition, subscriber acquisition costs on a
per subscriber acquired basis fluctuate on the success of promotional activity and seasonality of Cable and Wireless busi-
nesses. Accordingly if the Company experiences significant growth in subscriber activations during a period, expenses for
that period will increase.

Costs of Subscriber Retention 
In keeping with the practice of expensing costs related to the acquisition of new cable and wireless subscribers at the
time of activation, costs related to subscriber retention and contract renewals are expensed in the period incurred.
Increased retention activities in a given period will in turn increase expense in the same period.

Capital ization of Direct Labour and Overhead 
As outlined in the recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) with respect to PP&E,
capitalization of costs includes the consideration expended to acquire, construct, develop or better an item of PP&E and
includes all costs directly attributable to those activities. The cost of an item of PP&E includes direct construction or soft-
ware development costs, such as materials and labour, and overhead costs directly attributable to the construction or
software development activity. The cost to enhance the service potential of an item of PP&E is considered a betterment.
Service potential may be enhanced where there is an increase in the previously assessed service capacity, associated
operation costs are lowered, the life or useful life is extended, or the quality of service is improved. Costs incurred in the
maintenance of the service potential of an item of PP&E are expensed as incurred.

The Company capitalizes direct labour and direct overhead incurred to construct new assets and better existing
assets. Although interest costs are permitted to be capitalized during construction, the Company’s policy is not to capital-
ize such interest costs.

Amounts of direct labour and direct overhead that are capitalized fluctuate from year-to-year depending on the level
of customer growth, new services and network expansion. In addition, the level of capitalization of direct labour and over-
head fluctuates depending on the proportion of internal labour versus external contractors used in construction projects.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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The percentage of direct labour capitalized is determined, in many cases, by the nature of activities in a specific
department. For example, all labour and direct overhead of the construction departments are capitalized as a result of
the nature of the activity performed by those departments. In some cases, the amount of capitalization depends on the
level of maintenance versus capital activity that a department performs. In these cases, an analysis of work activity is
applied to determine this percentage allocation.

Depreciation Polic ies and Useful  Lives 
The Company depreciates the cost of PP&E over the estimated useful service lives of the items. These estimates of useful
lives involve considerable judgment. In determining these estimates, the Company takes into account industry trends and
company-specific factors, including changing technologies and expectations for the in-service period of these assets.
On an annual basis, the Company reassesses its existing estimates of useful lives to ensure they match the anticipated life
of the technology from a revenue producing perspective. If technological change happens more quickly or in a different
way than the Company has anticipated, the Company might have to shorten the estimated life of certain PP&E, which
could result in higher depreciation expense in future periods or an impairment charge to write down the value of PP&E.

Asset Impairment 
The valuations of all long-lived assets, along with spectrum licences and goodwill, are subject to annual reviews for
impairment.

A two-step process determines impairment of long-lived assets. The first step determines when impairment must
be measured and compares the carrying value to the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from their
use and eventual disposition. If the carrying value exceeds this sum, a second step is performed, which measures the
amount of the impairment as the difference between the carrying value of the long-lived asset and its fair value calculated
using quoted market price or discounted cash flows. An impaired asset is written down to its estimated fair market value
based on the information available at that time. Considerable management judgment is necessary to estimate discounted
cash flows. Assumptions used in estimating these cash flows are consistent with those used in internal forecasting and
are compared for reasonability to forecasts prepared by external analysts. Significant changes in assumptions with
respect to the competitive environment could result in impairment of these assets.

In testing for impairment of goodwill, the Company conducts a two-step process. In the first step, the fair value of
the Company is compared with its carrying value. If the fair value exceeds the carrying value, no impairment is consid-
ered to have occurred. The second step is performed when the carrying value of the Company exceeds its fair value, in
which case the implied fair value of the Company’s goodwill is determined in the same manner as it would be determined
in a business combination.

Spectrum licences are tested for impairment by comparing their fair values with their carrying values. When fair
values exceed carrying values, no impairment is considered to have occurred.

The Company cannot predict whether an event that triggers an impairment will occur, when it will occur or how it
will affect the asset values reported.

The AT&T brand licence, acquired in 1996 at an aggregate cost of $37.8 million, which provided Rogers Wireless
with, among other things, the right to use the AT&T brand name, was determined to have no remaining useful life at
December 31, 2003 as Rogers Wireless had announced its intention to terminate this brand licence agreement in early
2004. The remaining book value of $20.0 million was therefore fully amortized. See “Related Party and Intercompany
Transactions” for a further discussion of this item and Note 5(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pension Assumptions 
On an annual basis, the Company reviews assumptions related to defined benefit pension plans. As a result, the assump-
tions related to the weighted average discount rate for accrued benefit obligations remains at 6.25%, the weighted
average expected long-term rate of return on plan assets remains at 7.25% and the assumption with respect to the
weighted average rate of compensation increase has been reduced from 5.0% to 4.0%. The Company anticipates that cash
contributions to the defined benefit pension plans will be approximately $9.7 million in 2004.

Contingencies 
The Company is subject to various claims and contingencies related to lawsuits, taxes and commitments under contrac-
tual and other commercial obligations. The Company recognizes liabilities for contingencies and commitments when a
loss is probable and capable of being reasonably estimated. Significant changes in assumptions as to the likelihood and
estimates of the amount of a loss could result in recognition of an additional liability.

Related Party Transactions 
All material related party transactions are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the RCI Board of Directors. Refer to
“Intercompany and Related Party Transactions” below and to Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for addi-
tional information on related party transactions.
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NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

In 2003, the Company adopted the following new accounting standards as a result of changes to Canadian GAAP:

Asset Retirement Obligations 
Under new Canadian and U.S. accounting standards, the Company is now required to record the fair value of the liability
for an asset retirement obligation in the year in which it is incurred and when a reasonable estimate can be made. Fair
value is defined as the amount at which that liability could be settled in a current transaction between willing parties.

The Company reviewed its existing contracts and commitments to determine where such obligations exist and
determined many of its contracts do not have any such asset retirement obligations. The Company then assessed what
the estimated fair value of those obligations that exist would be, and the probability that these would be incurred.
The Company determined that the fair value of the obligations was not significant. The Company will monitor contracts
on an ongoing basis and when the Company determines that an obligation exists, the Company will record such obliga-
tions at their fair values.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
On January 1, 2003, the Company prospectively adopted the new accounting pronouncement, “Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets,” which establishes standards for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of the impairment of long-lived
assets. This standard harmonizes Canadian requirements with U.S. GAAP impairment provisions. Previously, the impair-
ment of long-lived assets was measured as the difference between the carrying value of the asset and the future
undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. Under the new pronouncement, described above,
this measurement is used to determine if impairment has occurred, and the amount of impairment is measured as the dif-
ference between the carrying value of the asset and its fair value, calculated using quoted market price or discounted
cash flows. The adoption of the new pronouncement had no impact on the Company as no impairment of long-lived
assets had occurred at December 31, 2003.

RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS 

GAAP Hierarchy 
Until now, there has been no clear definition of the order of authority for source of GAAP. As a result, the Canadian stan-
dard setters have issued new standards that explain more clearly what constitutes Canadian GAAP and the sources of
Canadian GAAP, which are described in Note 2((t)(v)) to the Consolidated Financial Statements. This standard is effective for
the Company’s 2004 fiscal year, and results in “industry practice” no longer being a justification for a particular accounting
policy. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of the new standards on its Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Hedging Relationships 
The Company uses derivative instruments, including cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements, interest rate
exchange agreements, and foreign exchange forward contracts, to manage risks from fluctuations in exchange rates and
interest rates. As more fully described in Note 2((t)(ii)) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2004,
Canadian GAAP will require the Company to maintain detailed documentation regarding these derivative financial instru-
ments in order to continue accounting for these as hedges. Further, the Company will be required to assess whether each
hedging relationship is effective, both at its inception and on an ongoing basis.

If the Company determines that these derivative instruments will not continue to be accounted for as hedges, the
Company will adjust the recorded amount of the liabilities related to these instruments from their carrying value of
$334.8 million at December 31, 2003, to their fair value of $388.2 million. The corresponding adjustment of $53.4 million
will be recorded as a deferred loss and amortized into income over the remaining life of the underlying debt. Going for-
ward, this liability will be marked to market on a quarterly basis and any changes in value will be recorded in the
statement of income. This is consistent with the Company’s treatment of these instruments under U.S. GAAP.

Revenue Recognition 
New accounting pronouncements were introduced under Canadian and U.S. GAAP regarding the timing of revenue recog-
nition, which are described in Notes 2((t)(i)) and 22(r) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, respectively. Effective
January 1, 2004, to the extent the Company has bundled sales arrangements with multiple products or services, these
arrangements will be divided into separate units of accounting if specific criteria are met. The separate units will then be
recognized as revenue only when specific revenue criteria have been met, based on each unit’s relative fair value. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new pronouncements on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

Stock-Based Compensation 
Effective January 1, 2004, Canadian GAAP will require companies to estimate the fair value of stock-based compensation
to employees and to expense the fair value over the estimated useful life of the options. As a result, in 2004, the
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Company will begin expensing the fair value of options granted to employees since January 1, 2002 and will record an
adjustment to opening retained earnings in the amount of $7.0 million, representing the expense for the 2002 and 2003
fiscal years. The estimated impact of adopting this accounting standard in 2004, if the Company were to continue using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model, would be an expense of approximately $13.0 million.

Accounting Guidel ine 15,  Consolidation of Variable Interest Entit ies 
As detailed in Note 2((t)(iv)) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2005 the Company will be
required to consolidate “variable interest entities”. Under U.S. GAAP, the Company will be required to consolidate the
entities on January 1, 2004 (Note 22(r) to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

The Company has determined that Blue Jays Holdco Inc., the ultimate parent of the Blue Jays, is a variable interest
entity that the Company will consolidate. The consolidation will have no impact on the Company’s consolidated net
income as 100% of the losses of Blue Jays Holdco are presently recorded.

However, in the future, the gross revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities of the Blue Jays will be recorded in the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

No other variable interest entities in addition to the Blue Jays have been identified that will require consolidation.

ALTERNATIVE ACCEPTABLE ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

GAAP permits, in certain circumstances, alternative acceptable accounting policies. The three primary areas where the
Company has a choice are: (1) the accounting for subscriber acquisition costs at Wireless and Cable, (2) the accounting for
stock-based compensation cost and (3) capitalized interest.

Accounting for Subscriber Acquisit ion Costs 
Subscriber acquisition costs are fully expensed in the period incurred in both Cable and Wireless. An alternative method
is to defer and amortize these costs over the expected life of the contract or relationship with the customer. The
Company has elected to expense these costs in the period they are incurred because the Company believes these costs
reflect period costs that may or may not be recoverable depending on the length of the relationship with the customer,
whether it be contractual or otherwise. In addition, subscriber acquisition costs on a per subscriber basis fluctuate based
on the success of promotional activity and seasonality of the business, and as such, the Company believes these costs
should be reflected as costs at the point in time that they are incurred.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation 
The Company does not record any expense for employee stock options; however, it provides note disclosure of the 
pro forma expense using the fair value-based method of accounting calculated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing
model. While the Company acknowledges that stock options represent a form of compensation, it has elected to disclose
the pro forma expense in Note 11((d)(i)) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, rather than expense such compensa-
tion, to maintain comparability to other peer companies. In response to activities and decisions by accounting standard
setters in Canada in respect to the adoption of mandatory expensing of stock options, as described above, effective
January 1, 2004, the Company will adopt the policy of expensing the fair value of stock options granted to employees.

Capital ized Interest 
Canadian GAAP permits, but does not require, the capitalization of interest expense as part of the historical cost of
acquiring certain assets that require a period of time to prepare for their intended use. The Company does not capitalize
interest as part of its PP&E expenditures.

U.S.  GAAP DIFFERENCES 

The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP. U.S. GAAP differs from Canadian GAAP
in certain respects. The areas of principal differences and their impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements are described in Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The significant differences include: 

• accounting for the gain on sale and exchange on certain cable television systems; 
• accounting for development and pre-operating costs; 
• accounting for internal interest capitalization and the related depreciation impact; 
• classification of certain equity instruments and the related interest and accretion; 
• shares used in connection with the purchase of a business; 
• accounting for changes in the fair value of financial instruments; 
• accounting for the grant of certain options to non-employees; and 
• accounting for minimum pension liability. 
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Accounting for the Gain on Sale and Exchange on Certain Cable Television Systems
Under Canadian GAAP, the cash proceeds of a non-monetary exchange of cable assets in 2000 were recorded as a reduc-
tion in the carrying value of PP&E. Under U.S. GAAP, a portion of the cash proceeds received must be recognized as a gain
in the Consolidated Statement of Income. Under U.S. GAAP, the gain amounted to $40.3 million before income taxes.

In addition, under Canadian GAAP the after tax gain arising on the sale of certain of the Company’s cable televi-
sion systems in prior years was recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of goodwill acquired in a contemporaneous
acquisition of certain cable television systems. Under U.S. GAAP, the gain was included in net income, net of related
deferred income taxes.

As a result of accounting for gains on sale and exchanges of certain cable television systems under U.S. GAAP, the
Company’s income for U.S. GAAP was decreased by $4.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Accounting for Development and Pre-Operating Costs 
Under Canadian GAAP, the Company defers the incremental costs relating to the development and pre-operating phases
of new businesses and amortizes these costs on a straight-line basis over periods up to five years. Under U.S. GAAP, these
costs are expensed as incurred. As a result, under U.S. GAAP the consolidated net income for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002 was increased by $11.2 million and $12.6 million, respectively.

Accounting for Interest Capital ization and the Related Depreciation Impact 
U.S. GAAP requires capitalization of interest costs as part of the historical cost of acquiring certain qualifying assets that
require a period of time to prepare for their intended use. This is not required under Canadian GAAP. The impact of capi-
talizing interest under U.S. GAAP is to increase net income by $5.4 million in 2003 and $7.8 million in 2002. 

Classif ication of Certain Equity Instruments and the Related Interest and Accretion
Under Canadian GAAP, the Convertible Preferred Securities are classified as shareholders’ equity, and the related interest
expense is recorded as a distribution from retained earnings. For U.S. GAAP purposes, these securities are classified as
long-term debt and the related interest expense is recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income. This adjustment
results in the Company’s net income for U.S. GAAP being decreased by $35.4 million and $92.4 million in each of the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Shares Issued in Connection with a Purchase of a Business 
U.S. GAAP requires that shares issued in connection with a purchase business combination be valued-based on the market
price at the announcement date of the acquisition. Canadian GAAP required that shares issued in connection with a pur-
chase business combination be valued based on the market price at the consummation date of the acquisition.
Accordingly, the cost of acquisition of Cable Atlantic Inc. under U.S. GAAP was increased by $35.4 million, resulting in an
increase of goodwill by this amount and a corresponding increase in contributed surplus.

Accounting for Changes in the Fair  Value of Financial  Instruments 
Under U.S. GAAP, the changes in fair value of cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements and interest rate exchange
agreements must be recorded as an adjustment to net income. Accordingly, the Company’s net income under U.S. GAAP
for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 has been increased (decreased) by ($217.5 million) and $126.0 million,
respectively.

Accounting for the Grant of Certain Options to Non-Employees 
For U.S. GAAP purposes, options granted to non-employees must be measured at the fair value at grant dates and
recorded as deferred compensation expense and shareholders’ equity. The fair value must be re-measured at each report-
ing date until vesting is complete, with corresponding adjustments to the deferred compensation expense. The deferred
compensation is recognized as compensation expense over the vesting period of the options. As a result of the Blue Jays
not being consolidated with the results of the Company, options granted to employees of the Blue Jays in 2001 are
treated as if they were granted to non-employees. As a result, net income for U.S. GAAP purposes was decreased by
$1.2 million and $1.9 million in the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Accounting for Minimum Pension Liabi l ity
Under United States GAAP, the Company is required to record an additional minimum pension liability for one of its plans to
reflect the excess of the accumulated benefit obligation over the fair value of the plan assets. Other comprehensive income
has been charged with $5.0 million, net of income taxes of $2.9 million. No such adjustment is required under Canadian GAAP.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2003 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2002

Summarized Consolidated Financial  Results
For the year ended December 31, 2003, Cable, Wireless and Media represented 36.5%, 47.1% and 17.6% of Rogers’ consol-
idated revenue, respectively, offset by negative 1.2%, representing corporate items and eliminations. Cable, Wireless and
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Media represent 45.8%, 50.2%, and 7.4%, respectively, of Rogers consolidated operating profit, offset by negative 3.4%,
representing corporate expenses. See “Key Performance Indicators – Operating Profit and Operating Profit Margin” section.
For more detailed discussions of the Cable, Wireless and Media divisions, please refer to the respective segment discus-
sions below.

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s ,  p e r  s h a r e  a m o u n t s )
Y e a r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 %  C h g

Operating revenue
Cable $ 1,769.2 $ 1,596.4 10.8
Wireless 2,282.2 1,965.9 16.1
Media 855.0 810.8 5.5
Corporate items and eliminations (59.0) (50.1) 17.8

Total 4,847.4 4,323.0 12.1

Operating expenses
Cable $ 1,105.7 1,032.9 7.0
Wireless 1,554.6 1,438.2 8.1
Media 748.3 723.2 3.5
Corporate items and eliminations (10.1) (12.9) (21.7)

Total $ 3,398.5 $ 3,181.4 6.8

Operating profit1

Cable $ 663.5 $ 563.5 17.7
Wireless 727.6 527.7 37.9
Media 106.7 87.6 21.8
Corporate items and eliminations (48.9) (37.2) 31.5

Total $ 1,448.9 $ 1,141.6 26.9
Other income and expense, net2 1,319.7 829.6 59.1

Net income $ 129.2 $ 312.0 (58.6)

Operating profit1 as a percent of revenue
Cable 37.5% 35.3%
Wireless 31.9 26.8
Media 12.5 10.8

Total 29.9% 26.4%

Earnings per share
Basic $ 0.35 $ 1.05 (66.6)
Diluted $ 0.34 $ 0.83 (59.0)

Total assets $ 8,465.5 $ 8,524.5 (0.7)
Total liabilities $ 6,504.8 $ 6,987.9 (6.9)

Property, plant and equipment expenditures:
Cable $ 509.6 $ 650.9 (21.7)
Wireless 411.9 564.5 (27.0)
Media 41.3 42.7 (3.3)
Corporate items and eliminations 0.9 3.9 (76.9)

Total $ 963.7 $ 1,262.0 (23.6)

1 A s  d e f i n e d  i n  “ K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  a n d  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  M a r g i n ” .  

2 S e e  “ R e c o n c i l i a t i o n  o f  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  t o  N e t  I n c o m e  f o r  s p e c i f i c  d e t a i l s  o f  t h e s e  a m o u n t s .  

Consolidated revenue was $4,847.4 million in 2003, an increase of $524.4 million, or 12.1%, from $4,323.0 million in 2002.
Of the increase, Wireless contributed $316.3 million, Cable $172.8 million and Media $44.2 million.

Consolidated operating profit was $1,448.9 million, an increase of $307.3 million, or 26.9%, from $1,141.6 million in
2002. Wireless contributed $199.9 million, Cable $100.0 million and Media $19.1 million of the operating profit increase.
Consolidated operating profit as a percentage of revenue (“operating margin”) increased to 29.9% in 2003 from 26.4% in
2002. The operating margin increase was supported by increased operating margins in all three divisions. Refer to the
respective individual segment discussions for details of the revenue, operating expenses, operating profit and property,
plant and equipment (“PP&E”) capital expenditures of Cable, Wireless and Media.
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On a consolidated basis, the Company recorded net income of $129.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003,
as compared to net income of $312.0 million in 2002. Refer to “Reconciliation of Operating Profit to Net Income” and
“Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for additional discussion of the year-over-year changes in net income.

Reconci l iation of Operating Profit  to Net Income 
The items listed below represent the consolidated income and expense amounts that are required to reconcile operating
profit with operating income and net income as defined under Canadian GAAP. The following section should be read in
conjunction with Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for details of these amounts on a segment-by-segment
basis and an understanding of intersegment eliminations on consolidation.

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s )
Y e a r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Operating profit1 $ 1,448.9 $ 1,141.6
Other2 – 6.5
Depreciation and amortization (1,040.3) (981.5)

Operating income 408.6 166.6
Interest on long-term debt (488.9) (491.3)
Losses from investments accounted for by the equity method (54.0) (100.6)
Foreign exchange gain 303.7 6.2
Gain (loss) on repayment of long-term debt (24.8) 10.1
Gain (loss) on sale of other investments 17.9 (0.6)
Write-down of investments – (301.0)
Gain on disposition of AT&T Canada Deposit Receipts – 904.3
Other income 2.2 2.4
Income taxes 22.9 74.7
Non-controlling interest (58.4) 41.2

Net income $ 129.2 $ 312.0

1 A s  p r e v i o u s l y  d e f i n e d  s e e  “ K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  a n d  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  M a r g i n ” .  

2 O t h e r  

I n  2 0 0 2 ,  a  n e t  r e c o v e r y  o f  $ 6 . 5  m i l l i o n  w a s  r e c o r d e d  c o n s i s t i n g  o f  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  i t e m s :

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s )

W o r k f o r c e  r e d u c t i o n  c o s t s  –  C a b l e $ ( 5 . 9 )
C h a n g e  i n  e s t i m a t e  o f  s a l e s  t a x  –  W i r e l e s s 1 9 . 2
C R T C  c o n t r i b u t i o n  l i a b i l i t i e s  –  W i r e l e s s ( 6 . 8 )

$ 6 . 5

Cable Workforce Reduction Costs 
During the fourth quarter of 2002, Cable reduced its workforce by 187 employees in the technical service, network opera-
tions and engineering departments and incurred $5.9 million in costs, primarily related to severance and other
termination benefits, associated with this reduction. In addition to these employee separations, Cable eliminated approx-
imately 62 contract positions. Of this amount, $1.9 million was paid in fiscal 2002, with the balance of $4.0 million being
paid in fiscal 2003.

Wireless Change in the Estimate of Sales Tax 
In 2002, Wireless received clarification with respect to a potential sales tax liability that the Company had recorded as an
expense in previous periods. As a result, Wireless released a $19.2 million provision related to previous years’ operations.

Wireless CRTC Contribution Liabi l it ies 
In 2002, Wireless received additional information with respect to the calculation of the CRTC contributions and more
specifically, the applicability of the contribution levy on certain revenues. As a result of this information, the Company
determined and recorded an additional expense related to 2001 in the amount of $6.8 million. The CRTC contribution
regime is discussed in the “Overview of Government Regulation and Regulatory Developments” section below.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 
Depreciation and amortization expense in 2003 was $1,040.3 million, an increase of $58.8 million, or 6.0%, from $981.5 mil-
lion in the prior year. The increase was directly attributable to increased PP&E expenditures and the resultant higher asset
levels at Cable and Wireless associated with PP&E spending over the past several years. With the reduction of PP&E expen-
ditures in 2002 and 2003 from 2001 levels, however, the increases in depreciation are less significant than in previous years.
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Amortization increased as a result of the increased amortization related to the AT&T brand licence, which provided
Wireless with, among other things, the right to use the AT&T brand name. During 2003, Wireless announced that it would
terminate its brand licence agreement in early 2004 and change its brand name to exclude the AT&T brand. Consequently,
the Company accelerated the amortization of the brand licence to reduce the carrying value to nil.

Operating Income Reconci l iation Under GAAP 
Operating income as defined under Canadian GAAP increased to $408.6 million in 2003, an increase of $242.0 million or
145.3% from the $166.6 million earned in 2002. The items to reconcile operating income to net income are as follows:

Interest Expense 
Interest expense in 2003 was $488.9 million, a decrease of $2.4 million, or 0.5%, from $491.3 million in 2002. Reduced debt at RCI
was the primary reason for the decrease in interest expense year-over-year. The reduction in debt levels is directly related
to the impact of the change in foreign exchange related to the improvement in the Canadian dollar versus the U.S. dollar.

Losses from Investments Accounted for by the Equity Method 
The Company records losses and income from investments that it does not control, but over which it is able to exercise sig-
nificant influence, by the equity method. The equity loss for 2003 and 2002 was $54.0 million and $100.6 million, respectively.

The equity loss consists of the Blue Jays’ loss of $56.5 million in 2003 and $101.7 million in 2002, offset by invest-
ments with equity income of $2.5 million in 2003 and $1.1 million in 2002 related to other equity investments.

In 2003 and 2002, the Company advanced $29.4 million and $40.6 million of cash, respectively, to the Blue Jays to
fund the Blue Jays’ cash deficit. In 2000, Rogers purchased an 80% interest in the Blue Jays for cash of $163.9 million from
Labatt Brewing Company Limited, a subsidiary of Interbrew Breweries S.A. (“Interbrew”). Rogers had the option to
acquire the 20% minority interest in the Blue Jays at any time after December 15, 2003. In January 2004, the Company con-
cluded the purchase from Interbrew of Interbrew’s remaining 20% minority ownership of the Blue Jays for approximately
$39.1 million pursuant to the agreement.

As the result of an April 2001 agreement with Rogers Telecommunications Ltd. (“RTL”), a company controlled by
the controlling shareholder of Rogers, RTL acquired voting control of the Blue Jays. The Company currently accounts for
this investment using the equity method and records 100% of the operating losses of the Blue Jays. The agreement with
RTL did not change as a result of the Company’s purchase of Interbrew’s 20% minority interest, and, accordingly, Rogers
expects to continue to account for this investment using the equity method.

The Blue Jays are expected to generate lower operating losses in 2004 than in 2003, reflecting efficiencies in its
operations and the benefit of the strengthened Canadian dollar. In 2004, cash funding by the Company to the Blue Jays is
expected to be approximately $20 million to $25 million.

At the time of purchase RCI agreed with Major League Baseball that it will: (i) perform or cause the Toronto Blue
Jays Baseball Club (the “Club”) to perform all of the terms imposed by Major League Baseball acting under the scope of its
authority; (ii) perform or cause the Club to perform all duties and obligations of the Club under the governing documents
of Major League Baseball and under those agreements to which Major League Baseball entities are parties; and
(iii) assume and perform or cause the Club to perform all liabilities and obligations of the Club asserted by any party
against any Major League Baseball entity.

If E.S. Rogers is unable to exercise control over the Blue Jays and Major League Baseball (“MLB”) determines that a
sale or transfer of a control interest in the Blue Jays has occurred, then MLB is entitled to take such action as it consider
necessary in accordance with its guidelines, rules and regulations.

Foreign Exchange Gain 
The Canadian dollar continued to strengthen in relation to the U.S. dollar in 2003, continuing the trend experienced in
2002. Accordingly, the Company recorded a foreign exchange gain of $303.7 million in 2003, compared to $6.2 million in
2002, related to both realized and unrealized foreign exchange gains, the largest portion of which arose from the transla-
tion of the unhedged portion of U.S. dollar-denominated long-term debt.

Gain ( loss)  on Repayment of Long-Term Debt 
During 2003, the Company redeemed an aggregate U.S.$334.8 million and $165.0 million principal amount of its Senior
Notes and Debentures. The Company paid a prepayment premium of $19.3 million, and wrote off related deferred financ-
ing costs of $5.5 million, resulting in a loss on the repayment of debt of $24.8 million.

During 2002, the Company repurchased or redeemed in aggregate U.S.$326.1 million principal amount of debt and
terminated U.S.$796.1 million notional amount of swaps for cash proceeds of $225.2 million. As a result of these transac-
tions, the Company recorded a net gain of $10.1 million and a deferred gain of $22.5 million on the termination of certain
of the swaps.

Gains ( loss)  on the Sale of Investments 
During 2003, the Company recorded a gain on the sale of investments of $17.9 million compared to a loss on the sale of
investments of $0.6 million in 2002. The gain on the sale of investments in 2003 related primarily to the sale of shares of
various publicly traded companies that had been held by the Company for investment purposes.
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Write-down of Investments 
The Company reviewed the carrying value of all investments and determined no write-downs were required in 2003.

In 2002, as part of its annual review of the carrying value of investments, the Company determined a write-down
in the amount of $301.0 million was required. The largest component of this write-down in 2002 related to the Company’s
investment in Cogeco Cable Inc. and Cogeco Inc., which accounted for $238.9 million of the total. Cogeco shares were
written down to the December 31, 2002 publicly traded value on the basis that the market price at that time reflected
management’s best estimate of the fair value of the investment.

During 2002, the Company’s other investments were reviewed, and it was determined that write-down of approx-
imately $62.1 million was required based on publicly traded values and estimated values of privately held companies.

Gain on Disposit ion of AT&T Canada Deposit  Receipts 
In 2002, AT&T Corp. (“AT&T”) purchased for cash the deposit receipts of AT&T Canada Inc. (“AT&T Canada”). The Company
received cash proceeds of $1.28 billion, which, after taking into account the carrying costs of the investment and related
costs, resulted in a pre-tax gain of $904.3 million. The proceeds were used by the Company, together with other funds, to
redeem the Company’s outstanding Preferred Securities and to settle the Collateralized Equity Securities associated with
the previous monetizations by the Company of its AT&T Canada investment.

Other Income 
This includes interest earned on cash deposits. In 2002, the amount was offset by the accretion on the Preferred Securities
and Collateralized Equity Securities as described in Note 11(c) to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income Taxes 
Income tax expense consists of large corporations tax and is calculated under Canadian GAAP as outlined in Note 13 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Non-Control l ing Interest 
Non-controlling interest, representing a 44.2% interest in Wireless’ net income, was an expense of $58.4 million in 2003 as
compared to a gain of $41.2 million in 2002. The year-over-year change represents the significant year-over-year improve-
ment in Wireless’ net income which was in a loss position in 2002.

Net Income and Earnings per Share 
The Company recorded net income of $129.2 million in 2003, or $0.35 per share, compared to net income of $312.0 million
in 2002, or $1.05 per share. In 2003, the weighted average number of Class A Voting Shares and Class B Non-Voting Shares
outstanding increased to 225.9 million from 213.6 million in 2002. The number of shares and the earnings per share (“EPS”)
amount stated above reflect basic earnings per share.

EMPLOYEES 

At December 31, 2003, the Company had approximately 15,000 full-time equivalent employees (“FTE”) across all of its
operating groups, including the Company’s shared services organization and corporate office, representing an increase of
approximately 100 FTEs from the levels of December 31, 2002. The employment level increase primarily reflects increased
sales staff customer service staff, partially offset by staff reductions in other groups resulting from operating efficiencies.

For details of Cable, Wireless and Media employee levels, please refer to the respective discussions below.
Total remuneration paid to employees (both full and part time) in 2003 was approximately $801.0 million, an

increase of $30.0 million, or 3.9%, from $771.0 million in the prior year.

ROGERS CABLE 

CABLE OVERVIEW 

Rogers Cable is Canada’s largest cable television company, serving close to 2.3 million basic subscribers, representing
approximately 29% of basic cable subscribers in Canada. Cable also provides digital cable services to approximately
535,300 subscribers and Internet service to approximately 790,500 subscribers at December 31, 2003.

Cable has highly-clustered and technologically advanced broadband networks in Ontario, New Brunswick and
Newfoundland. Cable’s Ontario cable systems, which comprise approximately 90% of its 2.3 million basic cable subscribers,
are concentrated in three principal clusters in and around: (i) the greater Toronto area, Canada’s largest metropolitan 
centre; (ii) Ottawa, the national capital city of Canada; and (iii) the Guelph to London corridor in southern Ontario. Cable’s
New Brunswick and Newfoundland cable systems in Atlantic Canada comprise the balance of its subscribers.
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Cable Products and Services 
With 99% of its network having digital cable available and more than 92% upgraded to 750 Megahertz (“MHz”) or
860 MHz, Rogers Cable has a highly-competitive offer which includes high definition television (“HDTV”), a suite of
‘Rogers on Demand’ services (including video on demand (“VOD”), personal video recorders (“PVR”) and time shifted pro-
gramming), impulse pay-per-view (“PPV”), movies and events as well as a significant line-up of digital, multicultural and
sports programming.

Rogers Cable’s Internet service is available to over 96% of its homes passed. Cable’s Internet service is available to
residential customers in either a High Speed or Rogers Hi-Speed Internet Lite (Internet Lite) service offering. Cable also
offers a full range of data and Internet products to business customers.

Rogers Cable also offers videocassette, digital video disc (“DVD”) and video game sales and rentals through Rogers
Video, Canada’s second largest chain of video stores. There were 279 Rogers Video stores at December 31, 2003, of which
many are integrated stores that provide Rogers customers with the additional ability to purchase cable and wireless
products and services, pay their cable television, Internet or Rogers Wireless bills and to pick up and return cable TV and
Internet equipment.

Cable Distr ibution Network 
In addition to the Rogers Video stores as described above, Cable markets its services through an extensive network of
retail locations across its network footprint, including the Rogers Wireless independent dealer network, Rogers AT&T
Wireless stores and kiosks and major retail chains such as RadioShack Canada Inc., Future Shop Ltd. and Best Buy Canada.
Cable also offers products and services and customer service on its e-business Web site, www.rogers.com.

Cable Networks 
Cable’s cable networks in Ontario and New Brunswick, with few exceptions, are interconnected to regional head-ends,
where analog and digital channel line-ups are assembled for distribution to customers and Internet traffic is aggregated
and routed to and from customers, by inter-city fibre-optic rings. The fibre interconnections allow Cable’s multiple
Ontario and New Brunswick cable systems to function as a single cable network. Cable’s remaining subscribers in
Newfoundland and New Brunswick are served by local head-ends. Cable’s two regional head-ends in Toronto, Ontario
and Moncton, New Brunswick provide the source for most television signals used in the cable systems.

Cable’s technology architecture is based on a three-tiered structure of primary hubs, optical nodes and co-axial dis-
tribution. The primary hubs, located in each region that Cable serves, are connected together by inter-city fibre-optic
systems carrying television, Internet, network control and monitoring, and administrative traffic. The fibre-optic systems
are generally constructed as rings that allow signals to flow in and out of each primary hub through two paths, providing
protection from a fibre cut or other disruption. These high-capacity optical fibre networks deliver high performance and reli-
ability, and have substantial reserves for future growth in the form of dark fibre and unused optical wavelengths. Cable’s
primary hubs serve from 4,000 to 248,000 subscribers, with two of the primary hubs each serving over 200,000 subscribers.

Optical fibre joins the primary hub to the optical nodes in the cable distribution plant. Final distribution to sub-
scriber homes from optical nodes uses co-axial cable with two-way amplifiers to support on-demand television and
Internet service. Co-axial cable capacity has been increased repeatedly by introducing more advanced amplifier technolo-
gies. Cable believes co-axial cable is the most cost-effective and widely deployed means of carrying two-way television
and high-speed Internet services to residential subscribers.

Groups of an average of 640 homes are served from each optical node in a cable architecture commonly referred to
as fibre-to-the-feeder (“FTTF”). The FTTF plant provides bandwidth up to 750 MHz or 860 MHz, which includes 37 MHz of
bandwidth used for “upstream” transmission from the subscribers’ premises to the primary hub. Cable believes the
upstream bandwidth is sufficient to support multiple cable modem systems and data traffic from interactive digital set-
top terminals for at least the near term future. When necessary, additional upstream capacity can be provided by
reducing the number of homes served by each optical node. Fibre cable has been placed to permit a reduction of the
average node size from 640 to 300 homes by installing additional optical transceiver modules and optical transmitters and
return receivers in the head-ends and primary hubs.

More than 92% of Cable’s cable plant has been upgraded to 750/860 MHz FTTF architecture, with approximately 96%
of its plant capable of transmitting 550 MHz of bandwidth or greater. Through the completion of Cable’s scheduled network
upgrade program, 96% will be rebuilt to 750/860 MHz FTTF by early 2004 and, by year end 2004, approximately 85% of its net-
work will be upgraded to 860 MHz. Some smaller communities and rural areas continue to use more traditional two-way
cable architectures with 2,000 subscribers per node and 600 MHz bandwidth. Overall, 96% of Cable’s total cable plant was
two-way addressable at December 31, 2003 and 99% of the homes passed in Cable’s service areas had digital cable available.

Cable believes that the 750/860 MHz FTTF architecture provides it with sufficient bandwidth for foreseeable
growth in television, data and future services, a high quality picture, advanced two-way capability and increased reliabil-
ity. In addition, Cable’s clustered network of cable systems served by regional head-ends facilitates the Company’s ability
to rapidly introduce new services to subscribers with a lower capital cost.

Telephony Init iative 
Cable, together with RCI, announced an initiative on February 12, 2004, to deploy an advanced broadband Internet
Protocol (IP) multimedia network to support primary line voice-over-cable telephony and other new services across cable

Management’s Discussion and Analysis



2003 Annual ReportRogers Communications Inc. 33

service areas. This investment plan, the completion of which assumes a regulatory environment supportive of competition
from voice-over-cable telephony, includes the capital costs required to deploy a scalable primary line quality digital voice-
over-cable telephony service utilizing PacketCable and DOCSIS standards, including the costs associated with switching,
transport, IP network redundancy, multi-hour network and customer premises powering, network status monitoring, cus-
tomer premises equipment, information technologies and systems integration. Cable expects the PP&E expenditures
required to deploy this platform will be approximately $200 million over two years. Cable also expects the majority of the
PP&E expenditures will occur in the first 12 to 18 months of the deployment, with 2004 expenditures expected to be
between $140 million and $170 million. Once this initial platform is deployed, the additional variable PP&E expenditures
associated with adding each voice-over-cable telephony service subscriber, which includes uninterruptible backup power-
ing at the home, is expected to be in the range of $300 to $340 per subscriber addition.

Cable is currently refining its business strategies with respect to voice-over-cable telephony services. As a result,
the PP&E expenditures, costs and timeline described above are initial estimates. In addition, Cable, together with RCI, is
considering offering the telephony services described above through another wholly owned RCI subsidiary, Rogers
Telecom Inc. (Rogers Telecom). RCI is currently in the process of recruiting an industry executive to lead Rogers Telecom.
Although Cable’s business strategies and organizational structure with respect to telephony services continue to be
refined, it plans to incur most or all of the PP&E expenditures described above to upgrade its network to an advanced
broadband multimedia platform capable of supporting voice-over-cable telephony and other new services. In the event
that Rogers Telecom offers voice-over-cable telephony services, Cable would enter into an agreement with Rogers
Telecom which could relate to, among other things, access to and the use of Cable’s network.

Cable Restructuring 
On December 31, 2003, Cable executed a corporate reorganization that involved the transfer of substantially all of the
assets of Cable to a wholly-owned subsidiary, Rogers Cable Communications Inc. (“RCCI”). As part of the reorganization,
the Cable’s subsidiaries, Rogers Cablesystems Ontario Limited, Rogers Ottawa Limited/Limitée, Rogers Cable Atlantic Inc.
and Rogers Cablesystems Georgian Bay Limited, amalgamated with and continued as “RCCI”. As a result of the reorgani-
zation, Cable, through RCCI, continues to conduct all of the operations and provide all of Cable’s services.

CABLE STRATEGY OVERVIEW 

Cable seeks to maximize its revenue, operating profit, as previously defined, and return on investment by leveraging its
technologically advanced cable network to meet the information, entertainment and communications needs of its sub-
scribers, from basic cable television to advanced two-way cable services including digital cable, Internet access, PPV, VOD,
PVR and HDTV. The key elements of Cable’s strategies are as follows:

• clustering of cable systems in and around metropolitan areas; 
• offering a wide selection of products and services; 
• maintaining technologically advanced cable networks; 
• continuing to focus on increased quality and reliability of service; 
• leveraging its relationships within the Rogers group of companies to identify opportunities for bundled product and

service offerings as well as for cost and infrastructure sharing;
• continuing to develop brand awareness and to promote the “Rogers” brand as a symbol of quality, innovation and

value and of a diversified Canadian media and communications company; and
• deploying advanced IP capabilities to provide high quality digital primary line voice telephony service.

CABLE SEASONALITY 

Cable’s subscriber additions and disconnections are subject to modest seasonal fluctuations which are largely attribut-
able to movements of university and college students and individuals temporarily suspending service due to extended
vacations. These fluctuations generally have a minimal impact on Cable’s financial results.

RECENT CABLE INDUSTRY TRENDS 

Investment in Improved Cable Television Networks and Expanded Service Offerings 
In recent years, North American cable television companies have made substantial investments in the installation of fibre-
optic cable and electronics in their respective networks and in the development of broadband Internet and digital cable
services. These investments have enabled cable television companies to offer expanded packages of analog and digital
cable television services, including VOD, PPV services, expanded analog and digital services pay television packages, inter-
active television services, HDTV programming and Internet services.
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Increased Competit ion from Alternative Broadcasting Distr ibution Undertakings 
As discussed in “Competition” below, Canadian cable television systems generally face legal and illegal competition from
several alternative multi-channel broadcasting distribution systems. See “Competition” below for a discussion of these
various competitive forces.

Development of Cable Telephony Offerings 
Many of the larger cable system operators or Multiple System Operators (“MSO”) in North America have deployed or
announced the pending deployment of local telephony service offerings over all or portions of their cable systems. The
MSOs utilize either older circuit switched technologies or newer soft switch-based voice over IP technologies (“VoIP”) to
deploy local telephony. VoIP, when offered over a DOCSIS cable modem connection to an MSO’s network that is utilizing
industry standard Packet Cable certified components, enables an MSO to emulate, with the exception of network power-
ing, the features, functionality and quality of service of traditional local telephone service. VoIP is increasingly being
proven a reliable and scalable technology for enabling MSOs (and other next generation telecommunication carriers) to
enter the local telephony services market.

CABLE REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS 

Community-Based Media 
The CRTC’s new community-based media policy framework came into effect in January 2003. Under the framework, Cable
can retain a higher proportion of the payments that would otherwise go to support Canadian programming funds. Cable
is permitted to use these retained payments to support its own community television channels.

Distr ibution of Digital  Television Signals 
In November 2003, the CRTC released its policy framework for the distribution of digital television signals. Under the
framework, Cable is required to distribute the digital signal of a Canadian broadcaster once the signal is available over
the air. Both the analog and digital versions of a Canadian television signal are to be distributed until 85% of Cable’s sub-
scribers have digital set-top boxes or digital receivers.

Basic Rate Increase 
On January 21, 2004, the CRTC renewed the licences of 22 specialty services. Three services were granted basic rate
increases that come into effect on April 20, 2004. Depending on the system, the new rates could represent a basic fee
increase of as much as $0.13 per subscriber per month or approximately $2.5 million in incremental wholesale fees, pro-
rated at $1.7 million in 2004.

CABLE COMPETITION 

Canadian cable television systems generally face legal and illegal competition from several alternative multi-channel
broadcasting distribution systems, including two Canadian Direct-to-Home (“DTH”) satellite providers, U.S. Direct Broadcast
Satellite (“DBS”) service, Satellite Master Antenna Television (“SMATV”), and Multi-channel, Multi-point Distribution System
(“MMDS”), as well as from the direct reception by antenna of over-the-air local and regional broadcast television signals.

In recent years, telephone companies have acquired licences to operate terrestrial broadcast distribution under-
takings (“BDUs”). These companies include TELUS Corporation (“TELUS”), Saskatchewan Telecommunications (“Sasktel”),
MTS Communications Inc. (“MTS”), and Aliant Inc. (“Aliant”). Cable competes directly with Aliant in New Brunswick and
Newfoundland and TELUS in Ontario. During 2003, BCE Inc. (“Bell”) announced that it will apply for a BDU licence allowing
it to deliver television service to residential homes and apartment buildings using digital subscriber line (“DSL”) technol-
ogy. If proven viable, DSL technologies such as very high speed digital subscriber lines (“VDSL”) will potentially offer a
complete array of broadcast television services including VOD and HDTV. In particular, Bell has stated an objective to tar-
get MDU’s with the VDSL product. Cable’s premium services, such as movie networks, U.S. superstations, pay-per-view
and VOD services, also compete to varying degrees with other communications and entertainment media, including home
video, movie theatres and live theatre.

Since their launch in 1997, the two DTH providers licenced by the CRTC to operate in Canada (Bell ExpressVu LLP
and Star Choice Communications Inc.) have become aggressive competitors to cable television systems in Canada. In addi-
tion, illegal access to U.S. DBS signals by individuals residing in Canada has become an increasing source of black and grey
market competition for Canadian cable television systems. The “black market” refers to pirate DBS equipment Canadian
residents illegally obtain and operate. This equipment enables them to take, without paying a fee, programming services
from U.S. DBS providers by defeating the operation of the systems that prevent unauthorized access. The “grey market”
refers to U.S. DBS equipment that Canadian residents obtain and illegally bring into and operate in Canada. Such resi-
dents illegally give a false U.S. service address to the U.S. DBS providers, paying a fee to receive programming services not
offered for sale in Canada. Unauthorized access by Canadian residents with pirate DTH equipment and theft of Canadian
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DTH services is another source of competition to Canadian cable companies. In April 2002, the Supreme Court of Canada
issued a decision clarifying that the decoding of programming signals, except in accordance with the authorization of a
licenced Canadian distributor, is prohibited in Canada. The decision has led to increased criminal and civil enforcement
activity against black and grey market satellite television dealers in Canada.

Cable’s objective is to offer the fullest possible range of programming and services to its customers. In September
2001, Cable launched approximately 70 of the new Category 1 and Category 2 digital services licenced by the CRTC in 2000.
Since that time, Cable has launched additional Category 2 and foreign digital services. Cable offers more third language
digital services than any other Canadian distributor. In late 2001, Cable also launched a digital offering consisting of HDTV
versions of the U.S. networks sourced from Detroit. In early 2002, Cable launched a digital timeshifting package that
included distant Canadian conventional broadcast signals and versions of the U.S. networks sourced from Seattle.
In March 2002, Cable began offering HDTV versions of selected pay and PPV programming. In 2003, Cable added HDTV ver-
sions of CityTV Toronto, TSN, Rogers Sportsnet and U.S. networks sourced from Seattle and Spokane. Cable has a large
and diverse, highly-competitive offering relative to Canadian DTH and other Canadian cable providers.

Cable’s Internet access service competes generally with a number of other Internet Service Providers (“ISPs”),
offering competing residential and commercial Internet access services. Many ISPs offer telephone dial-up Internet access
services that provide significantly reduced bandwidth and download speed capabilities compared to broadband tech-
nologies such as cable modem or DSL. Cable’s Internet service competes directly with Bell’s DSL Internet service in the
high-speed Internet market in Ontario, and with the DSL Internet services of Aliant in some of Cable’s service areas in
New Brunswick and Newfoundland. Cable also offers a less expensive Internet Lite service which has fewer features than
the standard high-speed package. Cable’s Internet Lite service competes against similar slower speed DSL services and,
because of its reduced speed, competes more directly with dial-up services.

Cable has increasingly offered its services to customers at either a discounted price for subscribing to multiple ser-
vices or, more recently, in product bundles which are priced at a discount to the sum of the prices of the individual
products if they were to be purchased separately. Cable believes that such customer loyalty programs and multi-product
bundling enable it to reduce individual product churn, increase the average revenue received from its customers by sell-
ing multiple products to them and to better service its customers by offering a single bill and single points of customer
service contact. Late in 2003, Cable and Rogers Wireless launched a combined bundle which offered combinations of their
video, high-speed Internet, and wireless services. Cable’s primary competitor, Bell, also markets similar product bundles
at similar price points in competition with Cable. However, Bell’s practice of bundling telephone services with Internet
and DTH service is currently under review with the CRTC.

Cable faces emerging competition from other utilities such as hydroelectric companies as these companies look to
utilize their infrastructure to provide Internet and other services that may directly compete with its current and future
service offerings.

Rogers Video competes with other videocassette, DVD and video game sales and rental store chains, such as
Blockbuster Inc. and Wal-Mart Stores Inc., as well as individually owned and operated outlets. Competition is principally
based on location, price and availability of titles.

CABLE OPERATING AND FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Year Ended December 31,  2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31,  2002 
For purposes of this discussion, revenue has been classified according to the following categories:

• core cable, which includes revenue derived from (a) analog cable service revenue consisting of basic cable service fees
plus extended basic (or tier) service fees, installation fees and access fees for use of channel capacity by third and
related parties and (b) digital cable television service revenue consisting of digital channel service fees, including pre-
mium and specialty service subscription fees, PPV service fees, interactive television service fees, VOD and digital
set-top terminal rental fees;

• Internet, which includes service revenues from residential and commercial Internet access service and modem rental
fees plus installation fees; and

• Rogers Video stores, which includes the sale and rental of videocassettes, DVDs, video games and confectionery, as
well, Rogers Video earns commissions acting as an agent to sell other Rogers’ services such as wireless, Internet, and
digital cable.

Internet service has essentially become another service that leverages the cable infrastructure and which, for the most
part, shares the same physical infrastructure and sales, marketing and support resources as other core cable offerings.
This, combined with Cable’s expanded bundling of cable television and Internet services, increasingly led to allocations of
bundled revenues and network and operating costs between the core cable and Internet operations of Cable. As such,
commencing January 1, 2003, reporting of the core cable and Internet segments of the Cable segment were combined.
Cable continues to provide separate statistical information on its Internet subscribers as it does for the digital cable sub-
scriber subset of its core cable operations. In addition, Cable is continuing to report Internet revenues separate from
those of core cable.
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Cable operating expenses consist of: 

• cost of sales, which are comprised of Rogers Video store merchandise and depreciation related to the acquisition of
rental assets;

• sales and marketing expenses, which include sales and retention-related advertising and customer communications as
well as other acquisition costs such as sales support and commissions and costs of operating, advertising and promot-
ing the Rogers Video store chain, and;

• operating, general and administrative expenses which include: (a) the monthly contracted payments for the acquisition
of programming paid directly to the programming supplier as well as to copyright collectives and the Canadian
Television Fund; (b) Internet interconnectivity and usage charges and the cost of operating the e-mail service; (c) tech-
nical service expenses, which includes the costs of operating and maintaining the cable network as well as certain
customer service activities ranging from installations to repair; (d) customer care expenses, which include the costs
associated with the order-taking and billing inquiries of subscribers; (e) community television expenses, which are a
regulatory requirement and consist of the costs to operate a series of local community-based television stations, which
traditionally have filled a unique and localized customer-oriented niche; (f) general and administrative expenses; and
(g) expenses related to the national management of the Rogers Video stores.

Summarized Cable Financial  Results 

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s )
Y e a r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 %  C h g

Operating revenue
Core cable $ 1,167.5 $ 1,095.7 6.6
Internet 322.3 242.6 32.9

Total cable revenue 1,489.8 1,338.3 11.3
Video stores 282.6 263.0 7.5
Intercompany eliminations (3.2) (4.9) –

Total operating revenue 1,769.2 1,596.4 10.8

Operating expenses
Cost of video stores sales 129.9 121.3 7.1
Sales and marketing expenses 206.8 193.6 6.8
Operating, general and administrative expenses 772.2 723.0 6.8
Intercompany eliminations (3.2) (4.9) –

Total operating expense 1,105.7 1,033.0 7.0

Operating profit1

Cable 639.8 541.9 18.1
Video stores 23.7 21.5 10.2

Total operating profit 663.5 563.5 17.8
Cable operating profit margin2 42.9% 40.5%
Video stores operating profit margin1 8.4% 8.2%

Total operating profit margin 37.5% 35.3%
Property, plant and equipment expenditures 509.6 650.9 (21.7)

1 A s  d e f i n e d  i n  “ K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  a n d  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  M a r g i n ”  s e c t i o n .

2 A s  d e f i n e d  i n  “ K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  a n d  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  M a r g i n ”  s e c t i o n  a n d  i s  c a l c u l a t e d  a s  f o l l o w s :

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s )
Y e a r  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

O p e r a t i n g  r e v e n u e
C a b l e $ 1 , 4 8 9 . 8 $ 1 , 3 3 8 . 3
V i d e o  s t o r e s 2 8 2 . 6 2 6 3 . 0
I n t e r c o m p a n y  e l i m i n a t i o n s ( 3 . 2 ) ( 4 . 9 )

T o t a l  o p e r a t i n g  r e v e n u e $ 1 , 7 6 9 . 2 $ 1 , 5 9 6 . 4

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t
C a b l e $ 6 3 9 . 8 $ 5 4 1 . 9
V i d e o  s t o r e s 2 3 . 7 2 1 . 5

$ 6 6 3 . 5 $ 5 6 3 . 5

C a b l e  o p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 3 $ 6 3 9 . 8  ÷ $ 1 , 4 8 9 . 8  =  4 2 . 9 %
C a b l e  o p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 2 $ 5 4 1 . 9  ÷ $ 1 , 3 3 8 . 3  =  4 0 . 5 %
V i d e o  s t o r e  o p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 3 $ 2 3 . 7  ÷ $ 2 8 2 . 6  =  8 . 4 %
V i d e o  s t o r e  o p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 2 $ 2 1 . 5  ÷ $ 2 6 3 . 0  =  8 . 2 %
T o t a l  o p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 3 $ 6 6 3 . 5  ÷ $ 1 , 7 6 9 . 2  =  3 7 . 5 %
T o t a l  o p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 2 $ 5 6 3 . 5  ÷ $ 1 , 5 9 6 . 4  =  3 5 . 3 %
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Cable Operating Highlights and Signif icant Developments of 2003 

• Total Cable revenues increased 10.8% and total operating profit increased 17.8% compared to 2002. Cable Operating
profit margin, excluding Video stores, grew by 240 basis points year-over-year to 42.9%.

• Basic subscriber levels remained relatively flat, as compared to year end 2002. 
• Internet subscriber base increased by 23.6%, or 151,100 net new subscribers, and digital cable subscriber base increased

by 33.3%, or 133,800 net new subscribers during the year.
• The network rebuild project progressed further increasing to 96% of Cable’s homes passed being two-way address-

able, 99% of subscribers digital capable and more than 92% of the Cable plant capable of transmitting 750 MHz of
bandwidth or greater.

• Cable continued to expand the availability of its VOD service, “Rogers on Demand”, with availability reaching over 1.8 mil-
lion homes by year end 2003, while continuing to expand the number of VOD contract agreements with various
production studios to bring the total number of available titles to over 1,000.

• Cable increased the throughput of its Hi-Speed Internet service up to 3Mbps, introduced its first PVR, and launched
9 new HDTV channels.

• Seven new Rogers Video stores were added, raising the total number of Rogers Video stores to 279.
• In January 2004, Cable announced an agreement with Yahoo! Inc. (“Yahoo”) to provide co-branded Internet services to

current and future customers of Cable’s Internet access services. Some ancillary agreements have not yet been final-
ized. Under the multi-year agreement, in return for payment by Cable of a monthly fee, Yahoo will assume operation
of Cable’s e-mail platform and provide a suite of customized Yahoo! content, products and services to Cable’s Internet
access customers. These content, products and services include the following: a customizable browsing environment;
personalized homepage; enhanced e-mail services such as spam control, parental controls, premium pop-up blocking
and storage; enhanced instant messaging capabilities; and multi-media services. Depending on the level of Internet
access service subscribed to, subscribers will receive some or all of these features as part of their subscription. The
agreement also contemplates Cable and Yahoo collaborating to offer premium packages of products and services to
Cable’s subscribers for an additional fee. A number of ancillary agreements have yet to be finalized.

• Cable issued US$350 million (Cdn. equivalent $470.4 million) 6.25% Senior (Secured) Second Priority Notes due 2013.
These funds were used by Cable to repay advances outstanding under its bank credit facility, intercompany debt owing
to RCI and to redeem US$74.8 million aggregate principal amount of its 10% Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures
due 2007 at a redemption price of 105.0% of the aggregate principal amount, and for general corporate purposes.

Cable Revenue and Subscribers 

( S u b s c r i b e r  s t a t i s t i c s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )
Y e a r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 C h g %  C h g

Homes passed 3,215.4 3,103.2 112.21 3.6
Basic cable subscribers 2,269.4 2,270.4 (1.0) (0.0)
Basic cable, net additions (losses) (1.0) (16.0) 15.0 93.8
Internet subscribers 790.5 639.4 151.1 23.6
Internet, net additions 151.1 160.6 (9.5) (5.9)
Digital terminals in service 613.6 456.2 157.4 34.5
Digital terminals, net additions 157.4 142.1 15.3 10.8
Digital households 535.3 401.5 133.8 33.3
Digital households, net additions 133.8 129.4 4.4 3.4
VIP customers 661.6 593.0 68.6 11.6
VIP customers, net additions 68.6 95.5 (26.9) (28.2)

1 H o m e s  p a s s e d  f o r  2 0 0 3  i n c l u d e  a d j u s t m e n t s  b a s e d  o n  a  p e r i o d i c  a u d i t  p r o c e s s  t o  r e f l e c t ,  a m o n g  o t h e r  t h i n g s ,  n e w  h o m e s  c o n s t r u c t e d .  A n
a d d i t i o n a l  3 2 , 0 0 2  h o m e s  w e r e  i d e n t i f i e d ,  w h i c h  r e p r e s e n t s  2 8 . 7 %  o f  t h e  i n c r e a s e .

Core Cable Revenue 
Core cable revenue, which accounted for 66.0% of total Cable revenues in 2003, totaled $1,167.5 million, a $71.8 million, or
6.6%, increase over 2002. Analog cable service increased year-over-year by $29.7 million due to price increases in August 2003,
offset partially by lower installation revenues. The remaining $42.1 million increase is primarily attributable to increased rev-
enues related to the growing number of subscriptions to digital services and the rental of digital set-top terminal equipment.

Core cable average monthly revenue per subscriber was $42.99 in 2003, an increase from $40.29 in 2002. Cable
ended the year with 613,600 digital terminals in 535,300 households, increases of 34.5% and 33.3% over the prior year,
respectively. At December 31, 2003, the penetration of digital households as a percentage of basic households was 23.6%,
up from the December 31, 2002 penetration of 17.7%. The growth of digital cable subscribers, as well as of Internet sub-
scribers as discussed below, was supported by continued healthy sales of a suite of bundled offers combining analog
cable, digital cable and Internet that were launched during 2002. As of December 31, 2003, approximately 162,400 bundles
had been sold, up significantly from the over 84,000 bundles that had been sold at the end of 2002. Late in 2003, Cable and
Rogers Wireless jointly introduced Rogers’ first combined bundles which included both cable and wireless products.
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In its analog cable service, Cable offers three expanded analog channel groupings called tiers in addition to its
basic cable offering. At December 31, 2003, 81.2% of basic cable service customers also subscribed to one or more tier ser-
vices, compared to 81.9% at December 31, 2002. Cable ended the year with approximately 661,600 customers who
subscribe to multiple plans and participate in the Cable’s high-value customer loyalty program, which cable refers to as
its “VIP” program.

Internet Revenue 
Internet revenue for 2003 was $322.3 million, representing growth of $79.7 million, or 32.9%, from 2002, and reflecting the
significant increase in the number of subscribers. Average revenue per Internet subscriber per month for 2003 was $37.58,
an increase from $37.13 for 2002, reflecting continued strong sales of the Internet product offering and sales of the higher
priced business Internet offering, partially offset by customer additions to Cable’s lower priced Internet Lite product.
Year-over-year, the Internet subscriber base has grown by 151,100, or 23.6%, resulting in 34.8% Internet penetration of
basic cable households, or 24.6% Internet penetration as a percentage of cable homes passed.

Video Stores Revenue 
Video stores revenue grew by $19.6 million, or 7.5%, to $282.6 million for 2003 driven by a combination of the opening of
7 stores and a 4.4% increase in same store revenues. “Same stores” are stores that were open for a full year in both 2003
and 2002. At the end of 2003, many of the 279 Rogers Video stores were integrated Rogers Video stores that offered access
to a wide variety of cable and wireless products and services in addition to the core video rental and sales offerings.

Cable and Video Operating Expenses 

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s )
Y e a r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 %  C h g

Cable operating expenses
Sales and marketing expenses $ 91.0 $ 84.5 7.7
Operating, general and administrative expenses 759.0 711.9 6.6

Total Cable operating expenses 850.0 796.4 6.7

Video stores operating expenses
Cost of sales 129.9 121.3 7.1
Sales and marketing expenses 115.8 109.1 6.1
Operating, general and administrative expenses 13.2 11.1 18.9

Total Video stores operating expenses 258.9 241.5 7.2

Intercompany eliminations (3.2) (4.9) –

Operating expenses $ 1,105.7 $ 1,033.0 7.0

Total Cable operating expenses of $850.0 million increased $53.6 million or 6.7% from $796.4 million in 2002.
The year-over-year increase in costs of Cable is directly attributable to the growth in Internet subscribers com-

bined with increasing penetration of digital subscribers.
Cable sales and marketing expense increased by $6.5 million or 7.7% in 2003 over 2002, primarily related to

increases in commissions and advertising costs related to Internet and digital sales. In addition, the current year’s sales
and marketing expenses include $1.8 million associated with the partial subsidy on the sale to customers of approxi-
mately 10,000 digital set-top terminals.

Cable operating, general and administrative expenses increased by $47.1 million or 6.6% in 2003 over 2002.
The increase related to increased costs of programming and Internet transit and e-mail costs, associated with the growth
in digital and Internet subscribers.

Total Rogers Video stores cost of sales increased by 7.1% in 2003 over 2002, primarily as a result of the chains’
growth from 272 stores at December 31, 2002 to 279 stores at December 31, 2003. Video sales and marketing expenses,
which include the cost of the stores, also increased by 6.1% in 2003 as compared to 2002 as a result of the increased num-
ber of stores. Video operating, general and administrative expenses increased by 18.9% as Video incurred higher costs
related to functions such as information technology and human resources.

Cable Operating Profit  
For 2003, consolidated Cable operating profit grew by $100.0 million, or 17.8%, over the same period in 2002, from
$563.5 million to $663.5 million. Consolidated cable operating profit increased by $97.8 million, or 18.0%, as the impact of
higher revenues from price increases and the increase in digital and Internet penetration exceeded the increasing costs
of supporting subscribers. Video stores operating profit increased by $2.2 million, or 10.2%, as revenue growth modestly
outpaced cost growth relating to operating efficiencies and improved margins on the sale of products.
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The revenue and expense changes described above led to an increase in the Cable operating margin from 40.5% in
2002 to 42.9% in 2003, reflecting the growth of Internet and the impact of cable rate increases, while video store operat-
ing margins grew to 8.4% from 8.2% in the prior year.

Cable Employees 
Remuneration represents a material portion of the expenses of Cable. Cable ended the year with approximately 5,470 FTEs,
an increase of 170 employees from the 5,300 at December 31, 2002. The increase in employees is entirely attributable to
growth at the Video stores as they opened new stores and continued to focus on sales of both cable and wireless services
and products in addition to its traditional video rental and sales business.

Total remuneration paid to Cable employees (both full and part-time) in 2003 was approximately $236.6 million, an
increase of $6.0 million or 2.6% from $230.6 million in the prior year.

Cable PP&E Expenditures 

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s )
Y e a r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 %  C h g

Customer premise equipment $ 181.6 $ 226.8 (19.9)
Scalable infrastructure 80.1 90.0 (11.0)
Line extensions 49.4 54.6 (9.5)
Upgrade and rebuild 114.4 185.2 (38.2)
Support capital 71.0 86.3 (17.7)

Cable PP&E expenditures 496.5 642.9 (22.8)
Video stores PP&E expenditures 13.1 8.0 63.8

Total PP&E expenditures $ 509.6 $ 650.9 (21.7)

The nature of the cable television business is such that the construction, rebuild and expansion of a cable system is highly
capital intensive. Cable categorizes its PP&E expenditures according to a standardized set of reporting categories that were
developed and agreed to by the U.S. cable television industry and which enable easier comparisons between the PP&E
expenditures of the companies. Under these industry definitions, PP&E expenditures fall into the following five categories:

• customer premise equipment (“CPE”), which includes the equipment and the associated installation costs;
• scalable infrastructure, which includes non-CPE costs to meet business growth and to provide service enhancements;
• line extensions, which includes network costs to enter new service areas; 
• upgrade and rebuild, which includes the costs to modify or replace existing coax and fibre networks; and
• support capital which includes the costs associated with the replacement or enhancement of non-network assets.

For 2003, PP&E expenditures decreased $141.3 million or 21.7% from 2002 to total $509.6 million. The significant factors dri-
ving the decline were the reduction in rebuild capital as the 750 MHz portion of the rebuild program was substantially
completed in 2003 and the reductions in customer premise equipment spending driven by the declining cost of digital ter-
minals and modems.

CABLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

The cable business is subject to several operating risks and uncertainties that may result in a material adverse effect on
the business and financial results as outlined below.

Fai lure to Achieve Expected Growth from New Products 
It is expected that a substantial portion of future growth will be achieved from new and advanced cable products,
Internet and IP products and services. Accordingly, Cable has invested significant capital resources in the development of
a technologically advanced cable network in order to support a wide variety of advanced cable products and services,
and has invested significant resources in the development of new services to be provided over the network. However,
consumers may not provide sufficient demand for the enhanced cable products and services that are offered. In addition,
any initiatives to increase prices for services may result in increased churn of subscribers and a reduction in the total num-
ber of subscribers. Alternatively, Cable may fail to anticipate demand for certain products and services, or may not be
able to offer or market these new retain existing subscribers while increasing pricing or products and services success-
fully to subscribers. Cable’s failure to attract subscribers, to retain existing subscribers while increasing pricing or new
products and services, or failure to keep pace with changing consumer preferences for cable and Internet services, could
slow revenue growth and have a material adverse effect on Cable’s business and financial condition.
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Cable plans to invest substantial  resources in connection with voice-over-cable telephony services,
and it  may not recover al l  or any of its  investment
In connection with Cable’s offering of telephony services, it anticipates that it will invest approximately $200 million of
upfront PP&E expenditures over the next two years, with approximately $140 million to $170 million of the investment
occurring in 2004. Once this initial platform is deployed, the additional PP&E expenditures associated with adding each
voice-over-cable telephony service subscriber, which includes uninterruptible backup powering at the home, is expected
to be in the range of $300 to $340 per subscriber addition. Cable does not expect to generate significant revenue, if any,
from this investment during the next few years. Cable also cannot predict whether its voice-over-cable telephony services
will be accepted by its customers or whether its voice-over-cable telephony services will be competitive, from a quality
and price perspective, with other telephony services that will be available to its customers. In addition, in deciding to
invest in voice-over-cable telephony services at this time, Cable has assumed that certain changes to applicable telephony
regulation will occur prior to the commercial launch of our telephony services. If these regulatory changes do not occur,
Cable may not offer voice-over-cable telephony services as currently contemplated. As a result of these uncertainties,
Cable may not recover any or all of its investment in telephony services, which could have a material adverse effect on its
business and financial condition.

Another subsidiary of the Company may offer telephony services to Cable’s customers,  which could
reduce or l imit Cable’s return on investment
Cable is currently refining its business strategies with respect to voice-over-cable telephony services. Together with the
Company, Cable is considering offering voice-over-cable telephony services through Rogers Telecom, which is another
wholly-owned RCI subsidiary. In the event that voice-over-cable telephony services are offered through Rogers Telecom,
Cable would likely incur most or all of the PP&E expenditures associated with developing a voice-over-cable telephony
network. If Rogers Telecom offers telephony services over Cable’s network, Cable might receive a lower return on our
investment than if it were to offer the service directly, without a commensurate reduction in its investment risk. As a
result, if Rogers Telecom offers voice-over-cable telephony services utilizing Cable’s network, Cable’s return on invest-
ment, with respect to telephony services, may be materially adversely affected.

Current and Future Competit ion 
Technological, regulatory and public policy trends have resulted in a more competitive environment for cable television
service providers, Internet Service Providers (ISPs) and video sales and rental services in Canada. Cable faces competition
from entities utilizing other communications technologies and may face competition from other technologies being
developed or to be developed in the future as discussed in “Cable Competition” above. Increased competition could
adversely affect Cable’s subscriber levels and future results of operations.

Dependency upon Digital  Programming 
As discussed in “Cable Competition” above, there have been a significant number of new digital specialty channels and
services that have become available in Canada since the latter portion of 2001. Cable believes that subscriber selection of
these digital specialty service channels, whether individually, in pre-set theme packs or in customer-designed channel
packages, will provide a consistent and growing stream of new revenue. In addition, the ability to attract subscribers to
digital cable service is enhanced by the expanded variety of programming choices that are currently available, including a
growing amount of HDTV and on-demand programming. If a number of programmers that supply digital specialty channels
face financial or operational difficulty sufficient to cease their operations, and the number of digital specialty channels
decreases significantly, it may have a significant negative impact on Cable’s financial results and financial position.

Abil ity to Forecast Future PP&E Expenditures 
An increasing component of Cable’s PP&E expenditures will be to support a series of more advanced services. These ser-
vices include Cable’s Internet, digital television, HDTV, VOD, telephony and other enhanced services that require
advanced subscriber equipment. A substantial component of the PP&E required to support these services will be demand
driven. As a result, forecasting PP&E expenditure levels for Cable will likely be less precise, which may increase the volatil-
ity of Cable’s operating results from period to period.

Dependency on Information Technology Systems 
The day-to-day operation of Cable’s business is highly dependent on information technology systems. An inability to
enhance Cable’s information technology systems to accommodate additional customer growth and support new products
and services could have an adverse impact on its ability to acquire new subscribers, manage subscriber churn, produce
accurate and timely subscriber bills, generate revenue growth and manage operating expenses, all of which could
adversely impact its financial results and financial position. In addition, Cable uses industry standard network and infor-
mation technology security, survivability and disaster recovery practices. Approximately 1,300 of its employees and
critical elements of its network infrastructure and information technology systems are located at either of two sites: the
corporate offices in Toronto and Cable’s Toronto operations facility. In the event that Cable cannot access these facilities,
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as a result of a natural or manmade disaster or otherwise, Cable’s operations may be significantly affected and may result
in a condition that is beyond the scope of its ability to recover without significant service interruption and commensurate
revenue and customer loss.

Potential  Impacts from Future Regulatory Decisions 
As discussed in “Overview of Government Regulation” above, the Company’s operations are subject to governmental
regulations relating to, among other things, licensing, competition, programming and foreign ownership. Changes in
industry regulations could affect the Cable’s results of operations and have an adverse effect on its business.

Competit ion in Multiple Dwell ing Units 
The Broadcasting Distribution Regulations (Canada) do not allow Cable or its competitors to obtain exclusive contracts in
buildings where it is technically feasible to install two or more systems. Approximately one-third of Cable’s basic cable
subscribers are located in Multiple Dwelling Units (“MDUs”). These regulations could lead to competitive subscriber losses
or pricing pressures in MDUs serviced by Cable which could result in a reduction of revenue.

Requirement to Provide Access to Cable Systems to Third Party ISPs 
Cable has been required by the CRTC to provide access to its cable systems by third party ISPs at mandated wholesale
rates. The CRTC has approved cost-based rates for third party Internet access service and is currently considering pro-
posed rates for third party interconnection and other outstanding terms and conditions of the service. As a result of the
requirement that Cable provide access to third party ISPs, it may experience increased competition at retail for high-speed
Internet subscribers. In addition, these third party providers utilize network capacity that Cable could otherwise use for
its own retail subscribers. One third party ISP has connected to Cable’s network on a wholesale basis and is providing
competing high-speed Internet services at retail. The increased competition and reduced network capacity could result in
a reduction of revenue.

Required Access to Support Structures and to Municipal  Rights of Way 
Cable requires access to support structures and to municipal rights of way in order to deploy facilities. Where access can-
not be secured, Cable may apply to the CRTC to obtain a right of access under the Telecommunications Act. However, in
2003, the courts have determined that the CRTC does not have the jurisdiction to establish the terms and conditions of
access to the poles of hydroelectric companies. As a result, the costs of obtaining access to support structures and munic-
ipal rights of way could be substantially increased on a prospective basis and for certain arrangements on a retroactive
basis. Cable, together with other Ontario cable companies, has applied to the Ontario Energy Board to request that it
assert jurisdiction over the fees paid by such companies to hydroelectric distributors. If the efforts to control the fees are
not successful, increased costs associated with obtaining access to support structures and municipal rights of way could
adversely affect Cable’s operating results.

Risk of Retransmission Royalty Rate Changes 
The Copyright Board of Canada (Copyright Board) is expected to issue a decision in the near future on the royalty rates
for the distribution of Canadian pay and specialty services, and U.S. specialty services, which will apply to the 2001–2004
period. It is also expected to issue a decision on the royalty rates for the retransmission of television and radio services
for the 2004–2008 period. As a result of these decisions, the royalties payable by Cable to copyright collectives could
increase. If they do, Cable will also be required to make retroactive payments to the collectives in connection with
2001–2003 royalties for the distribution of Canadian pay and specialty services, and U.S. specialty services. A requirement
to make retroactive payments would materially adversely impact Cable’s financial position and a rate increase for
2004–2008, if Cable is unable to pass the increased rates to its customers, could materially, adversely affect Cable’s oper-
ating results. 

Risk of Expanded Copyright Royalty Obligations for ISPs 
A 1999 Copyright Board decision that considered whether ISPs should be liable for the communication of music on the
Internet was appealed to the Federal Court of Appeal and, ultimately, to the Supreme of Court of Canada. The Supreme
of Court of Canada heard this appeal in December 2003 and is expected to issue its decision in the summer of 2004. Should
ISPs be found liable for the communication of music on the Internet, any subsequent royalty determined by the Copyright
Board (Canada) could have a material, negative impact on Cable.
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ROGERS WIRELESS 

WIRELESS OVERVIEW 

Rogers Wireless is a leading Canadian wireless communications service provider serving over 4.0 million customers at
December 31, 2003, including approximately 3.8 million wireless voice and data subscribers and approximately 241,000
one-way messaging subscribers. Wireless operates both a Global System for Mobile Communications/General Packet Radio
Service (“GSM/GPRS”) network and a seamless integrated Time Division Multiple Access (“TDMA”) and analog network. The
GSM/GPRS network provides coverage to approximately 93% of Canada’s population. The seamless TDMA and analog net-
work provides coverage to approximately 85% of Canada’s population in digital mode, and approximately 93% of Canada’s
population in analog mode. Rogers Wireless estimates that its 3.8 million wireless voice and data subscribers represent
approximately 12.9% of the Canadian population residing in its coverage area. Subscribers to Rogers Wireless services have
access to these services throughout the United States through its agreements with AT&T Wireless Services, Inc. (AT&T Wireless
or AWE) and other U.S. operators. The Company’s subscribers also have access to international service in over 110 countries,
including throughout Europe and Asia, through roaming agreements with other wireless communication providers.

At December 31, 2003, RCI, directly and indirectly, beneficially owned or controlled 62,820,371 Class A Multiple
Voting Shares of Rogers Wireless, representing 69.4% of the issued and outstanding Class A Multiple Voting Shares, and
16,317,644 Class B Restricted Voting Shares of Rogers Wireless, representing 31.7% of the issued and outstanding Class B
Restricted Voting Shares, which together represented 67.4% of the total votes attached to all voting shares of Rogers
Wireless currently issued and outstanding. At December 31, 2003, AWE indirectly beneficially owned or controlled
27,647,888 Class A Multiple Voting Shares, representing 30.6% of the issued and outstanding Class A Multiple Voting
Shares, and 20,946,284 Class B Restricted Voting Shares, representing 40.7% of the issued and outstanding Class B
Restricted Voting Shares, which together represented 31.1% of the total votes attached to all voting shares of Rogers
Wireless currently issued and outstanding. The remaining 14,166,250 Class B Restricted Voting Shares, representing 27.5%
of the issued and outstanding Class B Restricted Voting Shares and 1.5% of the total votes on selected matters, are publicly
held. The Class B Restricted Voting Shares are entitled to vote on all matters other than the appointment of the auditors
and generally on the election of directors. The Class B Restricted Shares are entitled to elect three directors, voting sepa-
rately as a class. As a percentage of the total number of shares of Rogers Wireless currently issued and outstanding, at
December 31, 2003, Rogers Wireless was 55.8% owned by RCI and 34.2% owned by AWE, with the balance publicly held.

Wireless Products and Services 
Wireless offers wireless voice, data and messaging services across Canada. Wireless voice services are available in either
postpaid or prepaid payment options. In addition, Wireless’ GSM/GPRS network provides customers with advanced high-
speed wireless data services, including mobile access to the Internet, e-mail, digital picture transmission and two-way
short messaging service (“SMS”).

Wireless Distr ibution Network 
Wireless markets its services through an extensive national network of over 7,000 dealer and retail locations across
Canada, which include approximately 2,500 locations selling handsets and prepaid cards and an additional approximate
4,500 locations selling the prepaid cards. Wireless’ nationwide distribution network includes an independent dealer net-
work, Rogers AT&T Wireless stores and kiosks, major retail chains such as RadioShack Canada Inc., Future Shop Ltd. and
Best Buy Canada, and convenience stores. Wireless also offers many of its products and services through a retail agree-
ment with Rogers Video that had 279 locations across Canada at December 31, 2003. Wireless also offers products and
services and customer service on its e-business Web site, www.rogers.com.

Wireless Networks 
Wireless is a facilities-based carrier operating its wireless networks over a broad, national coverage area with an owned
and leased fibre-optic and microwave transmission infrastructure. The seamless, integrated nature of Rogers Wireless’
networks enables subscribers to make and receive calls and to activate network features anywhere in the Wireless’ cov-
erage area and in the coverage area of its roaming partners as easily as if they were in their home area.

In June 2002, Wireless completed the deployment of its digital wireless GSM/GPRS network overlay in the
1900 megahertz (“MHz”) frequency bands. This coverage reaches 93% of the Canadian population. During 2003, Wireless
also completed the deployment of GSM/GPRS technology operating in the 850 MHz spectrum across its national footprint,
which expanded the network capacity, enhanced the quality of the GSM/GPRS network and enabled Wireless to operate
seamlessly between the two frequencies. Wireless’ GSM/GPRS network provides high-speed integrated voice and “always
on” packet data transmission service capabilities.

In late 2003, Wireless began trials of Enhanced Data Rates for GSM Evolution (“EDGE”) technology in the
Vancouver, British Columbia market. Accomplished by the installation of a network software upgrade, EDGE more than
triples the wireless data transmission speeds available on the Rogers Wireless network. Wireless intends to begin deploy-
ing EDGE across its national GSM/GPRS network during 2004.

Wireless’ integrated TDMA and analog network is operationally seamless in GSM/GPRS and TDMA digital function-
ality between the 850 MHz and 1900 MHz frequency bands, and between TDMA digital and analog modes at 850 MHz.
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WIRELESS STRATEGY OVERVIEW 

Wireless seeks to achieve profitable growth within the Canadian wireless communications industry. Wireless’ strategy is
designed to maximize its operating profit, as previously defined, and return on investment. The key elements of Rogers
Wireless’ strategy are as follows:

• focusing on data services that are attractive to youth and small and medium size businesses to optimize its customer mix;
• delivering on customer expectations by improving handset reliability, network quality and customer service while

reducing subscriber deactivations, or churn;
• increasing revenue from existing customers by utilizing analytical tools to target customers likely to purchase optional

services such as voicemail, calling line ID, text messaging and wireless Internet;
• enhancing its sales distribution channels to increase its focus on youth and business customers; 
• maintaining a technologically advanced, high quality and pervasive network by improving the quality of its GSM/GPRS

network and increasing capacity; and
• leveraging its relationships with the Rogers group of companies to provide bundled product and service offerings at

attractive prices, in addition to cross-selling, joint sales distribution and cost reduction initiatives through infrastruc-
ture sharing.

WIRELESS SEASONALITY 

Wireless’ operating results are subject to seasonal fluctuations that materially impact quarter-to-quarter operating
results. Accordingly, one quarter’s operating results are not necessarily indicative of what a subsequent quarter’s operat-
ing results will be. In particular, this seasonality generally results in relatively lower fourth quarter operating profits due
primarily to increased marketing and promotional expenditures and relatively higher levels of subscriber additions,
resulting in higher subscriber acquisition and activation-related expenses. Seasonal fluctuation also typically occurs in the
third quarter of each year because higher usage and roaming result in higher network revenue and operating profit.

RECENT WIRELESS INDUSTRY TRENDS 

Focus on Customer Retention 
The wireless communications industry’s current market penetration in Canada is approximately 42% of the population,
compared to approximately 54% in the U.S. and approximately 87% in the United Kingdom, and Wireless expects the
Canadian wireless industry to grow by 3 to 4 percentage points each year. While this will produce growth, the growth is
slowing compared to historical levels. Such slowing growth has been, and will continue, driving the increased focus on
customer satisfaction, the sale to customers of new data and voice service features and, primarily, customer retention.
Due to legislation in the U.S. and other countries regarding local number portability and the speculation that this approach
will be adopted by Canadian regulators, customer satisfaction and retention will become even more critical in the future.

Demand for Sophisticated Data Applications and Migration to Next Generation Wireless Technology
The ongoing development of wireless data transmission technologies has led manufacturers to create wireless devices
with increasingly advanced capabilities, including access to e-mail and other corporate information technology platforms,
news, sports, financial information and services, shopping services, and other functions. Increased demand for sophisti-
cated wireless services, especially data communications services, has led wireless providers to migrate towards the next
generation of digital voice and data networks. These networks are intended to provide wireless communications with
wireline quality sound, far higher data transmission speeds and streaming video capability. These networks are expected
to support a variety of data applications, including high-speed Internet access, multimedia services and seamless access
to corporate information systems, such as e-mail and purchasing systems. As discussed above, Wireless began trials of
EDGE technology in the Vancouver market late in 2003 and intends to begin deploying EDGE across the remainder of its
national GSM/GPRS network during 2004.

Development of Additional Technologies 
The development of additional technologies and their use by consumers may accelerate the widespread adoption of 3G
digital voice and data networks. One such example is Wi-Fi, which allows suitably equipped devices, such as laptop com-
puters and personal digital assistants, to connect to a wireless access point. The wireless connection is only effective
within a range of approximately 100 meters and at theoretical speeds of up to 54 megabits per second. To address these
limitations, Wi-Fi access points must be placed selectively in high-traffic locations where potential customers frequent and
have sufficient time to use the service. Technology companies are currently developing additional technologies designed
to improve Wi-Fi and otherwise utilize the higher data transmission speeds found in a third generation (“3G”) network.
Future enhancements to the range of Wi-Fi service, and the networking of Wi-Fi access points may provide additional
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opportunities for mobile wireless operators to deploy hybrid high-mobility 3G and limited-mobility Wi-Fi networks, each
providing capacity and coverage under the appropriate circumstances.

WIRELESS REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS 

Contribution Funding Mechanism 
In November 2000, the CRTC released a decision that fundamentally altered the mechanism used by the CRTC to collect
“contributions” to subsidize the provision of basic local wireline telephone service. Previously, the contribution was
levied on a per minute basis on long-distance services. Under the new contribution regime, which became effective
January 1, 2001, all telecommunications service providers, including wireless service providers such as Wireless, are
required to contribute a percentage of their adjusted Canadian telecommunications service revenues to a fund established
to subsidize the provision of basic local service. The percentage contribution levy was 4.5% in 2001 and 1.3% for 2002.
In 2003, an interim rate of 1.3% was set and in December 2003 the final rate was reduced to 1.1%, retroactive to January 1,
2003. The interim rate for 2004 has been set at 1.1% and the final rate for 2004 will not likely be set until December 2004.
The final rate for 2004 would likely be retroactive to January 1, 2004. (Refer to the “Wireless Risks and Uncertainties –
CRTC Revenue-based Contribution Scheme” section for further information on the CRTC contribution levy.)

Spectrum Fee Assessment Revision 
Late in 2002, Industry Canada released a consultation paper proposing a new methodology for calculating spectrum fee
assessments (excluding auction spectrum). Spectrum fees are currently assessed on a per radio channel basis in the case
of 850 MHz spectrum and a per site basis for 1900 MHz spectrum. The new regime proposes an annual cost per MHz per
population for both frequency ranges, and, as a result, fees will be based on the amount of spectrum held by the carrier,
regardless of the degree of deployment or the number of sites. The final rate established by Industry Canada in December
2003 is considerably lower than the rate initially proposed. The new rates come into effect on April 1, 2004. As a result of
the new methodology, there is a nominal increase in annual spectrum fees for Rogers Wireless that will be phased in over
a seven-year period to 2011.

Spectrum Licence Issues 
Late in 2003, Industry Canada released a policy document regarding a number of spectrum issues, including a discussion
on the existing spectrum cap, spectrum allocations for 3G networks and possible timing of a 3G spectrum auction.
Industry Canada has proposed a possible spectrum auction date of 2005 to 2006 for this spectrum. The FCC is expected to
auction similar spectrum in the 2004 to 2005 period. Wireless expects that Industry Canada will follow the spectrum allo-
cation of the FCC and will likely proceed with the auction in the 2005 to 2006 timeframe. A final determination on all these
matters is not expected until late 2004.

Fixed Wireless Spectrum Auction 
Industry Canada announced its intention to auction one block of 30 MHz of spectrum in the 2300 MHz band, as well as
three blocks of 50 MHz of spectrum and one block of 25 MHz of spectrum in the 3500 MHz band. The auction was com-
pleted on February 16, 2004. There were over 172 geographic licence areas in Canada for each available block. Successful
bidders for the spectrum had flexibility in determining the services to be offered and the technologies to be deployed in
the spectrum. Industry Canada expects that the spectrum will be used for point-to-point or point-to-multi-point broad-
band services. Rogers Wireless participated in this spectrum auction and as a result, has committed to acquire 33 blocks of
spectrum in various licence areas for an aggregate bid price of $5.9 million.

WIRELESS COMPETITION 

At the end of 2003, the highly competitive Canadian wireless industry had approximately 13.4 million wireless sub-
scribers. Competition for wireless subscribers is based on price, scope of services, service coverage, quality of service,
sophistication of wireless technology, breadth of distribution, selection of equipment, brand and marketing.

In the wireless voice and data market, Wireless competes primarily with three other wireless service providers,
and Wireless may in the future compete with other companies, including resellers, using existing or emerging wireless
technologies such as Wi-Fi or “hotspots”. Wireless messaging (or one-way paging) also competes with a number of local
and national paging providers.

In 2003, one of Wireless’ competitors, Microcell Telecommunications Inc. (“Microcell”), which operates under the
“Fido” brand, restructured its business and financing pursuant to the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act (Canada)
and has emerged from court protection with a significantly reduced debt load. This recapitalization may permit Microcell
to compete in the market more vigorously than it had prior to its restructuring.
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WIRELESS OPERATING AND FINANCIAL RESULTS

Year Ended December 31,  2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31,  2002 
For purposes of this discussion, revenue has been classified according to the following categories:

• postpaid voice and data, revenues generated principally from 
• monthly fees, 
• airtime and long-distance charges, 
• optional service charges, 
• system access fees, and 
• roaming charges; 

• prepaid revenues generated principally from the advance sale of airtime, usage and long-distance charges;
• one-way messaging revenues generated from monthly fees and usage charges; and 
• equipment sales revenue generated from the sale of hardware and accessories to independent dealers, agents and

retailers, and directly to subscribers through direct fulfillment by its customer service groups, Wireless’ Web site and
telesales.

Wireless’ operating expenses are segregated into three categories for assessing business performance:

• cost of equipment sales; 
• sales and marketing expenses which represent all costs to acquire new subscribers, such as advertising, commissions

paid to third parties for new activations, remuneration and benefits to sales and marketing employees as well as direct
overheads related to these activities; and

• operating, general and administrative expenses, which include all other expenses incurred to operate the business on a
day-to-day basis and to service existing subscriber relationships, including retention costs, and inter-carrier payments
to roaming partners and long-distance carriers and the CRTC contribution levy.

Summarized Wireless Financial  Results 

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s ,  e x c e p t  m a r g i n s )
Y e a r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 %  C h g

Operating revenue
Postpaid (voice and data)1 $ 1,921.0 $ 1,632.8 17.7
Prepaid 91.2 91.2 –
One-way messaging 27.6 35.2 (21.6)

Network revenue 2,039.8 1,759.2 16.0
Equipment revenue 242.4 206.7 17.3

Total operating revenue 2,282.2 1,965.9 16.1

Operating expenses
Cost of equipment sales 244.5 209.9 16.5
Sales and marketing expenses 522.7 462.8 12.9
Operating, general and administrative expenses 787.4 765.5 2.9

Total operating expenses 1,554.6 1,438.2 8.1

Operating profit2 $ 727.6 $ 527.7 37.9

Operating profit margin as % of network revenue2, 3 35.7% 30.0%
Property, plant and equipment expenditures $ 411.9 $ 564.6 (27.0)

1 T h e  p r i o r  p e r i o d  p r e s e n t a t i o n  o f  r e v e n u e  c a t e g o r i e s  h a s  b e e n  r e c l a s s i f i e d  t o  c o n f o r m  t o  t h e  c u r r e n t  p r e s e n t a t i o n .  S e e  t h e  d i s c u s s i o n  u n d e r
t h e  “ S u b s c r i b e r  C o u n t s ”  S e c t i o n  i n  K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s .

2 A s  d e f i n e d  i n  “ K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  a n d  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  M a r g i n ”  s e c t i o n .  

3 A s  d e f i n e d  i n  “ K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  a n d  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  M a r g i n ”  s e c t i o n  a n d  i s  c a l c u l a t e d  a s  f o l l o w s :

( $  m i l l i o n s ) 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

N e t w o r k  r e v e n u e $ 2 , 0 3 9 . 8 $ 1 , 7 5 9 . 2

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t $ 7 2 7 . 6 $ 5 2 7 . 7

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 3 $ 7 2 7 . 6  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 2 , 0 3 9 . 8  =  3 5 . 7 %
O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 2 $ 5 2 7 . 7  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 1 , 7 5 7 . 2  =  3 0 . 0 %
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Wireless Operating Highlights and Signif icant Developments of 2003 

• Network revenue increased 16.0% and operating profit increased 37.9% compared to 2002. Operating profit margin
based on network revenue rose by 570 basis points year-over-year to 35.7%.

• 2003 PP&E expenditures decreased by $152.7 million, or 27.0%, over 2002 due to the substantial completion of the initial
roll-out of the nationwide GSM/GPRS network in 2002.

• Postpaid voice and data ARPU increased year-over-year by $1.60, or 2.9%, to $57.55, reflecting the continued activation
and retention of higher valued customers, increased penetration of enhanced services and the continued growth of
wireless data and roaming revenues.

• Postpaid voice and data subscriber net additions of 400,200 were higher by 19.3% versus the 335,400 net additions in
2002, reflecting both higher levels of gross activations and reduced churn levels. Average monthly postpaid churn for
the year declined to 1.88% from 1.98% in the previous year.

• Revenues from wireless data services, which grew 125.0% year-over-year to $67.9 million from $30.2 million in the prior
year, represented approximately 3.3% of network revenue compared to 1.7% in 2002.

• Wireless completed its deployment of GSM/GPRS technology operating in the 850 MHz spectrum range across its
national footprint, expanding the capacity and also enhancing the quality of the GSM/GPRS network. Rogers Wireless
also began trials of EDGE technology in the Vancouver market at the end of 2003 which, accomplished by the installa-
tion of a network software upgrade, more than triples the wireless data transmission speeds available on its network.

• On March 8, 2004, Wireless will begin transitioning its branding to Rogers Wireless from Rogers AT&T Wireless, bringing
greater clarity to the Rogers brand in Canada. As a result, Wireless recorded a one-time, non-cash charge in 2003 of
approximately $20.0 million to reflect the accelerated amortization of the associated brand licence costs.

Wireless Network Revenue and Subscribers 

( S u b s c r i b e r  s t a t i s t i c s  i n  t h o u s a n d s ,  e x c e p t  A R P U ,  c h u r n  a n d  u s a g e )
Y e a r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 C h g %  C h g

Postpaid (Voice and Data)1

Gross additions 1,021.5 910.7 110.8 12.2
Net additions 400.2 335.4 64.8 19.3
Total subscribers 3,029.6 2,629.3 400.3 15.2
ARPU ($)3 57.55 55.95 1.60 2.9
Average monthly usage (minutes) 361 324 37 11.4
Churn (%) 1.88 1.98 (0.10) (5.1)

Prepaid
Gross additions 257.4 243.3 14.1 5.8
Net additions (losses) 2.0 44.2 (42.2) (95.5)
Adjustment to subscriber base2 (20.9) – (20.9) –
Total subscribers2 759.8 778.7 (18.9) (2.4)
ARPU ($)3 10.08 10.17 (0.09) (0.9)
Churn (%) 2.82 2.23 0.59 26.5

Total – Postpaid and Prepaid
Gross additions 1,278.9 1,154.0 124.9 10.8
Net additions 402.2 379.6 22.6 6.0
Adjustment to subscriber base2 (20.9) – (20.9) –
Total subscribers2 3,789.4 3,408.0 381.4 11.2
ARPU (blended)($)3 47.42 45.20 2.22 4.9

One-Way Messaging
Gross additions 42.5 61.0 (18.5) (30.3)
Net additions (61.1) (68.3) 7.2 (10.5)
Total subscribers 241.3 302.3 (61.0) (20.2)
ARPU ($)3 8.40 8.79 (0.39) (4.4)
Churn (%) 3.13 3.20 (0.07) (2.2)

1 T h e  2 0 0 2  p r e s e n t a t i o n  o f  s u b s c r i b e r s  a n d  r e v e n u e  h a s  b e e n  r e c l a s s i f i e d  t o  c o n f o r m  t o  t h e  c u r r e n t  p r e s e n t a t i o n  a s  d i s c u s s e d  i n  “ K e y
P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  S u b s c r i b e r  C o u n t s ”  a b o v e .

2 W i r e l e s s ’  p o l i c y  i s  t o  t r e a t  p r e p a i d  s u b s c r i b e r s  w i t h  n o  u s a g e  f o r  a  s i x  m o n t h  p e r i o d  a s  a  r e d u c t i o n  o f  t h e  p r e p a i d  s u b s c r i b e r  b a s e .  A s  p a r t
o f  a  r e v i e w  o f  p r e p a i d  s u b s c r i b e r  u s a g e  i n  t h e  s e c o n d  q u a r t e r  o f  2 0 0 3 ,  W i r e l e s s  d e t e r m i n e d  t h a t  a  n u m b e r  o f  s u b s c r i b e r s ,  t o t a l i n g  2 0 , 9 0 0 ,
w h i c h  o n l y  h a d  n o n - r e v e n u e  u s a g e  ( i . e .  c a l l s  t o  c u s t o m e r  s e r v i c e )  o v e r  t h e  p a s t  s e v e r a l  q u a r t e r s ,  w e r e  b e i n g  i n c l u d e d  i n  t h e  p r e p a i d  s u b -
s c r i b e r  b a s e .  W i r e l e s s  d e t e r m i n e d  t h a t  t h e s e  s u b s c r i b e r s  s h o u l d  n o t  h a v e  b e e n  i n c l u d e d  i n  t h e  p r e p a i d  s u b s c r i b e r  b a s e  a n d ,  a s  s u c h ,  m a d e
a n  a d j u s t m e n t  t o  t h e  o p e n i n g  p r e p a i d  s u b s c r i b e r  b a s e .  W i r e l e s s  h a s  a m e n d e d  i t s  p o l i c y  t o  r e f l e c t  a l l  p r e p a i d  s u b s c r i b e r s  w i t h  n o  r e v e n u e -
g e n e r a t i n g  u s a g e  i n  a  s i x  m o n t h  p e r i o d  a s  d e a c t i v a t i o n s .

3 S e e  “ K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  A v e r a g e  R e v e n u e  P e r  S u b s c r i b e r ”  s e c t i o n .  
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Wireless Network Revenue 
Wireless network revenue in 2003, which accounted for 89.4% of Wireless’ total revenue, was $2,039.8 million, an increase
of 16.0% from 2002. This revenue growth reflects the 11.2% increase in the number of wireless voice and data subscribers
over fiscal 2002 and a 4.9% year-over-year increase in blended postpaid and prepaid ARPU.

Postpaid voice and data subscriber additions in 2003 represented 79.9% of total gross activations and close to
100% of total net additions. Wireless continued its strategy of targeting higher value postpaid subscribers and selling its
prepaid handsets at higher price points which contributed significantly to the mix of postpaid versus prepaid subscribers.

The 2.9% increase in average monthly revenue per postpaid voice and data subscriber compared to the previous
year reflected the continued activation and retention of higher valued customers, increased penetration of enhanced ser-
vices, and the continued growth of wireless data and roaming revenues. The growth in data revenues from $30.2 million
to $67.9 million represented approximately 63.0% of the 2.9% ARPU increase. Prepaid ARPU remained relatively flat on a
year-over-year basis.

The continuing trend to lower postpaid voice and data subscriber churn, as reflected in the 1.88% rate in 2003 ver-
sus 1.98% in 2002, is directly related to both Wireless’ strategy of acquiring higher value, more stable customers on longer
term contracts and an enhanced focus on customer retention. Wireless’ focus on customer retention aims to ensure that
customers receive responsive, quality service at every point of contact with Wireless. Wireless attributes the increase in
prepaid churn to 2.82% in the current year to the impact of competitive prepaid offers.

One-way messaging (or “paging”) subscriber churn has remained relatively stable on a year over year basis declin-
ing to 3.13% in 2003 from 3.20% in the previous year. With 241,300 paging subscribers, Wireless continues to view paging
as a profitable but mature business segment and recognizes that churn will likely continue at relatively high rates as one-
way messaging subscribers increasingly migrate to two-way messaging and converged voice and data services.

Wireless Equipment Sales Revenue 
In 2003, revenue from wireless voice, data and messaging equipment sales was $242.4 million, up $35.7 million, or 17.3%,
from the prior year. The increase in equipment revenues reflects both the higher cost of more sophisticated handsets and
devices and the significantly higher volume of postpaid voice and data customer gross additions. However, this increase
in sales does not materially affect Wireless’ operating profit as Wireless generally sells equipment to distribution at a
price approximating cost to facilitate competitive pricing at the retail level.

Wireless Operating Expenses 

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s ,  e x c e p t  p e r  s u b s c r i b e r  s t a t i s t i c s )
Y e a r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 %  C h g

Operating expenses1  2

Cost of equipment sales $ 244.5 $ 209.9 16.5
Sales and marketing3 522.7 462.8 12.9
Operating, general and administrative expenses 787.4 765.5 2.9

Total operating expenses $ 1,554.6 $ 1,438.2 8.1

Average monthly operating expense per subscriber before sales, 
marketing and equipment margin1  2 $ 17.22 $ 18.16 (5.2)

Sales and marketing expenses per gross subscriber addition 
(including equipment margin)1 $ 397 $ 384 3.4

1 T h e  2 0 0 2  p r e s e n t a t i o n  h a s  b e e n  r e c l a s s i f i e d  t o  c o n f o r m  t o  t h e  c u r r e n t  p r e s e n t a t i o n .  C u s t o m e r  r e t e n t i o n  c o s t s  a r e  i n c l u d e d  i n  o p e r a t i n g ,
g e n e r a l  a n d  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  c o s t s .

2 O p e r a t i n g  e x p e n s e s  f o r  t h e  y e a r  e n d e d  D e c e m b e r  2 0 0 2  e x c l u d e  t h e  b e n e f i t  o f  t h e  c h a n g e  i n  t h e  e s t i m a t e  o f  s a l e s  t a x  a n d  C R T C  c o n t r i b u t i o n
l i a b i l i t i e s  i t e m s  o f  $ 1 2 . 3  m i l l i o n .

3 S a l e s  a n d  m a r k e t i n g  e x p e n s e s  e x c l u d e  m a r g i n  o n  e q u i p m e n t  s a l e s .  

Total operating expenses were $1,554.6 million, up 8.1% from $1,438.2 million in 2002. Cost of equipment sales increased
by approximately $34.6 million as a result of increased equipment revenues. These costs do not materially affect Wireless’
operating profit as Wireless generally sells equipment to distributors at a price approximating cost to facilitate competi-
tive pricing at the retail level.

Operating, general and administrative expenses increased by $21.9 million or 2.9% in 2003 over 2002. The increase
is attributable to increased retention spending, offset by savings related to more favourable roaming arrangements and
operating efficiencies across various functions. Retention spending includes spending on retention programs which
include equipment upgrades, costs associated with Wireless’ customer loyalty and renewal programs and payments to
Wireless’ distributors for ongoing service of Wireless’ existing customers. Wireless is continually focused on operating
efficiencies and cost reduction programs which in turn have served to offset the impact of the growth in the subscriber
base, allowing operating profit margins to expand.
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Average monthly operating expense per subscriber, excluding sales and marketing expenses and equipment cost
of sales, decreased $0.94, or 5.2%, to $17.22 in 2003, compared to $18.16 in 2002. This year-over-year reduction reflects
scale economies from the larger subscriber base, roaming cost reductions, and improved efficiencies in call centre and
network maintenance operations offset by increased costs related to customer retention.

At December 31, 2003, Wireless, as a result of its sales and retention strategies, had approximately 67% of its post-
paid wireless voice and data subscriber base under contracts with an initial term of greater than 12 months, up from 61%
at December 31, 2002.

Wireless Sales and Marketing Expenses 
The 12.9% year-over-year increase in total sales and marketing expenses was due to higher variable acquisition costs
associated with the 12.2% year-over-year increase in the number of postpaid voice and data gross additions. In addition,
variable sales and marketing expenses increased in line with Wireless’ strategy to attract higher value business customers
and customers on longer term contracts. Wireless also invested more in advertising and promotion on a year-over-year
basis as it emphasized the value proposition related to data and other product offerings. Sales and marketing costs per
wireless subscriber gross addition were $397, an increase of $13, or 3.4%, from $384 in 2002 attributable to increases in
equipment subsidies required to match competitive offers.

Wireless Operating Profit  
Revenue increased at a faster rate than expenses, resulting in operating profit growth of $199.9 million, or 37.9%, to
$727.6 million in 2003 from $527.7 million in 2002. Operating profit as a percentage of network revenue, or operating
profit margin, improved in 2003 to 35.7% from 30.3% in 2002.

Wireless PP&E Expenditures 
PP&E expenditures totaled $411.9 million in 2003, a decrease of $152.7 million, or 27.0%, from $564.6 million in 2002.
Network related PP&E expenditures of $338.2 million included $251.3 million for capacity expansion of the GSM/GPRS net-
work and transmission infrastructure and $66.1 million for expanded coverage as well as construction of new sites for
improved coverage in existing service areas. Wireless has continued to construct the infrastructure necessary for
enhanced digital coverage and lower cost incremental capacity by adding channels on existing sites. The cost to complete
the deployment of GSM/GPRS equipment in the 850 MHz frequency band that was initiated during the fourth quarter of
2002 and completed in late 2003 is included in the network capacity expansion costs above. The remaining balance of
$20.8 million in network PP&E expenditures related primarily to technical upgrade projects, the operational support sys-
tems, and the addition of new services. Other PP&E expenditures consisted of $51.1 million for information technology
initiatives, $8.7 million for the completion of the expansion of Wireless’ headquarters facilities, and $13.9 million for call
centres and other facilities and equipment.

Wireless Employees 
Remuneration represents a material portion of Wireless’ expenses. Wireless ended 2003 with approximately 2,360 full-
time equivalent employees, an increase of 40 from 2,320 at December 31, 2002. The increase in staff was primarily
concentrated in the areas of sales and marketing as Wireless focused its subscriber acquisition programs and service and
retention efforts on customer segments that would yield greater value to Wireless.

Total remuneration paid to Wireless employees (both full and part-time) in 2003 was approximately $164.2 million,
an increase of $5.3 million or 3.3% from $158.9 million in the prior year.

WIRELESS RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

Wireless’ business is subject to several operating risks and uncertainties that could result in a material adverse effect on
its business and financial results as outlined below.

Risk of Insuffic ient Future Demand for Advanced Services 
It is expected that a substantial portion of future revenue growth will be achieved from new and advanced wireless voice
and data transmission services. Accordingly and as discussed above, Wireless has invested and continues to invest signif-
icant capital resources in the development of its GSM/GPRS network in order to offer these services, and also intends to
invest in capital resources in the deployment of EDGE technology across its GSM/GPRS network. However, consumers may
not provide sufficient demand for these advanced wireless services. Alternatively, Rogers Wireless may fail to anticipate
demand for certain products and services, or may not be able to offer or market these new products and services success-
fully to subscribers. Rogers Wireless’ failure to attract subscribers to new products and services, or failure to keep pace
with changing consumer preferences for wireless services, would slow revenue growth and have a material adverse
effect on Wireless’ business and financial condition.
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Potential  Competit iveness or Compatibi l ity of EDGE technology 
The deployment by Rogers Wireless of EDGE technology may not be competitive or compatible with other technologies.
While Rogers Wireless and AWE have selected this technology as an evolutionary step from their current to future net-
works, there are other competing technologies that are being developed and implemented by the wireless industry.
None of the competing technologies are directly compatible with each other. If the next generation technology that
gains the most widespread acceptance is not compatible with Rogers Wireless’ networks, competing services based on
such alternative technology may be preferable to subscribers.

Potential  Impact of Change in Foreign Ownership Legislation 
Wireless could face increased competition if, as discussed in “Overview of Government Regulation and Regulatory
Developments” above, there is a removal or relaxation of the limits on foreign ownership and control of wireless
licences. Legislative action to remove or relax these limits could result in foreign telecommunication companies entering
the Canadian wireless communications market, through the acquisition of either wireless licences or of a holder of wire-
less licences. Such companies could have significantly greater capital resources than Wireless. Wireless supports removal
of the limits on foreign ownership and control and believes that removal would give Wireless greater access to lower
cost capital.

Potential  Effect of Wireless Industry Pric ing 
Aggressive pricing by industry participants in previous years caused significant reductions in Canadian wireless communi-
cations pricing. Rogers Wireless believes that competitive pricing is a factor in causing churn. It cannot predict the extent
of further price competition and customer churn into the future, but it anticipates some ongoing re-pricing of its existing
subscriber base, as lower pricing offered to attract new customers is extended to or requested by existing customers.
In addition, as wireless penetration of the population deepens, new wireless customers may generate lower average
monthly revenues than Rogers Wireless’ existing customers, which could slow revenue growth.

Wireless cannot anticipate what, if any, impact new wireless communications services or lower prices could have
on overall market growth. It intends to compete vigorously for all customer segments, focusing on the business, con-
sumer and youth segments, and in all Canadian geographic markets based on the strengths of its extensive networks and
broad digital services coverage, strong brands and wide distribution presence.

CRTC Revenue-Based Contribution Scheme 
Commencing January 1, 2001, Rogers Wireless was required to make payments equal to an annual percentage of adjusted
revenues in accordance with the new revenue-based contribution scheme. The percentage of adjusted revenues payable
is revised annually by the CRTC. The CRTC has announced a contribution levy of 1.1% as both the final rate for 2003 and
the interim rate for 2004. While the rate has been reduced modestly over each of the last two years, Wireless cannot
anticipate the final rate for 2004 or the rates for future years. An increase in the rate would have a negative impact on
operating profits.

3G Spectrum Allocation 
As discussed in “Overview of Government Regulation and Regulatory Developments” above, Industry Canada has released
a proposed policy regarding 3G spectrum allocation and a proposed timeframe for a 3G spectrum auction in the 2005 to
2006 timeframe. The spectrum frequency range for 3G has not been fully resolved but will likely bear a close resemblance
to the U.S. allocation. Should the cost of acquiring such spectrum in the proposed auction be greater than currently antic-
ipated by Wireless, this could create a significant capital funding requirement for Wireless.

Capital  Resource Requirement 
The operation of Wireless’ wireless communications network, the marketing and distribution of its products and services,
and the continued evolution of network technology will continue to require significant capital resources. Wireless may
not generate or have access to sufficient capital to fund these expected future requirements.

Alleged Links Between Radio Frequency Emissions and Health Concerns 
Occasional media and other reports have highlighted alleged links between radio frequency emissions from wireless
handsets and various health concerns, including cancer, and interference with various medical devices, including hearing
aids and pacemakers. While there are no definitive reports or studies stating that radio frequency emissions are directly
attributable to such health issues, concerns over radio frequency emissions may discourage the use of wireless handsets
or expose Wireless to potential litigation. It is also possible that future regulatory actions may result in the imposition of
more restrictive standards on radio frequency emissions from low powered devices such as wireless handsets. Wireless is
unable to predict the nature or extent of any such potential restrictions.
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Legislation on Wireless Handset Usage While Driving 
Certain provincial government bodies are considering legislation to restrict or prohibit wireless handset usage while dri-
ving. Legislation banning the use of hand-held phones, but permitting the use of hands-free devices, was passed in
Newfoundland in late 2002, with implementation in April 2003. Legislation has been proposed in other jurisdictions to
restrict or prohibit the use of wireless handsets while driving motor vehicles. Some studies have indicated that certain
aspects of using wireless handsets while driving may impair the attention of drivers in various circumstances, making
accidents more likely. If laws are passed prohibiting or restricting the use of wireless handsets while driving, it could
have the effect of reducing subscriber usage. Additionally, concerns over the use of wireless handsets while driving could
potentially lead to litigation relating to accidents, deaths or bodily injuries.

Dependence on Infrastructure and Handset Vendors 
Wireless has relationships with a small number of key network infrastructure and handset vendors. Wireless does not
have operational or financial control over its key suppliers and has limited influence over how they conduct their busi-
nesses. Failure of one of Wireless’ network infrastructure suppliers could delay programs to provide additional network
capacity or new capabilities and services across the business. Although Wireless has not been materially affected by sup-
ply problems in the past, handsets and network infrastructure suppliers may, among other things, extend delivery times,
raise prices and limit supply due to their own shortages and business requirements. If these suppliers fail to deliver prod-
ucts and services on a timely basis, or fail to develop and deliver handsets that satisfy Wireless’ customers’ demands, it
may have a negative impact on Wireless’ business, financial condition and results of operations. Similarly, interruptions
in the supply of equipment for Wireless’ networks could impact the quality of its service or impede network development
and expansion.

Disaster Recovery 
Rogers Wireless uses industry standard network and information technology security, survivability and disaster recovery
practices. Security breaches and disasters may occur that are beyond the scope of Rogers Wireless’ ability to recover with-
out significant service interruption and commensurate revenue and customer loss.

Wireless Local  Number Portabil ity 
Over the past several years, certain countries in Europe and Asia have implemented wireless local number portability
(“LNP”). In November 2003, as mandated by the Federal government, the U.S. wireless industry began the implementation
of wireless LNP. Wireless LNP involves porting wireless phone numbers to other wireless companies, but can also involve
porting phone numbers between wireline and wireless companies. The implementation of wireless LNP systems and
capabilities represents significant costs for the carriers in a country to deploy. There has been no regulatory mandate for
the implementation of wireless LNP in Canada. However, if wireless LNP were to be required, this would require carriers,
including Wireless, to incur implementation costs which could be significant and once implemented could cause an
increase in churn among Canadian wireless carriers, including Rogers Wireless.

AWE Investment in Wireless 
At December 31, 2003, Wireless was 34.2% owned by AWE. AWE has recently reported that it is exploring its strategic
alternatives, including a possible sale of its interest in Wireless. Any decision by AWE or a successor company to sell all or
a portion of its shares in Wireless is subject to the terms of a shareholders agreement, as described above in the
“Intercompany and Related Party Transactions – AT&T Arrangements – Shareholders Agreement” section. Wireless does
not know AWE’s intentions with respect to its investment in Rogers Wireless. Any change in the AWE relationship could
result in changes to, including termination of, the mobile wireless marketing, technology and services agreement or
roaming agreement, as described in “Intercompany and Related Party Transactions – AT&T Arrangements”.

Regulatory Risks 
As discussed in “Overview of Government Regulation and Regulating Developments” above, Wireless’ operations are
subject to government regulation that could have adverse effects on its business.

Information Technology Systems 
The day-to-day operation of Wireless’ business is highly dependent on information technology systems. An inability to
enhance its information technology systems to accommodate additional customer growth and support new products and
services could have an adverse impact on its ability to acquire new subscribers, manage subscriber churn, produce accu-
rate and timely subscriber bills, generate revenue growth and manage operating expenses, all of which could adversely
impact Wireless’ financial results and financial position.

In addition, Wireless uses standard network and information technology security, survivability and disaster recov-
ery practices. Approximately 1,400 of Wireless’ employees and critical elements of Wireless’ network infrastructure and
information technology systems are located at the Rogers corporate office in Toronto. In the event that the Company
cannot access these facilities, as a result of a natural or manmade disaster or otherwise, its operations and financial
results could be adversely impacted.
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ROGERS MEDIA 

MEDIA OVERVIEW 

Rogers Media holds Rogers’ radio and television broadcasting operations, its consumer and trade publishing operations
and its televised home shopping service. The Broadcasting group (“Broadcasting”) comprises 43 radio stations across
Canada (32 FM and 11 AM radio stations), two multicultural television stations in Ontario (OMNI.1 and OMNI.2), an 80%
interest in a sports specialty service licenced to provide regional sports programming across Canada (“Rogers Sportsnet”),
and Canada’s only nationally televised shopping service (“The Shopping Channel”). Broadcasting holds minority interests
in several Canadian specialty television services, including Viewers Choice Canada, Outdoor Life Network (“OLN”), TechTV
Canada, The Biography Channel Canada, MSNBC Canada and certain other minority interest investments. The Publishing
group (“Publishing”) produces approximately 70 consumer magazines and trade and professional publications and direc-
tories. In addition to its more traditional broadcast and print media platforms, the Media group also delivers content over
the Internet relating to many of its individual broadcasting and publishing properties.

MEDIA STRATEGY OVERVIEW 

Media seeks to maximize revenues, operating profit and return on invested capital across each of its businesses. Media’s
strategies to achieve this objective include:

• focusing on specialized content and audiences through continued development of its portfolio of specialty channel
investments, radio properties and publications;

• continuing to leverage its strong brand names to increase advertising and subscription revenues, assisted by the cross-
promotion of its properties both across its media formats and in association with the “Rogers” brand; and

• focusing on growth and continuing to cross-sell advertising and share content across its properties and over its multiple
media platforms.

MEDIA SEASONALITY 

Media’s operating results are subject to seasonal fluctuations that materially impact quarter-to-quarter operating results.
As a result, one quarter’s operating results are not necessarily indicative of what a subsequent quarter’s operating results
will be. The fourth quarter is generally the strongest quarter due to increased consumer activity and subscriber activa-
tions, as well as greater seasonal advertising activity. Media seasonality is a result of fluctuations in advertising and
related retail cycles as they relate to periods of increased consumer activity.

RECENT MEDIA INDUSTRY TRENDS

Increased Radio/TV Ownership Fragmentation 
In recent years, Canadian radio and television broadcasters have had to operate in increasingly fragmented markets.
Canadian consumers have a growing number of radio and television services available to them, providing them with an
increasing number of different programming formats. In the radio industry, since the introduction of its Commercial
Radio Policy in 1998, the CRTC has licenced 48 new radio stations through competitive processes in markets across Canada.
In that time, the CRTC also has licenced a large number of additional new FM stations through AM to FM station conver-
sions or other non-competitive processes for stations in smaller or unserved markets. In the television industry, the CRTC
has licenced a number of new, over-the-air television stations and a significant number of new digital Category 1 and
Category 2 services. The new services and the new formats combine to fragment the market for existing radio and televi-
sion operators.

MEDIA REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS 

The CRTC has announced that a further review of the Commercial Radio Policy will not occur until 2005. In the interim, the
CRTC will review satellite radio issues, including the establishment of a satellite radio policy and licensing framework in
response to a filing for satellite radio applications in Canada.

The CRTC has reviewed its exemption order regarding Teleshopping Programming Undertakings such as The Shop-
ping Channel, and has left the order substantially unchanged, including Canadian ownership requirements applicable to
all other licenced services.

The CRTC has released its digital television policy, covering issues such as priority carriage and simultaneous sub-
stitution. Media believes that the CRTC policy provides an effective framework for continued growth and development of
digital television broadcasting in Canada.
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MEDIA COMPETITION 

Broadcasting’s radio stations compete with the other stations in their respective market areas as well as with other
media such as newspapers, television, outdoor advertising, direct mail marketing and the Internet.

Competition within the radio broadcasting industry occurs primarily in individual market areas, amongst individ-
ual market stations. On a national level, Broadcasting competes generally with other larger radio operators such as Corus
Entertainment Inc., Standard Radio Inc. and CHUM Limited, each of which owns and operates radio station clusters in mar-
kets across Canada. Additionally, over the past several years the CRTC has granted additional licences in various markets
for the development of new radio stations which in turn provide additional competition to the established stations in the
respective markets.

OMNI.1 and OMNI.2 compete principally for viewers and advertisers with television stations that broadcast in
Ontario, primarily in the Toronto and southern Ontario markets. These include Canadian television stations in the Greater
Toronto area as well as U.S. border stations.

Rogers Sportsnet competes for viewers principally with The Sports Network (“TSN”), Headline Sports and sports
programs carried by other Canadian and U.S. television stations and networks.

On a product level, The Shopping Channel competes with various retail stores, catalog retailers, Internet retailers
and direct mail retailers. On a broadcasting level, The Shopping Channel competes with other television channels for
viewer attention and loyalty, particularly infomercials selling products on television.

The Canadian magazine industry is highly-competitive, competing for both readers and advertisers. This competition
comes from other Canadian magazines and from foreign, mostly American, titles that sell in significant quantities in Canada.
In the past, the competition from foreign titles has been restricted to competition for readers as there have been restrictions
on foreigners operating in the Canadian magazine advertising market. These restrictions were significantly reduced as a
result of the enactment in 1999 of the Foreign Publishers Advertising Act (Canada) and amendments to the Canadian Tax
Act. Increasing competition from American magazines for advertising revenues is expected in the coming years.

MEDIA OPERATING AND FINANCIAL RESULTS

Year Ended December 31,  2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31,  2002 
For discussion purposes, Media’s financial results have been divided into “Publishing”, “Radio”, “Television”, “The Shop-
ping Channel”, and “Other”, which includes corporate expenses. Publishing includes Media’s consumer and business
publications, as well as its database and medical trade show businesses. Radio includes 43 AM and FM radio stations, TV
listings and its 50% share in Canadian Broadcast Sales (“CBS”). Television includes the results of its two OMNI TV channels
and the Company’s 80% interest in Rogers Sportsnet. The Shopping Channel is Media’s televised home-shopping service.

Media’s revenues consist of: 

• advertising revenues, 
• circulation and subscription revenues, and 
• retail product sales. 

Media’s operating expenses consist of: 

• cost of sales which is composed of the cost of retail product at The Shopping Channel, 
• sales and marketing expenses, and 
• operating, general and administrative expenses which include programming costs, production expenses, circulation

expenses and other back-office type support functions.
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Summarized Media Financial  Results 

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s ,  e x c e p t  m a r g i n s )
Y e a r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 %  C h g

Operating revenue
Publishing $ 289.9 $ 291.6 (0.6)
Radio 177.2 166.2 6.6
Television 178.0 151.3 17.6
The Shopping Channel 210.5 202.2 4.1
Corporate items, eliminations and other (0.6) (0.5) 20.0

Total operating revenue 855.0 810.8 5.5
Operating expenses

Cost of sales 131.5 127.6 3.1
Sales and marketing 175.7 176.6 (0.5)
Operating, general and administrative 441.1 419.0 5.3

Total operating expenses 748.3 723.2 3.5
Operating profit1

Publishing 29.4 27.7 6.1
Radio 38.7 42.0 (7.9)
Television 27.7 7.7 –
The Shopping Channel 19.2 18.4 4.4
Corporate items, eliminations and other (8.3) (8.2) (0.1)

Total operating profit $ 106.7 $ 87.6 21.8
Property, plant and equipment expenditures $ 41.3 $ 42.7 (3.3)
Operating profit as a percentage of revenue1

Publishing 10.1% 9.5% 6.3
Radio 21.8% 25.3% (13.8)
Television 15.6% 5.1% –
The Shopping Channel 9.1% 9.1% –

Total operating profit as a percentage of revenue1 12.5% 10.8% 15.7

1 A s  d e f i n e d  i n  t h e  “ K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  a n d  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  M a r g i n ”  s e c t i o n  a n d  i s  c a l c u l a t e d  a s  f o l l o w s :

P u b l i s h i n g  o p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n :  
( $  m i l l i o n s ) 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

R e v e n u e $ 2 8 9 . 9 $ 2 9 1 . 6

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t $ 2 9 . 4 $ 2 7 . 7

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 3 $ 2 9 . 4  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 2 8 9 . 9  =  1 0 . 1 %
O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 2 $ 2 7 . 7  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 2 9 1 . 6  =  9 . 5 %

R a d i o  o p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n :  
( $  m i l l i o n s ) 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

R e v e n u e $ 1 7 7 . 2 $ 1 6 6 . 2

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t $ 3 8 . 7 $ 4 2 . 0

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 3 $ 3 8 . 7  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 1 7 7 . 2  =  2 1 . 8 %
O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 2 $ 4 2 . 0  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 1 6 6 . 2  =  2 5 . 3 %

T e l e v i s i o n  o p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n :  
( $  m i l l i o n s ) 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

R e v e n u e $ 1 7 8 . 0 $ 1 5 1 . 3

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t $ 2 7 . 7 $ 7 . 7

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 3 $ 2 7 . 7  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 1 7 8 . 0  =  1 5 . 6 %
O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 2 $ 7 . 7  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 1 5 1 . 3  =  5 . 1 %

T h e  S h o p p i n g  C h a n n e l  o p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n :  
( $  m i l l i o n s ) 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

R e v e n u e $ 2 1 0 . 5 $ 2 0 2 . 2

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t $ 1 9 . 2 $ 1 8 . 4

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 3 $ 1 9 . 2  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 2 1 0 . 5  =  9 . 1 %
O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 2 $ 1 8 . 4  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 2 0 2 . 2  =  9 . 1 %

Management’s Discussion and Analysis



2003 Annual Report Rogers Communications Inc.54

T o t a l  o p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n :  
( $  m i l l i o n s ) 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

R e v e n u e $ 8 5 5 . 0 $ 8 1 0 . 8

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t $ 1 0 6 . 7 $ 8 7 . 6

O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 3 $ 1 0 6 . 7  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 8 5 5 . 0  =  1 2 . 5 %
O p e r a t i n g  p r o f i t  m a r g i n  –  2 0 0 2 $ 8 7 . 6  d i v i d e d  b y  $ 8 1 0 . 8  =  1 0 . 8 %

Media Operating Highlights and Signif icant Developments in 2003 

• Revenue increased 5.5% and operating profit increased 21.8% compared to 2002. Media’s operating profit margin rose
by 170 basis points year-over-year to 12.5% as a result of these increases.

• Broadcasting successfully completed the reformatting of several of its radio stations during 2003 which has resulted in
significant ratings boosts in several of its key markets.

• Publishing announced it is preparing to launch Canada’s first paid circulation shopping magazine for young women
beginning in the summer of 2004.

• Media announced an investment by Broadcasting in 50% of CTV’s mobile production and distribution business, Dome
Productions. The partnership which will accelerate the production and distribution of HDTV content in Canada. The
transaction was successfully completed on January 2, 2004.

Media Revenue Overview 
Total revenue for Media was $855.0 million in 2003, an increase of $44.2 million, or 5.5%, from $810.8 million in 2002.
Of the $44.2 million revenue growth, $26.7 million was generated by Television, Radio contributed $11.0 million of the
growth, and The Shopping Channel contributed $8.3 million, offset by a $1.7 million reduction in revenue at Publishing.
The growth in Television revenue was directly attributable to improved results at Rogers Sportsnet, combined with the
impact of the launch of Media’s second multicultural television operation, OMNI.2, late in 2002. Across all of Media’s divi-
sions combined, approximately 53.4% of the total 2003 revenue was advertising based, as opposed to subscription or
transaction based.

Media Operating Expense and Operating Profit  Overview 

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s )
Y e a r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 , 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 %  C h g

Publishing
Sales and marketing expenses $ 75.4 $ 84.9 (11.2)
Operating, general and administrative expenses 185.1 179.0 3.4

Total Publishing 260.5 263.9 (1.3)
Radio

Sales and marketing expenses 53.4 47.2 13.1
Operating, general and administrative expenses 85.1 77.0 10.5

Total Radio 138.5 124.2 11.5
Television

Sales and marketing expenses 14.2 13.8 2.9
Operating, general and administrative expenses 136.1 129.8 4.9

Total Television 150.3 143.6 4.7
The Shopping Channel

Cost of Sales 131.5 127.6 3.1
Sales and marketing expenses 32.6 30.6 6.5
Operating, general and administrative expenses 27.2 25.6 6.3

Total Shopping Channel 191.3 183.8 4.1
Corporate items, eliminations and other 7.7 7.7 –

Total operating expenses $ 748.3 $ 723.2 3.5

Total Media operating expenses were $748.3 million, up 3.5% or $25.1 million over 2002. This increase was driven in its
entirety by increased sales and marketing expenses across all the Media companies as efforts continued to focus on building
brand recognition and promoting the properties in the target demographics of each company’s respective marketplace.

Total operating profit was $106.7 million in 2003, resulting in a year-over-year increase of 21.8%, or $19.1 million,
which was primarily attributable to the results at Television. Details of operating expenses of each of the Media divisions
are discussed below.
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Publishing 
Revenue at Publishing was $289.9 million, a reduction of $1.7 million, or 0.6%, from $291.6 million in 2002. Publishing expe-
rienced strong growth in its Women’s group of magazines, which was offset by modest declines in its other groups,
resulting in the overall 0.6% decline year-over-year. The modest decline in revenues was offset by year-over-year reduc-
tions in operating, general and administrative expenses, as Publishing focused on tightening its cost structure. The efforts,
offset somewhat, by increased spending on advertising and promotion initiatives, resulting in a 6.1% improvement in
operating profit.

Radio 
Radio revenue was $177.2 million, an $11.0 million or 6.6% increase from $166.2 million in 2002. Fiscal 2003 included the full
year results of the 13 radio stations acquired from Standard Radio Inc., effective May 1, 2002 and contributed to the
majority of the year-over-year increase in revenues. Excluding the newly acquired radio stations, Radio’s revenues were
up only modestly from 2002 reflecting a slow turn-around in the demand for local advertising and the reformatting initia-
tives at several of its stations, the expenses for which were included in general and administrative expenses. In addition to
the reformatting initiatives, Radio increased spending on sales and marketing by 13.1% in 2003 as compared to 2002 in an
effort to promote the reformatted stations as well as reinforce the positioning in the market of certain stations in key mar-
kets in Canada.

Radio’s operating profit decreased by $3.3 million, or 7.9%, from 2002 to $38.7 million. The decline was attributable
to format changes which generated additional sales and marketing costs during the transition, and which also generally
create a significant temporary decline in revenues during the initial reformatting period.

Television 
Television includes the results of OMNI.1 (formerly CFMT-TV), OMNI.2 and Rogers Sportsnet. Canada’s only regional all-
sports network, Rogers Sportsnet derives revenues from both advertising and subscriber fees from cable and satellite
customers across Canada. Revenue from Rogers Sportsnet increased year-over-year by $16.5 million in 2003. OMNI.2 tele-
vision began broadcasting during the third quarter of 2002 in the Toronto, Hamilton, Ottawa and London, Ontario
markets only five months after receiving licence approval. The licence allows Media to combine the infrastructure of the
new station with its existing Toronto multicultural television operation, OMNI.1, creating an efficient combined operation
with a dual broadcasting stream. Revenue at the OMNI Channels increased by $10.2 million to $63.3 million compared to
2002. Expense increases at both OMNI and Sportsnet were 4.7% in 2003 as compared to 2002 with much of the increases
related to programming. The year-over-year increases in revenues at both the OMNI channels and Rogers Sportsnet trans-
lated into a $20.0 million, year-over-year increase in operating profit.

The Shopping Channel 
The Shopping Channel’s revenue increased $8.3 million, or 4.1%, to $210.5 million from $202.2 million in 2002. In 2003, off-
air sales represented 26.8% of revenue, up from 25.1% in 2002, and included catalogue, Web site and physical store sales.
Operating profit at The Shopping Channel was $19.2 million, a $0.8 million or 4.4% increase from $18.4 million in 2002.
Results at The Shopping Channel were impacted by regional issues such as the SARS epidemic, the blackout in Ontario
and other world affairs such as the war in Iraq, all of which served to detract viewership and in turn required The
Shopping Channel to spend more on sales and marketing activities.

Media Employees 
Media ended 2003 with 3,025 FTEs, a decrease of 175 from 3,200 at December 31, 2002. The reduction in staff at Media was
directly related to the focus on obtaining operational synergies across its properties and the implementation of cost
reduction initiatives.

Total remuneration paid to Media employees (both full and part-time) was approximately $204.9 million, an
increase of $7.6 million or 3.9% from $197.3 million in the prior year.

Media PP&E Expenditures 
Total Media PP&E expenditures in 2003 were $41.3 million compared to $42.7 million in 2002. The decrease in 2003 was pri-
marily due to one-time spending in 2002 on the construction of a national distribution centre for The Shopping Channel
and the startup costs related to OMNI.2.

MEDIA RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

Media’s business is subject to several operating risks and uncertainties that may result in a material adverse effect on its
business and financial results as outlined below.

Dependency upon Advertis ing 
Media depends on advertising as a material source of its revenue and its businesses would be adversely affected by a fur-
ther material decline in the demand for local or national advertising. Media derived approximately 53.4% of its revenues
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in 2003 from the sale of advertising. Media expects advertising will continue to be a material source of Media’s revenue in
the future. Advertising revenues, which are largely a function of consumer confidence and general economic conditions,
remain unpredictable, although the diversity of the businesses Media operates, both geographically and in terms of the
breadth of media, helps to provide some stability to the advertising revenue base. Most of Media’s advertising contracts
are short-term contracts that can be terminated by the advertiser with little notice. A reduction in advertising spending
or loss of advertising relationships would adversely affect Media’s results of operations and financial position.

Sensit ivity to Global Economic Cycles 
Expenditures by advertisers tend to be cyclical, reflecting overall economic conditions as well as budgeting and buying
patterns outside of Media’s control. Moreover, because a substantial portion of Media’s advertising revenue is derived
from local advertisers, Media’s ability to generate advertising revenue in specific markets is adversely affected by local or
regional economic downturns. This is particularly true in the concentrated Toronto market, where the combined revenue
from Media’s four radio stations and two over-the-air television stations represented approximately 14% of Media’s rev-
enue in 2003.

Sensit ivity to External Events 
External events and consumer behaviour substantially influence advertising patterns and media usage. A terrorist attack,
such as occurred in the United States on September 11, 2001, or a war may result in a shift in consumer focus and a change
in the price or quantity of advertising purchased. If advertising and media spending decline following an unforeseen
event, Media’s advertising revenues could be adversely affected.

Importance of Industry Leadership and Ratings 
It is well established that advertising dollars migrate to media properties that are leaders in their respective markets and
categories when advertising budgets are tightened. Although most of Media’s radio and magazine properties are cur-
rently leaders in their respective markets, such leadership may not continue in the future. Advertisers base a substantial
part of their purchasing decisions on statistics such as ratings and readership generated by industry associations and
agencies. If Media’s radio and television ratings or magazine readership levels were to decrease substantially, Media’s
advertising sales volumes and the rates which it charges advertisers could be adversely affected.

Portion of Growth from Acquisit ions 
Historically, Media’s growth has been generated, in part by strategic acquisitions. Media intends to continue to selec-
tively pursue acquisitions of radio and television stations and publishing properties. Media is not able to predict whether
it will be successful in acquiring properties that enhance its businesses. If Media is unable to identify and complete acqui-
sitions, its growth could slow from historical levels. In addition, Media could face difficulties associated with integrating
the operations of businesses that it does acquire, which could have a material adverse effect on Media’s business, finan-
cial condition or results of operations.

Emergence of Competing Technologies 
New programming or content services, as well as alternative media technologies, such as digital radio services, satellite
radio, DTH satellite, wireless and wired pay television, Internet radio and video programming, and on-line publications
have either begun competing, or may in the future compete, for programming and publishing content, audiences and
advertising revenues. These competing technologies may increase audience fragmentation, reduce Media’s ratings or
have an adverse effect on its local or national advertising revenue. These or other technologies and business models may
have a material adverse effect on Media’s business, financial conditions or results of operations.

Dependency upon Canadian Magazine Fund 
The Government of Canada created the Canadian Magazine Fund (“CMF”) to help encourage Canadian publishers to con-
tinue to produce high-quality and innovative Canadian editorial content, subject to certain eligibility requirements.
Beginning with the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, the CMF intended to provide $150.0 million in funding to Canadian
magazine publishers through 2003, $75.0 million of which is intended to support Canadian editorial content. In the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2002, the CMF distributed $25.0 million to over 400 publishers in support of Canadian editorial con-
tent, with funding pro-rated across based on their respective share of total eligible Canadian editorial expenses. Rogers
qualified for approximately $5.0 million in support from the CMF in 2002. For fiscal years beginning with the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2004, the Government of Canada has announced a number of changes to the Canadian editorial content
envelope of the CMF. Total funding will be reduced in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004 to $18.0 million and will be
reduced to $16.0 million in each of the next two fiscal years. In addition, editorial content funding will be re-oriented to
enable the Government to address the industry’s current needs and current market conditions, with more funding pro-
vided to ethno-cultural, aboriginal, and minority official-language publications, small community newspapers, arts and
literary magazines, and small-circulation magazines.
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Exposure to Paper,  Printing and Postage Costs 
A significant portion of Publishing’s operating expenses consist of paper, printing and postage expenses. Paper is
Publishing’s single largest raw material expense, representing approximately 5.7% of Publishing’s operating expenses in
2003. Publishing depends upon outside suppliers for all of its paper supplies, holds relatively small quantities of paper in
stock itself, and is unable to control paper prices, which can fluctuate considerably. Moreover, Publishing is generally
unable to pass paper cost increases on to customers. Printing costs represented approximately 10% of Publishing’s operat-
ing expenses in 2003. Publishing relies on third parties for all of its printing services. In addition, Publishing relies on the
Canadian Postal Service to distribute a large percentage of its publications. A material increase in paper prices, printing
costs or postage could have a material adverse effect on Publishing’s business, results of operations or financial condition.

Potential  Impacts from Regulatory Decisions 
Media expects the CRTC to review the Commercial Radio Policy 1998 in 2005 to address issues such as multiple licence
ownership and Canadian content. In the interim, the CRTC will review satellite radio issues, including the establishment
of a satellite radio policy and licensing framework.

The CRTC has released its digital television policy, covering issues such as priority carriage and simultaneous sub-
stitution. Media believes that the CRTC policy provides an effective framework for the growth and development of digital
television broadcasting in Canada. A forthcoming CRTC consultation also will seek to establish a framework for the tran-
sition or migration of analog to digital for specialty services.

The cable and telecommunications industries in Canada generally promote the easing or elimination of foreign
ownership restrictions. If successful, the easing or elimination of such ownership restrictions may cause or require inte-
grated communications companies, such as the Company, to establish a separate ownership structure for their
broadcasting content entities.

Copyright liability pressures continue to affect radio and television services. The Copyright Board is considering
proposed changes to both Tariff 2 (Broadcast TV) and Tariff 17 (Non-broadcast TV). While the Society of Composers,
Authors and Music Publishers of Canada (“SOCAN”) has sought tariff increases for each of these tariffs, certain specialty
services, including Rogers Sportsnet, also have sought tariff payment adjustments that explicitly recognize the differing
value of music for different genres of services. SOCAN and the Neighbouring Rights Collective Society (“NRCC”) also have
proposed increases to each of their respective radio tariffs, with the NRCC also seeking to eliminate important revenue
threshold and all-talk station tariff payment exemptions.

In a January 2004 decision, the CRTC renewed the broadcasting licence for Rogers Sportsnet. Although no other
expenditure or programming requirements were imposed and a certain degree of additional programming flexibility was
afforded, the renewal denied a proposed increase to Rogers Sportsnet’s basic wholesale fee. Rogers Sportsnet’s basic
rate will remain at $0.78. Although a strong majority of Rogers Sportsnet subscribers are not on basic, the basic rate can
also influence rate negotiations for carriage of Rogers Sportsnet on discretionary tiers. With TSN’s rate at $1.07, Rogers
Sportsnet will continue to operate with a comparative disadvantage to TSN.

Pressures regarding the favourable channel placement of The Shopping Channel below the first cable tier will
likely increase. The CRTC is currently considering a policy change which could require cable BDUs to carry mandatory ser-
vices (i.e. APTN, CPAC and TVA) below the first cable tier. This decision, along with the licensing of new local TV stations,
has the potential to affect The Shopping Channel’s placement in some cable systems.

CONSOLIDATED LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

This discussion is based upon the Company’s annual Audited Consolidated Statements of Income and the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.

Rogers has consistently invested in upgrading and expanding its networks and communications businesses over
time, as well as in developing and deploying new communications service initiatives, all of which are highly capital inten-
sive. Mainly as a result of these PP&E expenditures and the significant amount of debt used to help fund these initiatives
and expenditures, interest expense has remained high and resulted in cash shortfalls.

Rogers’ net income for the year ended December 31, 2003, was $129.2 million compared to net income of
$312.0 million in the prior fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. The reduction in net income of $182.8 million in 2003 is rec-
onciled as follows with non-bracketed numbers denoting changes increasing net income and bracketed items reducing
net income:
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Change in Net Income (Loss)  

( I n  m i l l i o n s  o f  d o l l a r s )

Operating profit $ 307.3
Other (6.5)
Depreciation and amortization (58.8)

Operating income 242.0
Interest on long-term debt 2.4
Losses from investments accounted for by the equity method 46.6
Foreign exchange gain 297.5
Gain (loss) on repayment of long-term debt (34.9)
Gain (loss) on sale of other investments 18.5
Writedown of investments 301.0
Gains on disposition of AT&T Canada Deposit Receipts (904.3)
Other income (0.2)
Income taxes (51.8)
Non-controlling interest (99.6)

Net income $ (182.8)

• In 2002, the Company had a net recovery of $6.5 million, made up primarily of a reduction in the liability related to esti-
mates of sales tax at Wireless of $19.2 million, partially offset by workforce reduction costs at Cable of $5.9 million and
a change in the estimate of CRTC contribution liability at Wireless of $6.8 million.

• The $58.8 million increase in depreciation and amortization is mainly due to an increase in the fixed asset base during
the year, of which a significant component is related to PP&E expenditures for the Cable network upgrades and capac-
ity expansion to the new GSM/GPRS network at Wireless, and the acceleration of the amortization of the $20.0 million
in brand licence cost.

• The $2.4 million decrease in interest expense is due to the decrease in debt during the year. 
• The $46.6 million decrease in losses from investments accounted for by the equity method is primarily related to the

reduction in the equity losses of the Blue Jays.
• The $297.5 million increase in foreign exchange gains was due to the continuing strengthening of the Canadian dollar

throughout 2003 which favourably impacted the translation of the unhedged portion of the Company’s U.S. dollar-
denominated long-term debt.

• The $34.9 million change in the gain (loss) on early repayment of long-term debt reflects the impact of transactions in
2003 versus 2002 as further detailed in the discussion below.

• The $18.5 million gain from sale on investments is a result of the sale of certain marketable securities by the Company
during the year.

• The $301.0 million decrease in writedowns on investments is a result of the Company’s review of the value of its invest-
ments in publicly traded and private companies and provision recorded in 2002.

• The $904.3 million decrease in the gain on disposition of AT&T Canada Deposit Receipts was a result of the sale on
October 8, 2002 of 25 million AT&T Canada Deposit Receipts owned by the Company.

• The $51.8 million change in income taxes was due to lower net tax reductions in 2003 compared to 2002 and is calcu-
lated under Canadian GAAP as outlined in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

• The $99.6 million change in non-controlling interest represents the Wireless minority shareholders’ share of the net
income of Wireless in 2003 compared to their share of the 2002 loss.

Rogers’ cash generated from operations before changes in non-cash operating items, which is calculated by adding back all
non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization to net income, increased to $984.7 million in 2003 from $642.4 million
in 2002. This $342.3 million increase in 2003 is mainly due to the $307.3 million increase in operating income before certain
items. Taking into account the changes in non-cash operating items for the 2003 year, cash generated from operations
increased by $85.4 million to $853.9 million from $768.5 million in 2002.

In addition, Rogers raised net funds totaling $796.7 million during 2003 consisting of:

• $524.0 million received from the increase of long-term debt, which is essentially comprised of Cable’s U.S. Note offering
totaling U.S.$350 million (C$470.4 million) issued in June 2003 and the net drawdowns under bank credit facilities during
the year of $51.5 million and a $2.1 million net increase in capital leases, mortgages and other;

• proceeds on the sale of investments of $20.7 million; and 
• $252.0 million cash proceeds received from the issuance of equity, of which $13.0 million was received for the issuance

of Class B Non-Voting Shares under employee share purchase plans and the exercise of employee stock options and
$239.0 million was received upon the issuance of 12,722,647 Class B Non-Voting Shares in May 2003.
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Including the $853.9 million of cash generated from operations after changes in working capital, the aggregate net funds
raised in 2003 totaled $1,650.6 million.

The net funds used during 2003 totalled approximately $1,687.7 million consisting of:

• additions to property plant and equipment of $963.7 million; 
• aggregate redemptions of long-term debt of $626.0 million repurchases and redemptions by RCI and Cable of certain

Canadian and U.S. dollar-denominated public debt;
• payment of dividends of $11.6 million on Class B Non-Voting Shares, Class A Voting Shares and Series E Preferred Shares;
• net other investments of $27.9 million of which $29.4 million relates to cash contributions to the Blue Jays net of

$3.6 million cash distributions received from other investments;
• distributions on Convertible Preferred Securities of $33.0 million; 
• premiums on the early repayment of long-term debt aggregating $19.3 million; and 
• financing costs incurred of $6.2 million. 

As a result of the above, cash of $37.2 million was used during 2003. Taking into account the $26.9 million cash balance at
the beginning of the year, the ending 2003 cash deficiency was $10.3 million.

Financing 
Rogers’ long-term financial instruments are described in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During 2003, the following financings were completed: in May, 2003, RCI completed a $250 million equity issue with
the issuance of 12,722,647 Class B Non-Voting Shares for proceeds, net of fees and expenses, of $239.0 million; and in
June, 2003, Cable issued U.S.$350.0 million (Canadian equivalent $470.4 million) 6.25% Senior Secured Second Priority
Notes due 2013.

During 2003, the following debt redemptions were made, which aggregated $626.0 million with repurchase premi-
ums of $19.3 million in total: in April, 2003, RCI redeemed US$54.6 million aggregate principal amount of its 91/8% Senior
Notes due 2006 at a redemption price of 101.521% of the aggregate principal amount; in June, 2003, Cable redeemed
US$74.8 million aggregate principal amount of its 10% Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures due 2007 at a redemp-
tion price of 105.0% of the aggregate principal amount; in July, 2003, RCI redeemed US$205.4 million aggregate principal
amount of its 87/8% Senior Notes due 2007 at a redemption price of 102.958% of the aggregate principal amount; and in
August, 2003, RCI redeemed $165.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 83/4% Senior Notes due 2007 at a redemption
price of 102.917% of the aggregate principal amount.

In February 2004, Cable redeemed $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 9.65% senior secured second
priority debentures due 2014 at a redemption price of 104.825% of the aggregate principal amount on February 23, 2004.

In January, 2004, Cable established a dividend/distribution policy to distribute $6.0 million per month to RCI on a
regular basis, starting in January, 2004.

Rogers structures its borrowings generally on a stand-alone basis. Therefore, borrowings by each of its three prin-
cipal operating groups are generally secured only by the assets of the respective entities within each operating group,
and such instruments generally do not provide for guarantees or cross-collateralization or cross-defaults between
groups. Currently, no such guarantees or cross-collateralizations or cross-defaults between the groups exist.

At December 31, 2003, Rogers’ long-term committed bank credit facilities provided for aggregate credit of $2.28 bil-
lion, of which $237.5 million was drawn down. Generally, access to these credit facilities is subject to compliance within
certain debt to operating profit ratios, and at December 31, 2003, based upon the most restrictive covenants under the
bank credit facilities and public debt instruments, Rogers could have borrowed additional long-term debt under existing
credit facilities of approximately $1.90 billion including $400.0 million available for the repayment of debt maturing in
Cable in 2005.

Of all the Rogers debt instruments, the provisions of the bank loan agreements generally impose the most restric-
tive limitations on the operations and activities of the companies governed by these agreements. The most significant of
these restrictions are debt incurrence and maintenance tests (based upon certain ratios of debt to operating profit),
restrictions upon additional investments, sales of assets and distributions to shareholders. Rogers and its subsidiaries are
currently in compliance with all of the covenants under their respective debt instruments and Rogers expects all
covenants to remain in compliance. (See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for details of the specific debt
instruments.) On December 31, 2003, a total of $270.1 million could have been distributed to Rogers Corporate from Media
via the repayment of unsecured subordinated intercompany notes.

Rogers’ required repayments on all long-term debt in the next five years totals $2.5 billion, excluding an aggregate
$36.2 million effect of cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements. In 2004, required repayments total $11.5 million.
In 2005, required repayments total $651.1 million including $376.8 million for the repayment of Cable’s 10% Senior Secured
Second Priority Notes due 2005 and $271.2 million for the repayment of Rogers’ 53/4% Convertible Debentures due 2005. In
2006, required repayments total $323.1 million, mainly comprised of $75.0 million for the repayment of Rogers’ 101/2%
Senior Notes due 2006, $160.0 million for the repayment of Wireless’ 101/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2006, $22.2 million
for the repayment of a mortgage due 2006, and the $63.5 million outstanding under the Media bank credit facility at
December 31, 2003. In 2007, required repayments total $936.2 million mainly comprised of $450.0 million for the repayment
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of Cable’s 7.60% Senior Secured Second Priority Notes due 2007, $253.5 million for the repayment of Wireless’ 8.30%
Senior Secured Notes due 2007 and $231.4 million for the repayment of Wireless’ 8.80% Senior Subordinated Notes due
2007. In 2008, required repayments total $568.6 million comprised of $430.6 million for the repayment of Wireless’ 93/8%
Senior Secured Debentures due 2008, and the $138.0 million outstanding under the Wireless bank credit facility at
December 31, 2003.

Cable expects to continue to incur significant PP&E expenditures. In 2004, Cable expects to incur PP&E expenditures,
excluding the telephony initiative, of between $440.0 million and $465.0 million primarily relating to the purchase and
placement of CPE associated with new digital and Internet subscribers, the upgrading of certain portions of our network
and scalable infrastructure, the extension of its network into newly constructed areas and buildings, as well as for infor-
mation technology and other general capital initiatives, including the forced movement of the plant associated with
municipal and other improvement projects. In 2004, including the telephony issue, Cable anticipates an additional invest-
ment of between $140 million and $170 million during 2004 associated with the deployment of an advanced Internet
Protocol multimedia network to support primary line voice-over-cable telephony and other new services across its cable
service areas as discussed in “Overview – Telephony Initiative” above. Cable expects operating profit to increase in 2004
and anticipates incurring a net cash shortfall in 2004. Cable believes it will have sufficient capital resources to satisfy its
cash funding requirements in 2004, taking into account cash from operations and the amount that will be available under
the $1.075 billion amended and restated bank credit facility.

Cable’s amended and restated $1.075 billion bank credit facility, which was established in January 2002, is com-
prised of two tranches (1) the $600 million Tranche A that matures on January 2, 2009 and (2) the $475 million Tranche B
that reduces by 25% annually on each of January 2, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009. In September, 2003, Cable amended its bank
credit facility to eliminate the possibility of earlier than scheduled maturity of Tranche B and availability on a $400.0 million
portion of Tranche B has been reserved to repay Cable’s Senior Secured Notes due 2005. The $400 million reserved amount
will be reduced by an amount equal to any repayment of the Notes due 2005 made from time to time from any source
including Tranche B and, as a result, an amount equal to such repayments becomes available to Cable under Tranche B.

Wireless’ $700 million bank credit facility reduces by 20% on April 30, 2006 and again on April 30, 2007 with the
final 60% reduction on April 30, 2008. However, the bank credit facility will mature on May 31, 2006 if the Company’s
Senior Secured Notes due 2006 are not repaid (by refinancing or otherwise) on or prior to December 31, 2005. If these
notes are repaid, then the bank credit facility will mature on September 30, 2007 if the Company’s Senior Secured Notes
due 2007 are not repaid (by refinancing or otherwise) on or prior to April 30, 2007.

Rogers believes that Wireless will have a net cash surplus in 2004 so that Wireless will have sufficient capital
resources to satisfy its cash funding requirements in 2004, taking into account cash from operations.

Rogers believes that Cable will have a net cash shortfall in 2004 but that Cable will have sufficient capital resources
to satisfy its cash funding requirements in 2004, taking into account cash from operations and the amount that will be
available under its $1.075 billion amended and restated bank credit facility.

Rogers believes that Media will be in a cash surplus position in 2004. Rogers believes that if Media were to incur a
cash shortfall, it would have sufficient capital resources to satisfy its cash funding requirements in 2004, taking into account
cash from operations and the amount that will be available to be borrowed under its $500.0 million bank credit facility.

Rogers believes that, on an unconsolidated basis, it will have, taking into account interest income and repayments
of intercompany advances together with the receipt of management fees paid by the operating subsidiaries and regular
$6 million monthly distributions from Cable and investments and cash on hand, sufficient capital resources to satisfy its
cash funding requirements in 2004.

In the event that Rogers or any of its operating subsidiaries do require additional funding, Rogers believes that
any such funding requirements would be satisfied by issuing additional debt financing, which may include the restructur-
ing of existing bank credit facilities or issuing public or private debt at any of the operating subsidiaries or at Rogers or
issuing equity of Rogers or of Wireless, all depending on market conditions. In addition, Rogers or its subsidiaries may
refinance a portion of existing debt subject to market conditions and other factors.

On February 7, 2003, Moody’s revised its ratings on Cable’s senior secured and senior subordinated public debt
downward from Baa3 and Ba1 to Ba2 and Ba3, respectively. In addition, Moody’s revised its ratings on RCI’s senior unse-
cured debt rating downward from Ba1 to B2. Moody’s provided a stable outlook for these newly revised Cable and RCI
debt ratings. On October 24, 2003, Moody’s changed the ratings outlook on the Wireless senior secured and senior subor-
dinated public debt, which are rated Ba3 and B2 respectively, to positive from stable.

On March 5, 2003, Standard & Poor’s revised its ratings outlook downward on both Cable’s senior secured and
senior subordinated public debt, which are rated BBB- and BB- respectively, as well as on RCI’s BB- senior unsecured debt
rating to negative from stable. On October 30, 2003, Standard & Poor’s revised its ratings outlook upwards on Wireless’
senior secured and senior subordinated public debt, which are rated BB+ and BB- respectively, to positive from stable.

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements other than the cross-currency interest rate
exchange agreements described below.

Interest Rate and Foreign Exchange Management 
Rogers uses derivative financial instruments to manage risks from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.
These instruments include cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements, “swaps”, foreign exchange forward contracts,
and, from time-to-time, foreign exchange option agreements. All such agreements are used for risk management purposes
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only and are designated to hedge specific debt instruments. In order to minimize the risk of counterparty default under
these agreements, Rogers assesses the creditworthiness of its counterparties. At December 31, 2003, all of Rogers’ coun-
terparties in these agreements are financial institutions with a Standard & Poor’s rating (or other equivalent) ranging
from A+ to AA.

The incurrence of U.S. dollar-denominated debt has caused substantial foreign exchange exposure as Rogers’ oper-
ating cash flow is almost exclusively denominated in Canadian dollars. Rogers has established a target of hedging at least
50% of its foreign exchange exposure through the use of hedging instruments outlined above. At December 31, 2003 and
2002, Rogers had U.S. dollar-denominated long-term debt of US$2,868.3 million and US$2,845.9 million, respectively.
At December 31, 2003 and 2002, US$1,943.4 million and US$1,768.4 million, respectively, or 67.8% and 62.1%, respectively,
was hedged with cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements at an average exchange rate of C$1.4647 and
C$1.4766, respectively to U.S.$1.00. The increase in Rogers’ hedged position in 2003 was due to the repayment of U.S. dollar-
denominated debt during 2003, as discussed above. The decrease in the average exchange rate to $1.4647 in 2003 was due
to entering into a new swap in Cable in the notional amount of US$175.0 million at an exchange rate of $1.3445 concur-
rent with the incurrence of U.S. dollar-denominated debt and US$350 million debt issue at Cable.

Management will continue to monitor its hedged position with respect to foreign exchange fluctuations and,
depending upon market conditions and other factors, may adjust its hedged position with respect to foreign exchange
fluctuations in the future by unwinding certain existing hedges or by entering into cross-currency interest rate exchange
agreements or by using other hedging instruments.

The cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements had the effect at December 31, 2003 of converting the inter-
est rate on US$1,558.4 million of long-term debt from an average U.S. dollar fixed interest rate of 8.82% per annum to an
average Canadian dollar fixed interest rate of 9.70% per annum on $2,346.0 million, compared with the 2002 effect of con-
verting US$1,383.4 million of long-term debt from an average U.S. dollar fixed interest rate of 9.15% per annum to an
average Canadian dollar fixed interest rate of 9.94% per annum on $2,110.7 million; and converting the interest rate on
U.S.$385.0 million of long-term debt from an average U.S. dollar fixed interest rate of 9.38% per annum to $500.5 million at
a weighted average floating interest rate equal to the bankers’ acceptances rate plus 2.35% per annum, which totalled
5.11% at December 31, 2003, as compared with 5.22% in 2002. The Company also assumed an interest rate exchange
agreement upon an acquisition during 2001. This interest rate exchange agreement has the effect of converting $30.0 mil-
lion of floating rate obligations of the Company to a fixed interest rate of 7.72% per annum.

The total long-term debt at fixed interest rates at December 31, 2003 and 2002, was $4,560.6 million and $5,024.2 mil-
lion, respectively, or 86.0% and 88.3%, respectively, of total long-term debt. Historically, Rogers has targeted to maintain
fixed interest rates on at least 80% of its outstanding long-term debt.

Rogers’ effective weighted average interest rate on all long-term debt as at December 31, 2003 and 2002, including
the effect of the interest exchange agreements and cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements, was 8.48% and
8.74%, respectively.

The following table presents a summary of the effect of changes in the foreign exchange rate on the unhedged
portion of Rogers’ U.S. dollar-denominated debt and the resulting change in the principal carrying amount of debt, inter-
est expense and earnings per share, based on a full year impact.

C h a n g e  i n C h a n g e  i n
d e b t  p r i n c i p a l i n t e r e s t E a r n i n g s

a m o u n t s e x p e n s e p e r
C h a n g e  i n  C d n $  v s .  U S $ 1 ( $  m i l l i o n s ) ( $  m i l l i o n s ) s h a r e 2

$0.01 $ 9.2 $ 0.6 $ 0.042
0.03 27.7 1.8 0.127
0.05 46.2 3.0 0.211

$0.10 $ 92.5 $ 6.1 $ 0.422

1 C a n a d i a n  e q u i v a l e n t  o f  u n h e d g e d  U . S .  d o l l a r - d e n o m i n a t e d  d e b t  i f  U . S .  d o l l a r  c o s t s  a n  a d d i t i o n a l  C a n a d i a n  c e n t .

2 A s s u m e s  n o  i n c o m e  t a x  e f f e c t .  B a s e d  o n  t h e  n u m b e r  o f  s h a r e s  o u t s t a n d i n g  a s  a t  D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 0 3 .

At December 31, 2003, interest expense would have increased by $7.4 million per year if there was a 1% increase in the
interest rate on the portion of long-term debt that is not at fixed interest rates.

Rogers’ US$2,868.3 million of U.S. dollar-denominated long-term debt is spread among its different operating enti-
ties and the parent company. The following table provides a breakdown by company of the U.S. dollar exposure and the
percentage of its exposure by business unit that has been hedged as at December 31, 2003.

U . S .  d o l l a r  D e b t
B u s i n e s s  U n i t ( $  m i l l i o n s ) %  h e d g e d

Cable $ 1,305.2 81.1%
Wireless 1,353.3 65.4
Rogers Corporate 209.8 –

Total $ 2,868.3 67.8%
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INTERCOMPANY AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

RCI Arrangements with its  Subsidiaries 
The Company has entered into a number of agreements with its subsidiaries, including Wireless, Cable and Media. These
agreements govern the management, commercial and cost-sharing arrangements that the Company has with its sub-
sidiaries. The Company monitors intercompany and related party agreements to ensure they remain beneficial to the
Company. The Company continually evaluates the expansion of existing arrangements and the entry into new agreements.

The Company’s agreements with its subsidiaries have historically focused on areas of operation in which joint or
combined services provide efficiencies of scale or other synergies. For example, in late 2001, the Company began manag-
ing the call centre operations of Wireless and Cable, with a goal of improving productivity, increasing service levels and
reducing costs. More recently, the Company’s arrangements are increasingly focusing on sales and marketing activities.
In February 2004, the board of directors of Rogers Cable and Rogers Wireless approved two additional arrangements.

• Distr ibution Rogers Wireless will provide management services to Rogers Cable in connection with the distribution
of Rogers Cable products and services through retail outlets and dealer channels and will also manage Rogers Cable’s
e-commerce relationships. Rogers Wireless may manage other distribution relationships for Rogers Cable if mutually
agreed upon by both partners.

• Rogers Business Services Rogers Wireless will establish a division, Rogers Business Solutions, that will provide a
single point of contact to offer the full range of Rogers Wireless products and services and Rogers Cable’s products and
services to small and medium businesses and, in the case of telecommunication virtual private network services, to cor-
porate and business accounts and employees. 

The definitive terms and conditions of the agreements between Rogers Cable and Rogers Wireless relating to these
arrangements will be subject to the approval of the audit committees of both Rogers Wireless’ and Rogers Cable’s boards
of directors.

In addition, the Company continues to look for other operations and activities that can be shared or jointly oper-
ated with other companies within the Rogers group. Specifically, the expansion of inter-company arrangements relating
to sales and marketing activities as well as other arrangements that may result in greater integration with other compa-
nies with the Rogers group are being considered. In the future, market conditions may require the Company to further
strengthen its arrangements to better coordinate and integrate its sales and marketing and operational activities with its
affiliated companies. Any new arrangements will be entered into only if the Company believes such arrangements are in
each company’s best interest.

Management Services Agreement 
Each of Wireless, Cable and Media has entered into a management services agreement with Rogers under which Rogers
agrees to provide executive, administrative, financial, strategic planning, information technology and various other ser-
vices to each subsidiary. Those services relate to, among other things, assistance with tax advice, Canadian regulatory
matters, financial advice (including the preparation of business plans and financial projections and the evaluation of PP&E
expenditure proposals), treasury services, service on the subsidiary’s Boards of Directors and on committees of the
Boards of Directors, advice and assistance in relationships with employee groups, internal audits, investor relations, pur-
chasing and legal services. In return for these services, each of the subsidiaries has agreed to pay Rogers fees, which, in
the case of Cable and Media, is an amount equal to 2% of their respective consolidated revenue for each fiscal quarter,
subject to certain exceptions, and, in the case of Wireless, is an amount equal to the greater of $8 million per year
(adjusted for changes in the Canadian Consumer Price Index from January 1, 1991) and an amount determined by both
Rogers and the independent directors serving on the Audit Committee of Wireless.

Cal l  Centres 
The Company is a party to agreements with Wireless and Cable pursuant to which the Company provides customer service
functions through its call centres. Wireless and Cable pay the Company commissions for new subscriptions, products and
service options purchased by subscribers through the call centres. The Company is reimbursed for the cost of providing
these services based on the actual costs incurred. The Company, under the agreement, cannot charge additional amounts
that exceed an agreed upon cost per call rate multiplied by actual call volume. The assets used in the provision of these
services are owned by Wireless and Cable. This agreement is for an indefinite term and is terminable upon 90 days notice.

Accounts Receivable 
The Company manages the subscriber account collection of activities of Wireless and Cable. Wireless and Cable are
responsible, however, for the costs incurred in the collection and handling of their accounts.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis



2003 Annual ReportRogers Communications Inc. 63

Cost Sharing and Services Agreements 
The Company has entered into other cost sharing and services agreements with its subsidiaries in the areas of account-
ing, purchasing, human resources, real estate administration, accounts payable processing, remittance processing, payroll
processing, e-commerce, the RCI data centre and other common services and activities. Generally, these services are pro-
vided to the RCI subsidiaries by the Company and are on renewable terms of one year and may be terminated by either
party on 30 to 90 days notice. To the extent that RCI incurs expenses and makes PP&E expenditures, these costs are typi-
cally reimbursed by the Company, on a cost recovery basis, in accordance with the services provided on behalf of the
Company by RCI.

Corporate Opportunity 
Rogers and Wireless have agreed under a business areas and transfer agreement that Rogers will, subject to any required
regulatory, lender or other approvals, continue to conduct all of its cellular telephone operations and related mobile
communications businesses through Wireless. Rogers believes that by conducting its cellular telephone operations and
related mobile communications business through Wireless, the potential for conflicts of interest between Wireless and
Rogers and directors or officers of Rogers who are also directors or officers of Wireless will be reduced.

Minority Shareholders Protection Agreement 
The Company has entered into a shareholder protection agreement with Wireless that extends certain protections to
holders of Wireless’ Class B Restricted Voting Shares (“RWCI’s Restricted Voting Shares”). The Company has agreed with
Wireless that:

• in respect to a “going-private” transaction involving Wireless proposed by Rogers or insiders, associates or affiliates
thereof:
• a formal valuation of RWCI’s Restricted Voting Shares will be prepared by an independent valuer,
• the consideration offered per share will not be less than the value or will be within or exceed the range of values per

share arrived at in the formal valuation, and
• such transaction will be subject to approval by the majority of the minority of RWCI’s Restricted Voting Shares

(minority shareholders will exclude the Company’s affiliates); and
• in respect to an issuer bid or insider bid made by Rogers or any of its subsidiaries relating to Wireless:

• a formal valuation will be prepared by an independent valuer, and 
• the consideration offered per share to holders of RWCI’s Restricted Voting Shares will not be less than 662/3% of the

value (or of the midpoint of the range of values) arrived at in the formal valuation.

The Company and Wireless have also agreed under the terms of the shareholder protection agreement that a committee
of independent directors of Wireless will be responsible for the selection of the independent valuer and will review and
report to the Board of Directors on any transaction. The Board of Directors will be required to disclose its reasonable
belief as to the desirability or fairness of the transaction to holders of RWCI’s Restricted Voting Shares.

The shareholder protection agreement provides certain instances in which a transaction is not subject to the valu-
ation and minority approval requirements, including if the price to be offered to all shareholders is arrived at through
arm’s length negotiations with a selling holder of a sizeable block of RWCI’s Restricted Voting Shares, provided such
holder had full knowledge and access to information concerning Wireless. Further, a going-private transaction will not be
subject to minority shareholder approval where 90% or more of the outstanding RWCI’s Restricted Voting Shares are held
by Rogers or its affiliates. Rogers has agreed that, so long as Rogers owns or controls shares representing 50% or more of
the voting interest of the shares of the Company, Rogers will not vote any of RWCI’s Restricted Voting Shares which it
may own or control with respect to the election of the three directors to be elected by the holders of RWCI’s Restricted
Voting Shares as a class.

The provisions of the shareholder protection agreement may not be waived or amended by Rogers or Wireless
without the approval of the majority of holders of RWCI’s Restricted Voting Shares, excluding any holder who was an
affiliate of Wireless. The rights and obligations under the shareholder protection agreement are in addition to any applic-
able requirements of law and regulatory authorities.

Arrangements between RCI Subsidiaries 
Invoicing of Common Customers 
Pursuant to an agreement with Cable, Wireless purchases the accounts receivables of Cable for common subscribers who
elect to receive a consolidated invoice. Wireless is compensated for costs of bad debts, billing costs and services and
other determinable costs by purchasing these receivables at a discount. The discount is based on actual costs incurred for
the services provided and is reviewed periodically. This agreement is for a term of one year.

Distr ibution of Wireless’  Products and Services 
Cable and Wireless have entered into an agreement for the sale of the Company’s products and services through the
Rogers Video retail outlets owned by Cable. Wireless pays Cable commissions for new subscriptions equivalent to
amounts paid to third-party distributors.
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Distr ibution of Cable’s Products and Services 
Wireless has agreed to provide retail field support to Cable and to represent Cable in the promotion and sales of its busi-
ness products and services. Under the retail field support agreement, Wireless’ retail sales representatives receive sales
commissions for achieving sales targets with respect to Cable products and services, the cost of which to Wireless is reim-
bursed by Cable.

Transmission Faci l it ies 
Wireless has entered into agreements with Cable to share the construction and operating costs of certain co-located
fibre-optic transmission and microwave facilities. The costs of these facilities are allocated based on usage or ownership,
as applicable. Since there are significant fixed costs associated with these transmission links, Wireless and Cable have
achieved economies of scale by sharing these facilities resulting in reduced capital costs. In addition, Wireless receives
payments from Cable for the use of its data, circuits, data transmission and links. The price of these services is based on
usage or ownership, as applicable.

In addition, the Company continues to look for other operations and activities that can be shared or jointly oper-
ated with other companies within the Rogers group. Specifically, is the consideration of the expansion of inter-company
arrangements relating to sales and marketing activities as well as other arrangements that may result in greater integra-
tion with other companies within the Rogers group. Cable also may receive billing and other services from Rogers
Wireless in connection with its launch of voice-over-cable telephony services. If Rogers Telecom assumes responsibility
for providing voice-over cable telephony services, Cable would enter into an agreement with Rogers Telecom relating to,
among other things, the use of Cable’s network. In the future, market conditions may require RCI to further strengthen its
arrangements to better coordinate and integrate its sales and marketing and operational activities within the company.

AT&T Arrangements 
In November 1996, Wireless entered into a long-term strategic alliance with AT&T Corp., its affiliate AT&T Canada Enterprises
Inc. (“AT&T Canada Enterprises”) and its then affiliates, AWE and AT&T Canada. AT&T Canada, now renamed Allstream Inc.,
offers local and long-distance telephone and data transmission services to business customers in Canada. This strategic
alliance included, among other things, a brand licence agreement under which Wireless was granted a licence to use, on a
co-branded basis, the AT&T brand in connection with the marketing of its wireless communications services.

In 1999, Wireless entered into a renewed long-term strategic alliance with AWE, AT&T Canada Enterprises and
AT&T Canada involving a number of agreements. In January 2003, the Company’s supply and marketing agreement and
non-competition agreement with AT&T Canada were terminated. The relevant agreements between Wireless and AWE,
AT&T Canada Enterprises or AT&T Canada, as applicable, are described below.

Brand Licence Agreement 
Wireless entered into an amended brand licence agreement with AT&T Canada Enterprises under which it was granted a
licence to use the AT&T brand on a co-branded basis in connection with the marketing of Wireless’ services. In December
2003, Wireless and AT&T Canada Enterprises amended the brand licence agreement to permit Wireless to terminate the
agreement at any time, but not later than March 31, 2004. Wireless has given notice of termination that will become effec-
tive March 8, 2004. Following a windup period of nine months, Wireless will cease to use the AT&T brand and will thereafter
carry on business as Rogers Wireless. Wireless is required to pay a royalty of approximately $2.5 million per month to
AT&T Canada Enterprises during the windup period until Rogers Wireless ceases to advertise using the AT&T brand.

AWE Investment in Rogers Wireless 
In 1999, as part of the renewed strategic alliance, AT&T and British Telecommunications plc (“BT”) created JVII, a partner-
ship that was 50% indirectly owned by each of AT&T and BT, and, through JVII, they acquired an equity interest of
approximately 331/3% in Rogers for a purchase price of approximately $1.4 billion in 1999. In preparation for its spin-off of
AWE, AT&T transferred its interest in JVII to AWE. In June 2001, AWE acquired BT’s interest in JVII. Also in 2001, through JVII,
AWE participated in an equity rights offering to finance Wireless’ acquisition of additional spectrum licences. AWE’s
equity interest is currently approximately 34.2%. As described below, there are certain rights and restrictions associated
with any future sale of this interest in Wireless that JVII might contemplate.

Mobile Wireless Marketing, Technology and Services Agreement 
Wireless entered into an amended and restated mobile wireless marketing, technology and services agreement with AWE
that enables them to share marketing and technology information and requires the parties to work together to develop
networks with common features for their respective subscribers. This agreement may be terminated at any time by either
party. No amounts are payable under the agreement.

Roaming Agreement 
Wireless maintains a reciprocal roaming agreement with AWE whereby AWE provides wireless communications services
to Wireless’ subscribers when they travel to the U.S. and the Company provides the same services to AWE subscribers
when they travel to Canada. This agreement may be terminated upon short notice by either party.
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Over-the-Air  Activation Agreement 
Wireless currently utilizes the services of AWE for automated “over-the-air” (“OTA”) programming of subscriber handsets.
The current agreement with AWE expires March 31, 2004, at which time the Company will assume responsibility for OTA
programming.

Shareholders Agreement 
In connection with the JVII investment described above, the Company, Wireless, and JVII entered into a shareholders
agreement. Pursuant to the shareholders agreement, Rogers has agreed as a shareholder of Wireless to cause JVII to have
the following rights:

• various governance rights with respect to Wireless and its wholly-owned subsidiary, RWI, including the ability to nom-
inate four directors to each Board of Directors and representation on each committee of such Boards of Directors;

• the ability to nominate any Chief Technology Officer for Wireless or RWI; 
• the requirement for JVII’s consent to certain transactions involving Wireless or RWI including; 

• a sale of all or substantially all of its assets, including a sale of control of RWI; 
• a decision by Wireless or RWI to carry on a business other than specified wireless businesses; 
• certain issuances of equity securities by Wireless; 
• the entering into by Wireless with certain competitors of AWE of any material contract which is outside the ordinary

course of wireless business;
• certain amalgamations, mergers or business combinations; and 
• the entering into of certain related party transactions; 
• the issuance of indebtedness by Wireless that would result in total indebtedness for borrowed money outstanding

in excess of five times earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) based on 12-month
trailing EBITDA calculated on a consolidated basis;

• the grant by the Company to JVII of a right to make a first offer and a right of first negotiation in respect of that
offer if the Company wishes to transfer its shares of Wireless (other than to members of the Rogers group of compa-
nies or pursuant to other exceptions).

The shareholders agreement also provides for, among other things: 

• JVII’s agreement to support any going-private transaction relating to Wireless which is initiated by RCI and which does
not dilute JVII’s equity and voting interest in Wireless, subject to certain liquidity rights in favour of AWE;

• a requirement that JVII convert all of the Class A Multiple Voting Shares owned by it into Class B Restricted Voting
Shares if any person other than AWE and permitted transferees become the beneficial owners of, directly or indirectly,
more than a majority of the equity shares of JVII, or have the power, in law or in fact, to direct the management and
policies of JVII;

• the grant by RCI to JVII of the right to make a first offer, and a right of first negotiation in respect to that offer, if RCI
wishes to sell any shares of Wireless (other than to members of the Rogers group of companies, the Rogers Family or
pursuant to other exceptions);

• the grant by JVII to RCI of the right to make a first offer, and a right of first negotiation in respect to that offer, if JVII
decides to sell any of its shares of Wireless;

• certain shotgun rights of first refusal in the event that a material competitor of AWE acquires control of the Company
at a time when, among other requirements, the Brand Licence Agreement is in effect (on March 8, 2004, Wireless will
begin transitioning its branding to Rogers Wireless from Rogers AT&T Wireless); and

• Wireless has agreed that if Wireless proposes to issue treasury shares, each of the Company and JVII has a pre-emptive
right to purchase additional shares of Wireless in order to maintain their respective voting and equity interests in
Wireless (subject to exceptions).

If JVII notifies RCI that it wishes to sell all or any portion of its shares of Wireless and if RCI does not purchase those shares
under its right of first offer and right of first negotiation, JVII may sell the shares to third parties provided, amongst other
things, that (i) any Class A Multiple Voting Shares of the Company to be sold are first converted into Class B Restricted
Voting Shares, (ii) such shares are sold to any third party at a price greater than the highest price offered to RCI under its
right of first offer and first negotiation and (iii) JVII may not sell to any one third party, shares representing more than 5% of
the equity of Wireless (or 10% in the case of certain service providers to Wireless) to any one party.

The shareholders agreement terminates in certain circumstances, including (subject to exceptions) in the event
that JVII ceases to own at least 20% of the equity shares of Wireless.

Concurrently with entering into the shareholders agreement, Wireless entered into a registration rights agreement
with JVII. Under that agreement, in connection with a sale by JVII of shares of Wireless to a third party or parties, JVII is
entitled, subject to certain limitations, to require Wireless to qualify the sale of such shares pursuant to a prospectus or
registration statement filed with Canadian or U.S. securities regulators.
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Other Related Party Transactions 
The Company has entered into certain transactions with companies, the partners or senior officers of which are directors
of the Company and/or its subsidiary companies. During 2003, total amounts paid by the Company to these related par-
ties for legal services, commissions paid on premiums for insurance coverage and other services aggregated $6.1 million
(2002 – $7.0 million), for interest charges of $15.1 million (2002 – $8.5 million), and for underwriting fees related to financ-
ing transactions and telecommunications and programming services amounting to $59.2 million (2002 – $60.4 million).

The Company also received $0.2 million (2002 – $0.1 million) from RTL for rent and office services.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA 

Set out below is the outstanding share date for the Company as at December 31, 2003. For additional detail, please see
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

C o m m o n  S h a r e s

Class A Voting 56,235,394
Class B Non-Voting 177,241,646

O p t i o n s  t o  P u r c h a s e  C l a s s  B  N o n - V o t i n g  S h a r e s

Outstanding Options 18,981,033
Exercisable Options 12,171,834

Securit ies Convertible into Class B Non-Voting Shares 

N u m b e r  o f
N u m b e r  o r S h a r e s

A m o u n t I s s u a b l e  o n
C l a s s O u t s t a n d i n g C o n v e r s i o n

Series E Convertible Preferred Shares 104,488 104,488
Convertible Preferred Securities $ 600,000,000 17,142,840
Convertible Senior Debentures $ 290,589,000 7,726,270

DIVIDENDS AND OTHER PAYMENTS ON RCI EQUITY SECURITIES 

In May 2003, the RCI Board of Directors (the “Board”) adopted a dividend policy that provides for dividends aggregating,
annually, $0.10 per share to be paid on each outstanding Class A Voting Share and Class B Non-Voting Share. Pursuant to
this policy, the dividends are to be paid twice yearly in the amount of $0.05 per share to holders of record of such shares
on the record date established by the Board for each dividend at the time such dividend is declared. These dividends are
currently scheduled to be made on the first trading day following January 1 and July 1 in each year. As noted below, the
first such semi-annual dividend pursuant to the policy was paid July 2, 2003. Payment of these dividends on the Class A
Voting and Class B Non-Voting Shares requires that a semi-annual dividend in the amount of $0.05 per share be paid at
the same time on the Series E Preferred Shares.

The dividend policy will be reviewed periodically by the Board. The declaration and payment of dividends are at
the sole discretion of the Board and depend on, among other things, RCI’s financial condition, general business condi-
tions, legal restrictions regarding the payment of dividends by it, some of which are referred to below, and other factors
which the Board may, from time to time, consider to be relevant. As a holding company with no direct operations, the
Company relies on cash dividends and other payments from its subsidiaries and its own cash balances to pay dividends to
the Company’s shareholders. The ability of the Company’s subsidiaries to pay such amounts to the Company is limited
and is subject to the various risks as outlined in this discussion, including, without limitation, legal and contractual
restrictions contained in instruments governing subsidiary debt.

During 2003, the Board declared dividends in aggregate of $0.10 per share on each of its outstanding Class B Non-
Voting Shares, Class A Voting Shares and Series E Preferred Shares, $0.05 of which were paid on July 2, 2003 to
shareholders of record on June 16, 2003 and $0.05 of which were paid on January 2, 2004 to shareholders of record on
December 12, 2003.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, no dividends were declared on Class A Voting Shares, Class B Non-
Voting Shares, Series B Preferred Shares and Series E Preferred Shares held by members of its Management Share
Purchase Plan. Prior to 2000, no dividends had been declared on the Class A Voting Shares or Class B Non-Voting Shares
since the fiscal year ended August 31, 1982. In fiscal 2000, dividends aggregating $10.2 million were paid on the Class A
Voting Shares, the Class B Non-Voting Shares, the Series B Preferred Shares and the Series E Preferred Shares. During the
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year ended December 31, 2001, $14,000 of dividends declared in 2001 were paid on Series B Preferred Shares and Series E
Preferred Shares held by members of its Management Share Purchase Plan. Dividends may not be paid in respect of the
Class A Voting Shares or Class B Non-Voting Shares unless all accrued and unpaid dividends in respect of its Preferred
Shares have been paid or provided for. As at December 31, 2002, the Company had declared and paid all dividends sched-
uled to be paid in respect of its Preferred Shares pursuant to the terms of such Preferred Shares. The Company paid
dividends in respect of its Preferred Shares and distributions in respect of its Convertible Preferred securities in aggregate
amounts of approximately $20.3 million, $18.6 million, $18.6 million, $20.3 million and $29.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003 respectively, in each case net of income taxes and exclusive of dividends paid
to subsidiary companies. In 2002, the Company accreted interest, excluding acquisition costs as described in Note 11 (c) to
the Consolidated Financial Statements of approximately $15.4 million on the Company Preferred Securities, net of income
tax recovery of $9.7 million and $16.5 million on the Company’s Collateralized Equity Securities.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Contractual  Obligations 
The Company’s material obligations under firm contractual arrangements, including commitments for future payments
under long-term debt arrangements, mortgage and capital lease obligations and operating lease arrangements are sum-
marized below as at December 31, 2003 and are fully disclosed in Notes 10 and 19 of the Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements.

L e s s  T h a n A f t e r  5
1  Y e a r 1 – 3  Y e a r s 4 – 5  Y e a r s Y e a r s T o t a l

Long-term Debt $ 6,400 $ 946,473 $ 1,503,485 $ 2,479,543 $ 4,935,901
Mortgages and Capital Leases 5,098 27,791 1,313 129 34,331
Operating Leases 114,824 191,874 127,499 85,633 519,830
Purchase Obligation 101,243 44,504 47,056 125,811 318,614
Other Long-Term Liabilities reflected on the 

Balance Sheet Under GAAP 38,607 28,585 7,765 347 75,304

Total $ 266,172 $ 1,239,227 $ 1,687,118 $ 2,691,463 $ 5,883,980

(1) The amended wireless bank credit facility will mature on May 31, 2006 if our Senior Secured Notes due 2006 are not
repaid (by refinancing or otherwise) on or prior to December 31, 2005. If these notes are repaid, then the amended
bank credit facility will mature on September 30, 2007 if our Senior Secured Notes due 2007 are not repaid (by refi-
nancing or otherwise) on or prior to April 30, 2007.

(2) Purchase obligations consist of agreements to purchase goods and services that are enforceable and legally bind-
ing and that specify all significant terms including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased, price provisions
and timing of the transaction. In addition, we incur expenditures for other items that are volume-dependent. An
estimate of what we will spend in 2004 on these items is as follows:

i. Wireless is required to pay annual spectrum licensing and CRTC contribution fees to Industry Canada. We estimate
our total payment obligations to Industry Canada will be approximately $60.0 million in 2004.

ii. Payments to acquire customers in the form of commissions and payments to retain customers in the form of resid-
uals are made pursuant to contracts with distributors and retailers at Wireless. We estimate that payments to these
distributors and retailers will be approximately $340.0 million in 2004.

iii. We are required to make payments to other communications providers for interconnection, roaming and other
services at Wireless. We estimate the total payment obligation to be approximately $145.0 million in 2004.

iv. We estimate our total payments to a major network infrastructure supplier at Wireless to be approximately
$165.0 million in 2004.

v. Based on Cable’s approximately 2.3 million basic cable subscribers as of December 31, 2003, the Company estimates
that its total payment obligation to programming suppliers in 2004 will be approximately $399.9 million, including
amounts payable to the copyright collectives and the Canadian programming production funds. The Company estimates
that Rogers Video will spend approximately $62.7 million in 2004 on the acquisition of videocassettes, DVDs and video
games (as well as non-rental merchandise) for rental or sale in Rogers Video stores. In addition, the Company expects to
pay an additional amount of approximately $24.9 million in 2004 to movie studios as part of its revenue-sharing arrange-
ments with those studios.
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( t h o u s a n d s  o f  d o l l a r s ,  e x c e p t  p e r  s h a r e  a m o u n t s )
Y e a r s  e n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 1 2 0 0 0  1 9 9 9

Income and Cash Flow
Operating Revenue

Cable $ 1,769,220 $ 1,596,401 $ 1,433,029 $ 1,291,161 $ 1,148,519
Wireless 2,282,203 1,965,927 1,753,145 1,639,104 1,418,579
Media 854,992 810,805 721,710 681,023 607,604
Corporate and eliminations (59,052) (50,088) 4,772 – –

4,847,363 4,323,045 3,912,656 3,611,288 3,174,702

Operating Profit1

Cable 663,474 563,480 516,805 457,777 411,205
Wireless 727,572 527,687 411,945 410,924 422,328
Media 106,724 87,635 68,306 77,390 77,252
Corporate and eliminations (48,874) (37,188) (44,535) (28,366) (16,957)

1,448,896 1,141,614 952,521 917,725 893,828

Net Income (loss)3 $ 129,193 $ 312,032 $ (464,361) $ 127,520 $ 977,916

Cash flow from operations2 $ 984,749 $ 642,433 $ 470,471 $ 770,781 $ 495,200
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 963,742 $ 1,261,983 $ 1,420,747 $ 1,212,734 $ 832,423

Average Class A and Class B shares 
outstanding (000’s) 225,918 213,570 208,644 203,761 189,805

Per Share Earnings (loss) – basic $ 0.35 $ 1.05 $ (2.56) $ 0.37 $ 5.01
Balance Sheet
Assets

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 5,039,304 $ 5,051,998 $ 4,717,731 $ 4,047,329 $ 3,539,160
Goodwill and other intangible assets 2,291,855 2,315,734 2,134,925 1,601,433 1,379,582
Investments 229,221 223,937 1,047,888 972,648 554,241
Other assets 905,115 932,834 909,835 1,127,190 683,627

$ 8,465,495 $ 8,524,503 $ 8,810,379 $ 7,748,600 $ 6,156,610

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity (Deficiency)
Long-term debt $ 5,305,016 $ 5,687,471 $ 4,990,357 $ 3,957,662 $ 3,594,966
Accounts payable and other liabilities 1,199,757 1,272,745 1,192,165 1,232,463 1,016,754
Future income taxes – 27,716 137,189 145,560 138,803
Non-controlling interest 193,342 132,536 186,377 88,683 132,459
Shareholders’ equity (deficiency) 1,767,380 1,404,035 2,304,291 2,324,232 1,273,628

$ 8,465,495 $ 8,524,503 $ 8,810,379 $ 7,748,600 $ 6,156,610

1 A s  d e f i n e d  i n  “ K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  a n d  P r o f i t  M a r g i n ”  s e c t i o n .

2 C a s h  f l o w  f r o m  o p e r a t i o n s  b e f o r e  c h a n g e s  i n  w o r k i n g  c a p i t a l  a m o u n t s .  

3 R e s t a t e d  f o r  t h e  c h a n g e  i n  a c c o u n t i n g  o f  f o r e i g n  e x c h a n g e  t r a n s l a t i o n .  
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( t h o u s a n d s  o f  d o l l a r s ,  e x c e p t  p e r  s h a r e  a m o u n t s ) D e c  3 1 S e p t  3 0 J u n e  3 0 M a r  3 1

Income Statement
Operating Revenue

Cable $ 470,647 $ 441,128 $ 429,438 $ 428,007
Wireless1 624,684 599,792 547,848 509,879
Media 243,869 194,691 219,706 196,726
Corporate and eliminations (16,920) (17,329) (13,341) (11,462)

1,322,280 1,218,282 1,183,651 1,123,150

Operating profit2

Cable 176,721 167,585 161,878 157,290
Wireless 166,921 222,295 182,546 155,810
Media 42,610 20,988 37,106 6,020
Corporate (16,942) (10,762) (11,324) (9,846)

369,310 400,106 370,206 309,274

Depreciation and amortization 273,851 261,666 256,427 248,319

Operating income 95,459 138,440 113,779 60,955
Interest on long-term debt (115,364) (121,944) (128,010) (123,547)
Other income (expense) 50,558 (12,045) 96,860 109,620
Income tax recovery (expense) 36,400 (3,039) (3,372) (7,132)
Non-controlling interest 1,784 (18,854) (25,197) (16,158)

Net income (loss) for the period 68,837 (17,442) 54,060 23,738

Net income (loss) per share – basic $ 0.24 $ (0.13) $ 0.18 $ 0.06
Operating profit margin %2

Cable 37.5 38.0 37.7 36.7
Wireless 26.7 37.1 33.3 30.6
Media 17.5 10.8 16.9 3.1
Consolidated 27.9 32.8 31.3 27.5

Other Statistics
Cash flow from operations3 $ 274,496 $ 277,602 $ 244,108 $ 188,543
Property, plant and equipment expenditures $ 307,758 $ 244,722 $ 222,312 $ 188,950

1 W i r e l e s s  r e v e n u e  r e s t a t e d  t o  r e f l e c t  g r o s s  r o a m i n g  r e v e n u e .  

2 A s  d e f i n e d  i n  “ K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  a n d  P r o f i t  M a r g i n ”  s e c t i o n .

3 C a s h  f l o w  f r o m  o p e r a t i o n s  b e f o r e  c h a n g e s  i n  w o r k i n g  c a p i t a l  a m o u n t s .  
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( t h o u s a n d s  o f  d o l l a r s ,  e x c e p t  p e r  s h a r e  a m o u n t s ) D e c  3 1 S e p t  3 0 J u n e  3 0 M a r  3 1

Income Statement
Operating Revenue

Cable $ 422,446 $ 404,422 $ 389,060 $ 380,473
Wireless1 525,652 520,233 481,716 438,326
Media 233,023 187,395 213,570 176,817
Corporate and eliminations (14,124) (12,945) (12,035) (10,984)

1,166,997 1,099,105 1,072,311 984,632

Operating profit2

Cable 156,328 139,771 136,067 131,314
Wireless 123,148 160,906 132,782 110,851
Media 34,468 18,804 30,129 4,234
Corporate (10,483) (8,717) (10,630) (7,358)

303,461 310,764 288,348 239,041
Other expense (recovery) 5,850 – – (12,331)
Depreciation and amortization 251,836 246,534 247,227 235,861

Operating income 45,775 64,230 41,121 15,511
Interest on long-term debt (131,502) (133,107) (118,035) (108,635)
Other income (expense) 798,569 (48,692) (216,923) (12,241)
Income tax recovery (expense) (31,832) 11,564 105,365 (10,367)
Non-controlling interest 17,145 6,241 (324) 18,169

Net income (loss) for the period 698,155 (99,764) (188,796) (97,563)

Net income (loss) per share – basic $ 3.22 $ (0.68) $ (0.96) $ (0.53)
Operating profit margin %2

Cable 37.0 34.6 35.0 34.5
Wireless 23.4 30.9 27.6 25.3
Media 14.8 10.0 14.1 2.4
Consolidated 26.0 28.3 26.9 24.3

Other Statistics
Cash flow from operations3 $ 168,679 $ 173,344 $ 174,415 $ 125,995
Property, plant and equipment expenditures $ 389,925 $ 305,359 $ 324,656 $ 242,043

1 W i r e l e s s  r e v e n u e  r e s t a t e d  t o  r e f l e c t  g r o s s  r o a m i n g  r e v e n u e .  

2 A s  d e f i n e d  i n  “ K e y  P e r f o r m a n c e  I n d i c a t o r s  –  O p e r a t i n g  P r o f i t  a n d  P r o f i t  M a r g i n ”  s e c t i o n .

3 C a s h  f l o w  f r o m  o p e r a t i o n s  b e f o r e  c h a n g e s  i n  w o r k i n g  c a p i t a l  a m o u n t s .  

Quarterly Summary – 2002
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Rogers Communications Inc. and its subsidiaries and all the infor-
mation in Management’s Discussion and Analysis are the responsibility of management and have been approved by the
Board of Directors.

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles. The financial statements include certain amounts that are based on the best estimates and judge-
ments of management, and in their opinion present fairly, in all material respects, Rogers Communications Inc.’s financial
position, results of operations and cash flows. Management has prepared the financial information presented elsewhere
in Management’s Discussion and Analysis and has ensured that it is consistent with the financial statements.

Management of Rogers Communications Inc., in furtherance of the integrity of the financial statements, has devel-
oped and maintains a system of internal controls, which is supported by the internal audit function. Management believes
the internal controls provide reasonable assurance that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, financial
records are reliable and form a proper basis for the preparation of financial statements and that Rogers Communications
Inc.’s assets are properly accounted for and safeguarded. The internal control processes include management’s communi-
cation to employees of policies that govern ethical business conduct.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing management’s responsibility for financial reporting and is
ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the financial statements. The Board carries out this responsibility
through its Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee meets periodically with management, as well as the internal and external auditors, to discuss
internal controls over the financial reporting process, auditing matters and financial reporting issues; to satisfy itself that
each party is properly discharging its responsibilities; and, to review Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the financial
statements and the external auditors’ report. The Audit Committee reports its findings to the Board for consideration
when approving the financial statements for issuance to the shareholders. The Committee also considers, for review by
the Board and approval by the shareholders, the engagement or re-appointment of the external auditors.

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, the external auditors, in accordance with Canadian gener-
ally accepted auditing standards on behalf of the shareholders. KPMG LLP has full and free access to the Audit Committee.

Edward S. Rogers, O.C. Alan D. Horn, C.A.
President and Chief Executive Officer Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders 

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Rogers Communications Inc. as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and
the consolidated statements of income, deficit and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posi-
tion of the Company as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. As required by the Company Act
(British Columbia), we report that, in our opinion, these principles have been applied, after giving retroactive effect to
the change in the accounting policy relating to asset retirement obligations (note 2(d)) and except for the change in the
method of accounting for long-lived assets (note 2(e)), on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year.

Chartered Accountants
Toronto, Canada
January 28, 2004

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting
D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 0 3  



2003 Annual Report Rogers Communications Inc.72

D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 0 3  a n d  2 0 0 2 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Assets
Property, plant and equipment (note 4) $ 5,039,304 $ 5,051,998
Goodwill (note 5(a)) 1,891,636 1,892,060
Intangible assets (note 5(b)) 400,219 423,674
Investments (note 6) 229,221 223,937
Cash and cash equivalents – 26,884
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $75,708 (2002 – $65,503) 550,830 512,127
Deferred charges (note 7) 142,480 184,840
Other assets (note 8) 211,805 208,983

$ 8,465,495 $ 8,524,503

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities:

Bank advances, arising from outstanding cheques $ 10,288 $ –
Long-term debt (note 10) 5,305,016 5,687,471
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,072,667 1,140,578
Unearned revenue 97,577 110,320
Deferred gain (note 10(e)(ii)) 19,225 21,847
Future income taxes (note 13) – 27,716

6,504,773 6,987,932
Non-controlling interest 193,342 132,536
Shareholders’ equity (note 11) 1,767,380 1,404,035

$ 8,465,495 $ 8,524,503

Commitments (note 19)
Guarantees (note 20)
Contingent liabilities (note 21)
Canadian and United States accounting policy differences (note 22)
Subsequent events (notes 6(a) and 23)

S e e  a c c o m p a n y i n g  n o t e s  t o  c o n s o l i d a t e d  f i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s .  

On behalf of the Board: 

Edward S. Rogers H. Garfield Emerson
Chief Executive Officer and Director Chairman of the Board of Directors

Consolidated Balance Sheets
( I n  t h o u s a n d s  o f  d o l l a r s )
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Consolidated Statements of Income
( I n  t h o u s a n d s  o f  d o l l a r s ,  e x c e p t  p e r  s h a r e  a m o u n t s )

Y e a r s  e n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 0 3  a n d  2 0 0 2 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Operating revenue $ 4,847,363 $ 4,323,045
Cost of sales 505,951 458,838
Sales and marketing expenses 905,274 833,038
Operating, general and administrative expenses 1,987,242 1,889,555

Operating income before the following 1,448,896 1,141,614
Other (note 12) – (6,481)
Depreciation and amortization 1,040,263 981,458

Operating income 408,633 166,637
Interest on long-term debt 488,865 491,279

(80,232) (324,642)
Gain on disposition of AT&T Canada Deposit Receipts (note 6(c)) – 904,262
Gain (loss) on sales of other investments (note 6(d)) 17,902 (565)
Write-down of investments (note 6(e)) – (300,984)
Losses from investments accounted for by the equity method (54,033) (100,617)
Gain (loss) on repayment of long-term debt (note 10(e)) (24,839) 10,117
Foreign exchange gain (note 2(g)) 303,707 6,211
Investment and other income, net 2,256 2,289

Income before income taxes and non-controlling interest 164,761 196,071

Income tax expense (reduction) (note 13): 
Current 1,675 12,396
Future (24,532) (87,126)

(22,857) (74,730)

Income before non-controlling interest 187,618 270,801
Non-controlling interest (58,425) 41,231

Net income for the year $ 129,193 $ 312,032

Earnings per share (note 14): 
Basic $ 0.35 $ 1.05
Diluted 0.34 0.83

S e e  a c c o m p a n y i n g  n o t e s  t o  c o n s o l i d a t e d  f i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s .  

Consolidated Statements of Deficit
( I n  t h o u s a n d s  o f  d o l l a r s )

Y e a r s  e n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 0 3  a n d  2 0 0 2 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Deficit, beginning of year $ (415,589) $ (660,022)
Net income for the year 129,193 312,032
Dividends on Class A Voting and Class B Non-Voting Shares (23,238) –
Dividends on Series E Preferred Shares (11) –
Distribution on Convertible Preferred Securities (note 11(c)) (29,791) (20,262)
Accretion on Collateralized Equity Securities (note 11(c)) – (19,745)
Accretion on Preferred Securities (note 11(c)) – (27,592)

Deficit, end of year $ (339,436) $ (415,589)

S e e  a c c o m p a n y i n g  n o t e s  t o  c o n s o l i d a t e d  f i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s .  



2003 Annual Report Rogers Communications Inc.74

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
( I n  t h o u s a n d s  o f  d o l l a r s )

Y e a r s  e n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 0 3  a n d  2 0 0 2 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:

Net income for the year $ 129,193 $ 312,032
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 1,040,263 981,458
Future income taxes (24,532) (87,126)
Non-controlling interest 58,425 (41,231)
Change in estimate of sales tax liability – (19,157)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (290,661) (3,546)
Write-down of investments – 300,984
Loss (gain) on sales of other investments (17,902) 565
Gain on disposition of AT&T Canada Deposit Receipts – (904,262)
Loss (gain) on repayment of long-term debt 24,839 (10,117)
Losses from investments accounted for by the equity method 54,033 100,617
Accrued interest due on repayment of certain notes 10,167 10,767
Dividends from associated companies 924 1,449

984,749 642,433
Change in non-cash operating items (note 9(a)) (130,821) 126,116

853,928 768,549

Financing activities:
Issue of long-term debt 1,589,518 2,977,330
Repayment of long-term debt (1,691,480) (2,445,131)
Proceeds on termination of cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements – 225,210
Premium on early repayment of long-term debt (19,348) (21,773)
Financing costs incurred (6,220) (27,399)
Redemption of Preferred and Collateralized equity instruments – (1,317,040)
Issue of capital stock 252,011 5,729
Distribution on Convertible Preferred Securities (33,000) (33,000)
Dividends on Class B Non-Voting, Class A Voting and Series E Preferred shares (11,607) –

79,874 (636,074)

Investing activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment (963,742) (1,261,983)
Proceeds on disposition of AT&T Canada Deposit Receipts – 1,280,357
Proceeds on sales of other investments 20,705 12,088
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired – (103,425)
Other investments (27,937) (49,829)

(970,974) (122,792)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (37,172) 9,683
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 26,884 17,201

Cash and cash equivalents (deficiency), end of year $ (10,288) $ 26,884

C a s h  a n d  c a s h  e q u i v a l e n t s  ( d e f i c i e n c y )  a r e  d e f i n e d  a s  c a s h  a n d  s h o r t - t e r m  d e p o s i t s ,  w h i c h  h a v e  a n  o r i g i n a l  m a t u r i t y  o f  l e s s  t h a n  9 0  d a y s ,
l e s s  b a n k  a d v a n c e s .

F o r  s u p p l e m e n t a l  c a s h  f l o w  i n f o r m a t i o n  a n d  d i s c l o s u r e  o f  n o n - c a s h  t r a n s a c t i o n s ,  s e e  n o t e  9 ( b ) .

S e e  a c c o m p a n y i n g  n o t e s  t o  c o n s o l i d a t e d  f i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s .  
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
( T a b u l a r  a m o u n t s  i n  t h o u s a n d s  o f  d o l l a r s ,  e x c e p t  p e r  s h a r e  a m o u n t s )  
Y e a r s  e n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 0 3  a n d  2 0 0 2  

1 .  NATURE OF THE BUSINESS:

Rogers Communications Inc. (“RCI”) is a Canadian communications company, carrying on business on a national basis,
engaged in cable television, Internet access and video retailing through its wholly owned subsidiary, Rogers Cable Inc.
(“Cable”), wireless voice, messaging and data services through its 55.8% ownership of Rogers Wireless Communications Inc.
(“Wireless”), and in radio and television broadcasting, televised home shopping and publishing through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Rogers Media Inc. (“Media”). RCI and its subsidiary companies are collectively referred to herein as the Company.

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

(a) Basis of presentation: 
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) and differ in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP as described in note 22. The consolidated financial state-
ments include the accounts of RCI and its subsidiary companies. Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated
on consolidation. When RCI’s subsidiaries issue additional common shares to unrelated parties, RCI accounts for these
issuances as if the Company had sold a portion of its interest in that subsidiary and, accordingly, records a gain or loss on
dilution of RCI’s interest.

Investments over which the Company is able to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the equity
method. Other investments are recorded at cost. Investments are written down when there is evidence that a decline in
value that is other than temporary has occurred.

(b) Property,  plant and equipment:  
Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”) are recorded at purchase cost. During construction of new assets, direct costs plus
a portion of applicable overhead costs are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged to operating
expense as incurred.

(c ) Depreciation: 
PP&E are depreciated annually over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

A s s e t B a s i s R a t e

Buildings Diminishing balance 5%
Towers, head-ends and transmitters Straight line 62/3% to 10%
Distribution cable, subscriber drops and wireless network equipment Straight line 62/3% to 25%
Wireless network radio base station equipment Straight line 121/2% to 141/3%
Computer equipment and software Straight line 141/3% to 331/3%
Customer equipment Straight line 20% to 331/3%
Leasehold improvements Straight line Over term of lease
Other equipment Mainly diminishing balance 20% to 331/3%

(d) Asset retirement obligations:  
Effective January 1, 2003, the Company retroactively adopted The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ (“CICA”)
Handbook Section 3110, “Asset Retirement Obligations”, which harmonizes Canadian GAAP with U.S. Financial
Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) Statement No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”. The standard
provides guidance for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of liabilities for asset retirement obligations and the
associated asset retirement costs. The standard applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible
long-lived asset that result from acquisition, construction, development or normal operations. The standard requires the
Company to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the year in which it is incurred and
when a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The standard describes the fair value of a liability for an asset
retirement obligation as the amount at which that liability could be settled in a current transaction between willing par-
ties, that is, other than in a forced or liquidation transaction. The Company is subsequently required to allocate that asset
retirement cost to expense using a systematic and rational method over the asset’s useful life.

The adoption of this standard had no material impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

(e) Long-l ived assets:  
Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted CICA Handbook Section 3063, “Impairment of Long-Lived Assets”. Long-
lived assets, including PP&E and intangible assets with finite useful lives, are amortized over their useful lives. The
Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to
result from the use and eventual disposition of a group of assets is less than its carrying amount, it is considered to be
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impaired. An impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the group of assets exceeds its
fair value. At December 31, 2003, no such impairment had occurred.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company’s policy was to review the recoverability of PP&E annually or
more frequently if events or circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Recoverability
was measured by comparing the carrying amounts of a group of assets to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to
be generated by that group of assets. As at December 31, 2002, no such impairment had occurred. Intangible assets with
definite lives were tested for impairment by comparing their book values with the undiscounted cash flows expected to
be received from their use. At December 31, 2002, no impairment had occurred.

(f ) Goodwil l  and intangible assets:  
( i ) Goodwil l :  
Goodwill is the residual amount that results when the purchase price of an acquired business exceeds the sum of the
amounts allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired, less liabilities assumed, based on their fair values.
When the Company enters into a business combination, the purchase method of accounting is used. Goodwill is assigned
as of the date of the business combination to reporting units that are expected to benefit from the business combination.

Goodwill is not amortized but instead is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. The impairment test is carried out in two steps. In the first step,
the carrying amount of the reporting unit, including goodwill, is compared with its fair value. When the fair value of the
reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is not considered to be impaired and the sec-
ond step of the impairment test is unnecessary. The second step is carried out when the carrying amount of a reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, in which case, the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill, determined in the same
manner as the value of goodwill is determined in a business combination, is compared with its carrying amount to mea-
sure the amount of the impairment loss, if any.

( i i ) Intangible assets:  
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recorded at their fair values and all intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Intangible assets with determinable lives are amortized over their estimated useful
lives and are tested for impairment as described in note 2(e). Intangible assets having an indefinite life, such as spectrum
licences, are not being amortized but instead are tested for impairment on an annual or more frequent basis by compar-
ing their fair values with book value. An impairment loss on indefinite life intangible assets is recognized when the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value.

The Company has tested goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment at December 31, 2003 and
2002 and determined no impairment in the carrying value of these assets existed.

(g) Foreign currency translation: 
Long-term debt denominated in U.S. dollars is translated into Canadian dollars at the period-end rate of exchange. The
effect of cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements is shown separately in note 10. Exchange gains or losses on
translating long-term debt are recognized in the consolidated statements of income. In 2003, foreign exchange gains
related to the translation of long-term debt totalled $290.7 million (2002 – $3.5 million).

(h) Deferred charges:  
The costs of obtaining bank and other debt financing are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the effec-
tive life of the debt to which they relate.

During the development and pre-operating phases of new products and businesses, related incremental costs are
deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over periods of up to five years.

( i ) Inventories:  
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost, on a first-in, first-out basis, and net realizable value. Video rental inventory,
which includes videocassettes, DVDs and video games, is depreciated to a pre-determined residual value. The residual
value of the video rental inventory is recorded as a charge to operating expense upon the sale of the video rental inven-
tory. Depreciation of video rental inventory is charged to operating expense on a diminishing-balance basis over a
six-month period.

( j ) Pension benefits:  
The Company accrues its pension plan obligations as employees render the services necessary to earn the pension. The
Company uses the current settlement discount rate to measure the accrued pension benefit obligation and uses the corri-
dor method to amortize actuarial gains or losses (such as changes in actuarial assumptions and experience gains or losses)
over the average remaining service life of the employees. Under the corridor method, amortization is recorded only if the
accumulated net actuarial gains or losses exceed 10% of the greater of accrued pension benefit obligation and the value
of the plan assets.
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The Company uses the following methods: 

(i) The cost of pensions is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method prorated on service and man-
agement’s best estimate of expected plan investment performance, salary escalation and retirement ages of employees.

(ii) For the purpose of calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets are valued at fair value.

(iii) Past service costs from plan amendments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service
period of employees.

(k) Acquired program rights:  
Acquired program rights are carried at the lower of cost, less accumulated amortization, or net realizable value. Acquired
program rights and the related liabilities are recorded when the licence period begins and the program is available for
use. The cost of acquired program rights is amortized over the expected performance period of the related programs.
Net realizable value of acquired program rights is reviewed using a daypart methodology.

( l ) Income taxes:  
Future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future income tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Future
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to tax-
able income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation
allowance is recorded against any future income tax asset if it is more likely than not that the asset will not be realized.
Income tax expense is the sum of the Company’s provision for current income taxes and the difference between opening
and ending balances of future income tax assets and liabilities.

(m) Financial  instruments:  
The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage risks from fluctuations in exchange rates and interest
rates. These instruments include cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements, interest rate exchange agreements,
foreign exchange forward contracts and, from time to time, foreign exchange option agreements. All such instruments
are only used for risk management purposes and are designated as hedges of specific debt instruments. The Company
accounts for these financial instruments as hedges and, as a result, the carrying values of the financial instruments are
not adjusted to reflect their current fair value. The net receipts or payments arising from financial instruments relating to
interest are recognized in interest expense on an accrual basis. Upon redesignation or amendment of a derivative finan-
cial instrument, the carrying value of the instrument is adjusted to fair value. If the related debt instrument that was
hedged has been repaid, then the gain or loss is recorded as a component of the gain or loss on repayment of the debt.
Otherwise, the gain or loss is deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the original debt instrument.

These instruments, which have been entered into by the Company to hedge exposure to interest rate and foreign
exchange risk, are periodically examined by the Company to ensure that the instruments are highly effective at reducing
or modifying interest rate or foreign exchange risk associated with the hedged item. For those instruments that do not
meet the above criteria, variations in their fair value are marked-to-market on a current basis in the Company’s consoli-
dated statements of income.

(n) Revenue recognition: 
The Company’s principal sources of revenue and recognition of these revenues for financial statement purposes are as
follows:

(i) Monthly subscriber fees, in connection with wireless services and equipment, cable and Internet services and
equipment, equipment rental and media subscriptions, are recorded as revenue on a pro rata basis over the month;

(ii) Revenue from wireless airtime, wireless long-distance and optional services, pay-per-view and video on demand
services, video rentals and other transactional sales of products are recorded as revenue as the services or products are
provided;

(iii) Advertising revenue is recorded in the period the advertising airs on the Company’s radio or television stations
and the period in which advertising is featured in the Company’s media publications; and

(iv) Monthly subscription revenues received by television stations for subscriptions from cable and satellite providers
are recorded in the month in which they are earned.

Unearned revenue includes subscriber deposits and amounts received from subscribers related to services and subscrip-
tions to be provided in future periods.
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(o) Subscriber acquisit ion costs:  
The Company expenses commissions and equipment subsidies related to the acquisition of new wireless and cable sub-
scribers upon activation. Sales and marketing and other associated costs related to the acquisition of new wireless, cable
and media subscribers are expensed as incurred.

(p) Stock-based compensation and other stock-based payments:  
The Company has a stock option plan for employees and directors. All stock options issued under this plan have an exer-
cise price equal to the fair market value of the underlying Class B Non-Voting shares on the date of grant. As a result, the
Company records no compensation expense on the grant of options to the Company’s employees under the plan. The
Company discloses the pro forma effect of accounting for these awards under the fair value-based method (note 11(d)). 

The Company accounts for all stock-based payments to non-employees and employee awards that are direct
awards of stock, call for settlement in cash or other assets, or are stock appreciation rights that call for settlement by the
issuance of equity instruments using the fair value-based method.

Stock-based awards that are settled in cash or may be settled in cash at the option of employees or directors are
recorded as liabilities. The measurement of the liability and compensation cost for these awards is based on the intrinsic
value of the awards. Compensation cost for the awards is recorded in operating income over the vesting period of the
award. Changes in the Company’s payment obligation prior to the settlement date is recorded in operating income over
the vesting period. The payment amount is established for these awards on the date of exercise of the award by the
employee.

The Company also has an employee share purchase plan. Under the terms of the plan, participating employees
with the Company at the end of the term of the plan, which is usually one year, receive a bonus based on a percentage of
their purchase. Compensation expense is recognized in connection with the employee share purchase plan to the extent
of the bonus provided to employees from the market price of the Class B Non-Voting shares on the date of issue.
Consideration paid by employees on the exercise of stock options or the purchase of shares is recorded as share capital
and contributed surplus. The stock option plan and share purchase plan are more fully described in note 11(d).

The Company has a directors’ deferred share unit plan, under which directors of the Company are entitled to elect
to receive their remuneration in deferred share units. Upon departure as a director, these deferred share units are
redeemed by the Company at the then current Class B Non-Voting shares’ market price. Compensation expense is recog-
nized in the amount of the directors’ remuneration as their services are rendered. The related accrued liability is adjusted
to the market price of the Class B Non-Voting shares at each balance sheet date and the related adjustment is recorded in
operating income. At December 31, 2003, a total of 109,604 (2002 – 83,350) deferred share units were outstanding.

(q) Earnings per share:  
The Company uses the treasury stock method for calculating diluted earnings per share. The diluted earnings per share cal-
culation considers the impact of employee stock options and other potentially dilutive instruments, as described in note 14.

(r ) Guarantees:  
Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted CICA Accounting Guideline 14, “Disclosure of Guarantees” (“AcG-14”)
(note 20), which requires a guarantor to disclose significant information about certain types of guarantees that it has pro-
vided, including certain types of indemnities and indirect guarantees of indebtedness to others, without regard to the
likelihood of whether it will have to make any payments under the guarantees. The disclosure required by AcG-14 is in
addition to the existing disclosure required for contingencies.

(s ) Use of estimates:  
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Key areas of estimation, where management has made difficult, complex or subjective judgements, often as a
result of matters that are inherently uncertain are the provision for bad debts, the ability to use income tax loss carry-
forwards and other future tax assets, capitalization of labour and overhead, useful lives of all depreciable assets, asset
retirement obligations and the recoverability of PP&E, goodwill and intangible assets using estimates of future cash
flows. In addition, the Company has made significant investments in companies or businesses, some of which have expe-
rienced significant operating losses and/or experienced recent declines in market valuation. Significant changes in the
assumptions, including those with respect to future business plans and cash flows, could change the recorded amounts
by a material amount. In addition, continuing declines in market valuations and further operating losses of certain
investees could result in impairment of these investments.

(t ) Recent Canadian accounting pronouncements:  
( i ) Revenue arrangements with multiple del iverables:  
In December 2003, the Emerging Issues Committee issued Abstract 142, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables”,
which the Company will apply prospectively beginning January 1, 2004. This Abstract is consistent with the U.S. standard
with the same title, and addresses both when and how an arrangement involving multiple deliverables should be divided
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into separate units of accounting and how the arrangement’s consideration should be allocated among separate units.
The Company is currently determining the impact of adoption of this standard.

( i i ) Hedging relationships:  
In November 2001, the CICA issued Accounting Guideline 13, “Hedging Relationships” (“AcG-13”), and in November 2002,
the CICA amended the effective date of the guideline. AcG-13 establishes new criteria for hedge accounting and will apply
to all hedging relationships in effect on or after January 1, 2004. Effective January 1, 2004, the Company will re-assess all
hedging relationships to determine whether the criteria are met or not and will apply the new guidance on a prospective
basis. To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must be appropriately documented at the inception of
the hedge and there must be reasonable assurance, both at the inception and throughout the term of the hedge, that the
hedging relationship will be effective. Effectiveness requires a high correlation of changes in fair values or cash flows
between the hedged item and the hedging item. The Company is currently determining the impact of the guideline.

( i i i ) Stock-based compensation: 
In 2003, the CICA amended Handbook Section 3870, “Stock-based Compensation and other Stock-based Payments”, to
require the recording of compensation expense on the granting of all stock-based compensation awards, including stock
options to employees, calculated using the fair-value method. The Company will adopt this standard on January 1, 2004,
retroactively without restatement. If the Company were to use the Black-Scholes Option Pricing model for calculating the
fair value of stock-based compensation, the Company would record a charge to opening retained earnings on January 1,
2004 of $7.0 million related to stock options granted on or after January 1, 2002 (note 11(d)).

( iv) Consolidation of variable interest entit ies:  
In June 2003, the CICA issued Accounting Guideline AcG-15, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“AcG-15”).
AcG-15 addresses the consolidation of variable interest entities (“VIEs”), which are entities which have insufficient equity
at risk to finance their operations without additional subordinated financial support and/or entities whose equity
investors lack one or more of the specified essential characteristics of a controlling financial interest. AcG-15 provides
specific guidance for determining when an entity is a VIE and who, if anyone, should consolidate the VIE. AcG-15 will be
applied in the Company’s year beginning January 1, 2005. The Company expects this to result in its consolidating Blue
Jays Holdco (note 6 (a)), which will affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, and revenues and expenses. However,
as the Company is presently recording 100% of the losses of Blue Jays Holdco, the adoption of this standard will have no
impact on net income or earnings per share.

(v) General ly accepted accounting principles:  
In June 2003, the CICA released Handbook Section 1100, “Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”. This Section estab-
lishes standards for financial reporting in accordance with Canadian GAAP, and describes what constitutes Canadian
GAAP and its sources. This section also provides guidance on sources to consult when selecting accounting policies and
determining appropriate disclosures when a matter is not dealt with explicitly in the primary sources of GAAP. The new
standard is effective on a prospective basis beginning January 1, 2004. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adoption on its consolidated financial statements.

3.  ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES:

The Company has completed certain acquisitions which were accounted for by the purchase method. 

(a) Standard Radio Inc. :  
In April 2002, the Company acquired the assets of 13 radio stations from Standard Radio Inc. for total cash consideration
of $103.4 million. The stations operate as an AM station in Toronto (the FAN), an FM station in Orillia, two FM stations in
Timmins and two FM stations and an AM station in each of Sudbury, Sault Ste. Marie and North Bay.

Details of the net assets acquired, at fair value, and the consideration given, are as follows:

Fixed assets $ 5,000
Goodwill 94,914
Other intangible assets 3,840
Other assets 4,659

108,413
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (4,988)

Total cash consideration $ 103,425
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(b) Rogers Wireless Communications Inc. :  
On March 20, 2002, the Company exchanged, with five institutional investors, 4,305,830 Class B Non-Voting shares of the
Company for 4,925,000 Wireless Class B Restricted Voting shares. This transaction increased the Company’s ownership in
Wireless from 52.4% to 55.8%. This transaction had the impact of increasing goodwill by $92.2 million, reducing the carry-
ing value of non-controlling interest by $12.6 million and increasing the carrying value of share capital and contributed
surplus by $104.8 million.

4.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

Details of PP&E are as follows: 

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

N e t  b o o k N e t  b o o k
C o s t v a l u e C o s t v a l u e

Land and buildings $ 313,695 $ 263,262 $ 298,273 $ 257,673
Towers, head-ends and transmitters 593,757 282,612 536,060 278,632
Distribution cable and subscriber drops 3,438,248 1,855,201 3,136,545 1,785,510
Wireless network equipment 2,629,608 1,369,704 2,419,035 1,363,028
Wireless network radio base station equipment 1,375,739 465,172 1,347,891 489,992
Computer equipment and software 1,193,064 397,867 1,108,670 460,549
Customer equipment 613,741 212,026 613,997 256,144
Leasehold improvements 168,296 67,224 161,159 66,571
Other equipment 416,722 126,236 317,245 93,899

$ 10,742,870 $ 5,039,304 $ 9,938,875 $ 5,051,998

Depreciation expense for 2003 amounted to $973.6 million (2002 – $928.8 million).
PP&E not yet in service and, therefore, not depreciated at December 31, 2003 amounted to $223.1 million (2002 –

$361.8 million).

5.  GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

(a) Goodwil l :  

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Goodwill $ 2,264,840 $ 2,265,264
Less accumulated amortization 373,204 373,204

$ 1,891,636 $ 1,892,060

2003:  
During 2003, Wireless issued 158,495 Class B Restricted Voting shares upon the exercise of stock options and under the
Wireless employee share purchase plan. These transactions decreased the Company’s ownership in Wireless, thereby
resulting in a dilution gain of $2.0 million and decreasing goodwill by $0.4 million.

2002:  
On March 20, 2002, the Company issued 4,305,830 Class B Non-Voting shares of the Company in exchange for 4,925,000
Wireless Class B Restricted Voting shares. This transaction increased the Company’s ownership in Wireless at that time
from 52.4% to 55.8%, thereby increasing goodwill by $92.2 million (note 3(b)).

On April 29, 2002, the Company acquired 13 radio stations from Standard Radio Inc. This transaction had the impact
of increasing goodwill by $94.9 million (note 3(a)).

During 2002, the Toronto Phantoms Football Team ceased operations and, accordingly, the Company wrote off the
unamortized carrying value of the goodwill, being $6.5 million.
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(b) Intangible assets:  

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

N e t  b o o k N e t  b o o k
C o s t v a l u e C o s t v a l u e

Spectrum licences $ 396,824 $ 396,824 $ 396,824 $ 396,824
Brand licence 37,800 – 37,800 22,470
Subscribers 5,200 520 5,200 1,040
Other 3,840 2,875 3,840 3,340

$ 443,664 $ 400,219 $ 443,664 $ 423,674

Amortization of subscribers, brand licence and other in 2003 amounted to $23.5 million (2002 – $3.5 million).
In a spectrum auction conducted by Industry Canada in February 2001, the Company purchased 23 personal com-

munications services licences of 10 megahertz (“MHz”) or 20 MHz each, in the 1.9 gigahertz (“GHz”) band in various regions
across Canada at a cost of $396.8 million, including costs of acquisition. This amount has been recorded as spectrum
licences. The Company has determined that these licences have indefinite lives for accounting purposes.

The AT&T brand licence was acquired in 1996 at an aggregate cost of $37.8 million, which provided Wireless with,
among other things, the right to use the AT&T brand name. The cost of the brand licence was deferred and amortized on
a straight-line basis to expense over the 15-year term of the brand licence agreement. In December 2003, Wireless
announced that it would terminate its brand licence agreement in early 2004 and change its brand name to exclude the
AT&T brand. Consequently, the Company determined the useful life of the brand licence ended on December 31, 2003 and
accordingly, fully amortized the remaining net book value of $20.0 million.

Subscribers are being amortized on a straight-line basis over 10 years.
Other includes the brand name and employment contracts acquired as part of the acquisition of the 13 radio sta-

tions from Standard Radio Inc. (note 3(a)). These intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line basis over
periods ranging between five and seven years.

6. INVESTMENTS:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Q u o t e d Q u o t e d
m a r k e t B o o k m a r k e t B o o k

N u m b e r D e s c r i p t i o n v a l u e v a l u e v a l u e v a l u e

Investments accounted for 
by the equity method:

Blue Jays Holdco $ 95,720 $ 122,844
Other 5,055 7,079

100,775 129,923

Investments accounted for by the 
cost method, net of write-downs 
Publicly traded companies:

Cogeco Cable Inc. 7,253,800 Subordinate
(2002 – Voting

4,253,800) Common 121,501 75,758 40,454 40,454
Cogeco Inc. 2,724,800 Subordinate

Voting
Common 43,488 28,610 28,610 28,610

Other publicly traded companies 25,482 7,508 27,934 10,323

190,471 111,876 96,998 79,387
Private companies 16,570 14,627

$ 229,221 $ 223,937

(a) Investments accounted for by the equity method: 
Toronto Blue Jays Baseball  Club: 
Effective December 31, 2000, the Company purchased an 80% interest in the Toronto Blue Jays Baseball Club (“Blue Jays”)
for cash of $163.9 million. The Company has the option to acquire the 20% minority interest in the Blue Jays at any time,
and the minority interest owner has the right to require the Company to purchase its interest at any time after December 15,
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2003. On January 5, 2004, the Company acquired the 20% minority interest for approximately $39.1 million. This obligation
has been recorded as a liability by the Company. The 20% minority interest owner of the Blue Jays is not required to fund
operating losses of the Blue Jays and, as a result, as required under GAAP, the Company has recorded 100% of the operat-
ing losses of the Blue Jays since acquisition.

Effective April 1, 2001, Rogers Telecommunications Ltd. (“RTL”), a company controlled by the controlling share-
holder of the Company, acquired the Class A Preferred Shares of the subsidiary of RCI that owns the Blue Jays (“Blue Jays
Holdco”) for $30.0 million. These Class A Preferred Shares are voting, redeemable for cash of $30.0 million plus any accrued
unpaid dividends at the option of Blue Jays Holdco at any time after September 14, 2004. Any such redemption requires
the consent of a committee of the board of Blue Jays Holdco, comprising directors that are not related to RTL, RTL’s affili-
ates or its controlling shareholder and requires the prior written consent of the Board of Directors of the Company. These
Class A Preferred Shares may be acquired by the Company at its option at any time. The Class A Preferred Shares pay
cumulative dividends at a rate of 9.167% per annum. For periods up to July 31, 2004, Blue Jays Holdco may satisfy the
cumulative dividends on its Class A Preferred Shares in kind by transferring to RTL income tax loss carryforwards, having
an agreed value equal to the amount of the dividends. Until July 2004, such agreed value is equal to 10% of the amount of
the tax losses. During 2003, Blue Jays Holdco satisfied the dividend by transferring income tax loss carryforwards to RTL
of approximately $24.0 million (2002 – $27.0 million) with an agreed upon value of $2.4 million (2002 – $2.7 million).

As a result of the issuance of the Class A Preferred Shares of Blue Jays Holdco to RTL, the Company does not con-
trol the Blue Jays. Accordingly, effective April 1, 2001, the Company accounts for its investment in Blue Jays Holdco by the
equity method.

RCI agreed at the time of purchase with Major League Baseball that it will: (i) perform or cause the Toronto Blue
Jays Baseball Club (the “Club”) to perform all of the terms imposed by Major League Baseball acting under the scope of its
authority; (ii) perform or cause the Club to perform all duties and obligations of the Club under the governing documents
of Major League Baseball and under those agreements to which Major League Baseball entities are parties; and
(iii) assume and perform or cause the Club to perform all liabilities and obligations of the Club asserted by any party
against any Major League Baseball entity.

If E.S. Rogers is unable to exercise control over the Blue Jays and Major League Baseball (“MLB”) determines that a
sale or transfer of a control interest in the Blue Jays has occurred, then MLB is entitled to take such action as it considers
necessary in accordance with its guidelines, rules and regulations.

The change in the investment in Blue Jays Holdco is the result of cash contributions of $29.4 million (2002 –
$40.6 million) offset by the equity losses of $56.5 million (2002 – $101.7 million).

Condensed consolidated financial information of Blue Jays Holdco is presented below: 

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Assets
Cash and accounts receivable $ 11,942 $ 18,897
Deferred compensation 22,061 26,961
Goodwill 95,509 95,509
Player contracts 32,530 67,458
Other assets 26,504 25,944

$ 188,546 $ 234,769

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 31,234 $ 43,471
Deferred obligations 37,609 44,892

68,843 88,363
Shareholders’ equity 119,703 146,406

$ 188,546 $ 234,769

Revenue $ 133,510 $ 131,682
Operating expenses (152,599) (186,088)

(19,089) (54,406)
Depreciation and amortization (36,270) (41,615)
Interest expense (1,143) (1,272)
Write-down of investments – (4,449)

Loss for the year $ (56,502) $ (101,742)

(b) Cogeco Cable Inc. :  
In March 2003, the Company entered into agreements to purchase 3.0 million Subordinate Voting shares of Cogeco Cable
Inc. (“Cogeco”) in exchange for 2.7 million Class B Non-Voting shares of the Company from a group of investors unaffiliated
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with Cogeco. This transaction and number of shares exchanged was based on the closing market value of Cogeco shares
on the date of the transaction of $11.727 per share (note 11(a)(iii)(a)) and had the effect of increasing the Company’s
investment in Cogeco by $35.3 million, including costs of the transaction. The Company’s total investment in Cogeco rep-
resents an approximate 18.19% equity ownership.

(c ) Gain on disposit ion of AT&T Canada Deposit  Receipts:  
The deposit receipt holders of AT&T Canada Inc. (“AT&T Canada”), including the Company, had a contractual right to real-
ize a minimum deposit receipt price of $37.50 per deposit receipt, increasing at 16% per annum from June 30, 2000 (the
“accreted floor price”) until June 30, 2003, or such earlier time as a minority shareholder of AT&T Canada exercised its
obligation to acquire all of the shares and Deposit Receipts of AT&T Canada. On June 25, 2002, AT&T Corp. announced its
intention to purchase, for cash, the Deposit Receipts of AT&T Canada. This transaction was completed on October 8, 2002 and
the Company recognized a pre-tax gain of approximately $904.3 million. The Company received cash proceeds of approxi-
mately $1,280.4 million and these proceeds were used to redeem the Preferred Securities and settle the Collateralized Equity
Securities, as described below.

The issuance of the Preferred Securities and Collateralized Equity Securities in previous years resulted in the mon-
etization of a substantial portion of the Company’s investment in AT&T Canada, with the Company receiving cash of
approximately $1,186.0 million. The redemption amount with respect to these securities, being $1,317.0 million, was paid
on October 8, 2002, being the same day that the Company received the proceeds from the Deposit Receipts.

The Company, in accordance with the terms of the agreements of these securities, had the right to provide notifi-
cation by specified dates if its intent was to satisfy the redemption of these securities by way of shares. As the Company
determined that it would repay these securities in cash, no notification was provided and the accretion on the value of
these securities after the notice date, being $5.2 million, was expensed in the consolidated statement of income. Amounts
related to the accretion prior to the notice date and the costs incurred by the Company of originally issuing these securi-
ties are recorded in the consolidated statements of deficit (note 11(c)).

(d) Gains ( losses)  on sales of other investments:  
In 2003 and 2002, the Company sold certain investments resulting in the following gains (losses) being recorded:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Publicly traded companies $ 17,902 $ 2,062
Investment accounted for by the equity method – (2,627)

$ 17,902 $ (565)

(e) Write-down of investments:  
During 2002, the Company recorded the following write-down of investments: 

2 0 0 2

Cogeco Cable Inc. and Cogeco Inc. $ 238,921
Other investments in public and private companies 62,063

$ 300,984

In 2000, the Company acquired 4,253,800 Subordinate Voting Common shares of Cogeco for $187.2 million and 2,724,800
Subordinate Voting Common shares of Cogeco Inc. for $120.8 million.

During 2002, the Company determined that the decline in the market value of shares held in Cogeco and Cogeco
Inc. represented an impairment that was other than temporary and the shares were written down to their closing quoted
market value at December 31, 2002.

7.  DEFERRED CHARGES:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Financing costs $ 64,741 $ 77,915
Pre-operating costs 8,854 20,004
CRTC commitments 56,992 69,238
Other 11,893 17,683

$ 142,480 $ 184,840

Amortization of deferred charges for 2003 amounted to $42.4 million (2002 – $47.2 million). Accumulated amortization as
at December 31, 2003 amounted to $138.3 million (2002 – $105.7 million).
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The Company has committed to the Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commission (“CRTC”) to
spend an aggregate of $77.4 million (2002 – $77.4 million) in operating funds to provide certain benefits to the Canadian
broadcasting system. The Company has agreed to pay $50.0 million in public benefits over the next seven years relating
to the CRTC granting of a new television licence in Toronto, $6.0 million relating to the purchase of 13 radio stations
(note 3(a)) and the remainder relating to a CRTC decision permitting the purchase of Sportsnet, Rogers (Toronto) Ltd. and
Rogers (Alberta) Ltd. The amount of these liabilities, included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, is $63.5 million
at December 31, 2003 (2002 – $74.0 million) and will be paid over the next six years. Commitments are being amortized
over seven years, beginning in 2002.

In connection with the repayment of certain long-term debt during the year, the Company wrote off deferred
financing costs of $5.5 million (2002 – $3.0 million) (note 10(e)). In 2002, the Company wrote off the carrying value of cer-
tain cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements relating to the repayment of long-term debt of $2.3 million.

8.  OTHER ASSETS:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Mortgages and loans receivable, including $894 from officers (2002 – $1,848) $ 6,077 $ 11,133
Inventories 69,318 66,433
Video rental inventory 31,685 33,557
Prepaid expenses 57,812 52,372
Deferred pension asset 17,456 17,098
Acquired program rights 17,729 16,883
Other 11,728 11,507

$ 211,805 $ 208,983

Depreciation expense for video rental inventory is charged to operating expenses and amounted to $60.4 million in 2003
(2002 – $56.5 million). The costs of acquired program rights are amortized to operating expense over the expected perfor-
mances of the related programs and amounted to $20.9 million in 2003 (2002 – $16.9 million).

9.  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS:

(a) Change in non-cash operating items: 

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Increase in accounts receivable $ (38,694) $ (14,447)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (91,230) 128,336
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue (12,743) 16,872
Decrease (increase) in deferred charges and other assets 11,846 (4,645)

$ (130,821) $ 126,116

(b) Supplemental  cash f low information: 

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Income taxes paid $ 11,606 $ 15,397
Interest paid 474,044 450,126

(c ) Supplemental  disclosure of non-cash transactions:  

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Class B Non-Voting shares issued in consideration for acquisition of shares of Cogeco $ 35,181 $ –
Accretion on Preferred Securities – (37,246)
Accretion on Collateralized Equity Securities – (19,745)
Class B Non-Voting shares issued on conversion of Series B and 

Series E Convertible Preferred shares 203 1,800
Class B Non-Voting shares issued in consideration for Class B Restricted Voting shares of Wireless – 104,766

In 2003, the Company issued a total of 2,065,402 Class B Non-Voting shares in connection with the acquisition of Cable
Atlantic Inc. (“Cable Atlantic”) (note 11(a)(iii)(b)).
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10.  LONG-TERM DEBT:

I n t e r e s t  r a t e 2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

(a) Corporate:
(i) Convertible Debentures, due 2005 53/4% $ 271,197 $ 320,007
(ii) Senior Notes, due 2006 91/8% – 86,314
(iii) Senior Notes, due 2006 101/2% 75,000 75,000
(iv) Senior Notes, due 2007 87/8% – 324,382
(v) Senior Notes, due 2007 83/4% – 165,000

(b) Wireless:
(i) Bank credit facility Floating 138,000 149,000
(ii) Senior Secured Notes, due 2006 101/2% 160,000 160,000
(iii) Senior Secured Notes, due 2007 8.30% 253,453 309,775
(iv) Senior Secured Debentures, due 2008 93/8% 430,589 526,275
(v) Senior Secured Notes, due 2011 95/8% 633,276 774,004
(vi) Senior Secured Debentures, due 2016 93/4% 200,193 244,680
(vii) Senior Subordinated Notes, due 2007 8.80% 231,443 282,875

(c ) Cable:
(i) Bank credit facilities Floating 36,000 37,000
(ii) Senior Secured Second Priority Notes, due 2005 10.00% 376,777 460,506
(iii) Senior Secured Second Priority Notes, due 2007 7.60% 450,000 450,000
(iv) Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures, due 2007 10.00% – 118,167
(v) Senior Secured Second Priority Notes, due 2012 7.875% 452,340 552,860
(vi) Senior Secured Second Priority Notes, due 2013 6.25% 452,340 –
(vii) Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures, due 2014 9.65% 300,000 300,000
(viii) Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures, due 2032 83/4% 258,480 315,920
(ix) Senior Subordinated Guaranteed Debentures, due 2015 11.00% 146,914 179,561

(d) Media:
Bank credit facility Floating 63,500 –
Mortgages and other Various 40,730 38,375

4,970,232 5,869,701
Effect of cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements 334,784 (182,230)

$ 5,305,016 $ 5,687,471

Further details of long-term debt are as follows: 

(a) Corporate:
( i ) Convertible Debentures,  due 2005:  
The Company’s U.S. $224.8 million Convertible Debentures (accreted amount – U.S. $209.8 million) mature on November 26,
2005. A portion of the interest equal to approximately 2.95% per annum on the issue price (or 2% per annum on the stated
amount at maturity) is paid in cash semi-annually while the balance of the interest will accrue so long as these
Convertible Debentures remain outstanding. Each Convertible Debenture has a face value of U.S. $1,000 and is convert-
ible, at the option of the holder at any time, on or prior to maturity, into 34.368 Class B Non-Voting shares. The conversion
rate, as at December 31, 2003, equates to a conversion price of U.S. $27.16 per share (2002 – U.S. $26.22 per share). These
Convertible Debentures are redeemable in cash, at the option of the Company, at any time. In 2003 and 2002, none of
these Convertible Debentures was converted into Class B Non-Voting shares. To date, an aggregate U.S. $0.2 million at
maturity has been converted into 6,528 Class B Non-Voting shares.

( i i ) Senior Notes,  due 2006:  
The Company’s U.S. $54.6 million Senior Notes were redeemed on April 14, 2003 at a redemption price of 101.521% of the
aggregate principal amount (note 10(e)).

( i i i ) Senior Notes,  due 2006:  
The Company’s $75.0 million Senior Notes mature on February 14, 2006. 

( iv) Senior Notes,  due 2007:  
The Company’s U.S. $205.4 million Senior Notes were redeemed on July 17, 2003 at a redemption price of 102.958% of the
aggregate principal amount (note 10(e)).
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(v) Senior Notes,  due 2007:  
The Company’s $165.0 million Senior Notes were redeemed on August 6, 2003 at a redemption price of 102.917% of the
aggregate principal amount (note 10(e)).

The Company’s senior notes and debentures described above are senior unsecured general obligations of the
Company ranking equally with each other. Interest is paid semi-annually on all notes and debentures, except for the
Convertible Debentures, due 2005, as described above.

(b) Wireless:  
( i ) Bank credit  faci l ity:  
At December 31, 2003, $138.0 million (2002 – $149.0 million) of debt was outstanding under the bank credit facility, which
provides Wireless with, among other things, up to $700.0 million from a consortium of Canadian financial institutions.

Under the credit facility, Wireless may borrow at various rates, including the bank prime rate to the bank prime
rate plus 13/4% per annum, the bankers’ acceptance rate plus 1% to 23/4% per annum and the London Inter-Bank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 1% to 23/4% per annum. Wireless’ bank credit facility requires, among other things, that Wireless sat-
isfy certain financial covenants, including the maintenance of certain financial ratios.

Subject to the paragraph below, this credit facility is available on a fully revolving basis until the first date speci-
fied below, at which time, the facility becomes a revolving/reducing facility and the aggregate amount of credit available
under the facility will be reduced as follows:

D a t e  o f  r e d u c t i o n * R e d u c t i o n  a t  e a c h  d a t e

On April 30:
2006 $ 140,000
2007 140,000
2008 420,000

* T h e  b a n k  c r e d i t  f a c i l i t y  w i l l  m a t u r e  o n  M a y  3 1 ,  2 0 0 6  i f  W i r e l e s s ’  S e n i o r  S e c u r e d  N o t e s ,  d u e  2 0 0 6  a r e  n o t  r e p a i d  ( b y  r e f i n a n c i n g  o r  o t h e r w i s e )
o n  o r  p r i o r  t o  D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 0 5 .  I f  t h e s e  n o t e s  a r e  r e p a i d ,  t h e n  t h e  b a n k  c r e d i t  f a c i l i t y  w i l l  m a t u r e  o n  S e p t e m b e r  3 0 ,  2 0 0 7  i f  W i r e l e s s ’
S e n i o r  S e c u r e d  N o t e s ,  d u e  2 0 0 7  a r e  n o t  r e p a i d  ( b y  r e f i n a n c i n g  o r  o t h e r w i s e )  o n  o r  p r i o r  t o  A p r i l  3 0 ,  2 0 0 7 .

The credit facility requires that any additional senior debt (other than the bank credit facility described above) that is
denominated in a foreign currency be hedged against foreign exchange fluctuations on a minimum of 50% of such addi-
tional senior borrowings in excess of the Canadian equivalent of U.S. $25.0 million.

Borrowings under the credit facility are secured by the pledge of a senior bond issued under a deed of trust, which is
secured by substantially all the assets of Wireless and certain of its subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions and prior liens.

( i i ) Senior Secured Notes,  due 2006:  
Wireless’ $160.0 million Senior Secured Notes mature on June 1, 2006. These notes are redeemable, in whole or in part, at
Wireless’ option, at any time subject to a certain prepayment premium.

( i i i ) Senior Secured Notes,  due 2007:  
Wireless’ U.S. $196.1 million Senior Secured Notes mature on October 1, 2007. These notes are redeemable, in whole or in
part, at Wireless’ option, on or after October 1, 2002, at 104.15% of the principal amount, declining ratably to 100% of the
principal amount on or after October 1, 2005, plus, in each case, interest accrued to the redemption date.

( iv) Senior Secured Debentures,  due 2008:  
Wireless’ U.S. $333.2 million Senior Secured Debentures mature on June 1, 2008. These debentures are redeemable, in whole
or in part, at Wireless’ option, at any time on or after June 1, 2003, at 104.688% of the principal amount, declining ratably to
100% of the principal amount on or after June 1, 2006, plus, in each case, interest accrued to the redemption date.

(v) Senior Secured Notes,  due 2011:  
Wireless’ U.S. $490.0 million Senior Secured Notes mature on May 1, 2011. During 2002, Wireless repurchased U.S. $10.0 mil-
lion principal amount of these notes (note 10(e)). These notes were redeemable, in whole or in part, at Wireless’ option,
at any time subject to a certain prepayment premium.

(vi ) Senior Secured Debentures,  due 2016:  
Wireless’ U.S. $154.9 million Senior Secured Debentures mature on June 1, 2016. These debentures are redeemable, in
whole or in part, at Wireless’ option, at any time, subject to a certain prepayment premium.

Each of Wireless’ Senior Secured Notes and Debentures described above is secured by the pledge of a senior bond that is
secured by the same security as the security for the bank credit facility described in note 10(b)(i) and ranks equally with
the bank credit facility.
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(vi i ) Senior Subordinated Notes,  due 2007:  
Wireless’ U.S. $179.1 million Senior Subordinated Notes mature on October 1, 2007. During 2002, Wireless repurchased an
aggregate U.S. $35.9 million principal amount of these notes (note 10(e)). These notes are redeemable, in whole or in part,
at Wireless’ option on or after October 1, 2002, at 104.40% of the principal amount, declining ratably to 100% of the prin-
cipal amount on or after October 1, 2005 plus, in each case, interest accrued to the redemption date. The subordinated
notes are subordinated to all existing and future senior obligations of Wireless (including the bank credit facility and the
Senior Secured Notes and Debentures). The subordinated notes are not secured by the pledge of a senior bond.

Interest is paid semi-annually on all of Wireless’ notes and debentures. 

(c ) Cable:  
( i ) Bank credit  faci l it ies:  
Effective January 31, 2002, Cable entered into a new amended and restated bank credit facility (the “New Bank Credit
Facility”) providing a bank credit facility of up to $1,075.0 million. At December 31, 2003, $36.0 million (2002 – $37.0 million)
was outstanding under the New Bank Credit Facility. The New Bank Credit Facility provides for two separate facilities:
(i) a $600.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility (the “Tranche A Credit Facility”) which will mature on January 2,
2009 and (ii) a $475.0 million senior secured reducing/revolving credit facility (the “Tranche B Credit Facility”) which is sub-
ject to reduction on an annual basis and which will be scheduled to reduce to nil on January 2, 2009, as outlined below. In
September 2003, Cable amended its New Bank Credit Facility to eliminate the possibility of earlier than scheduled matu-
rity of the Tranche B Credit Facility and established a carve-out, as described in the reduction schedule shown below.

The New Bank Credit Facility is secured by the pledge of a senior bond issued under a deed of trust which is secured
by substantially all of the assets of Cable and its wholly owned subsidiary, Rogers Cable Communications Inc. (“RCCI”), sub-
ject to certain exceptions and prior liens. In addition, under the terms of an inter-creditor agreement, the proceeds of any
enforcement of the security under the deed of trust would be applied first to repay any obligations outstanding under the
Tranche A Credit Facility. Additional proceeds would be applied pro rata to repay all other obligations of Cable secured by
senior bonds, including the Tranche B Credit Facility and Cable’s senior secured notes and debentures.

The Tranche B Credit Facility is available, subject to the restriction discussed below*, on a reducing/revolving
basis, with the original amount of credit available under the Tranche B Credit Facility scheduled to reduce as follows:

D a t e  o f  r e d u c t i o n R e d u c t i o n  a t  e a c h  d a t e

On January 2:
2006 $ 118,750
2007 118,750
2008 118,750
2009 118,750

* O f  t h e  $ 4 7 5 . 0  m i l l i o n  a v a i l a b i l i t y  u n d e r  t h e  T r a n c h e  B  C r e d i t  F a c i l i t y ,  $ 4 0 0 . 0  m i l l i o n  i s  r e s e r v e d  t o  r e p a y  t h e  a g g r e g a t e  a m o u n t  o f  C a b l e ’ s
S e n i o r  S e c u r e d  S e c o n d  P r i o r i t y  N o t e s ,  d u e  2 0 0 5  ( t h e  “ N o t e s ” )  ( n o t e  1 0 ( c ) ( i i ) )  t h a t  i s  o u t s t a n d i n g  f r o m  t i m e  t o  t i m e .  W h e n  a l l  o r  a n y  p o r t i o n
o f  t h e  a g g r e g a t e  a m o u n t  o f  t h e  N o t e s  i s  r e p a i d  f r o m  t i m e  t o  t i m e  f r o m  a n y  s o u r c e ,  i n c l u d i n g  t h e  T r a n c h e  B  C r e d i t  F a c i l i t y ,  t h e n  t h e
$ 4 0 0 . 0 m i l l i o n  r e s e r v e d  a m o u n t  i s  r e d u c e d  b y  a n  a m o u n t  e q u a l  t o  t h e  r e p a y m e n t  a n d  s u c h  a m o u n t  o f  t h e  T r a n c h e  B  C r e d i t  F a c i l i t y  b e c o m e s
f u l l y  a v a i l a b l e  t o  C a b l e .

The New Bank Credit Facility requires, among other things, that Cable satisfy certain financial covenants, including the
maintenance of certain financial ratios. The interest rate charged on the New Bank Credit Facility ranges from nil to 2.25%
per annum over the bank prime rate or base rate or 0.875% to 3.25% per annum over the bankers’ acceptance rate or
LIBOR.

( i i ) Senior Secured Second Priority Notes,  due 2005:  
Cable’s U.S. $291.5 million Senior Secured Second Priority Notes mature on March 15, 2005. 

( i i i ) Senior Secured Second Priority Notes,  due 2007:  
On February 5, 2002, Cable issued $450.0 million 7.60% Senior Secured Second Priority Notes due on February 6, 2007.
The notes are redeemable at Cable’s option, in whole or in part, at any time, with at least 30 days and not more than
60 days prior notice subject to a certain prepayment premium.

( iv) Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures,  due 2007:  
Cable’s U.S. $74.8 million Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures were redeemed on June 26, 2003 at a redemption
price of 105.00% of the aggregate principal amount. During 2002, Cable repurchased U.S. $36.0 million of these debentures
(note 10(e)).
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(v) Senior Secured Second Priority Notes,  due 2012:  
On April 30, 2002, Cable issued U.S. $350.0 million 7.875% Senior Secured Second Priority Notes due on May 1, 2012.
The notes are redeemable at Cable’s option, in whole or in part, at any time, with at least 30 days and not more than
60 days prior notice subject to a certain prepayment premium.

(vi ) Senior Secured Second Priority Notes,  due 2013:  
On June 19, 2003, Cable issued U.S. $350.0 million 6.25% Senior Secured Second Priority Notes due June 15, 2013. The notes
are redeemable at Cable’s option, in whole or in part, at any time with at least 30 days and not more than 60 days prior
notice subject to a certain prepayment premium.

(vi i ) Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures,  due 2014:  
Cable’s $300.0 million Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures mature on January 15, 2014. The debentures are
redeemable at Cable’s option, in whole or in part, at any time on or after January 15, 2004, at 104.825% of the principal
amount, declining ratably to 100% of the principal amount on or after January 15, 2008, plus, in each case, interest
accrued to the redemption date.

(vi i i ) Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures,  due 2032:  
On April 30, 2002, Cable issued U.S. $200.0 million 8.75% Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures due on May 1, 2032.
The debentures are redeemable at Cable’s option, in whole or in part, at any time, with at least 30 days and not more
than 60 days prior notice subject to a certain prepayment premium.

Each of Cable’s senior secured notes and debentures described above is secured by the pledge of a senior bond which is
secured by the same security as the security for the bank credit facility described in note 10(c)(i) and rank equally in
regard to the proceeds of any enforcement of security with the Tranche B Credit Facility.

( ix) Senior Subordinated Guaranteed Debentures,  due 2015:  
Cable’s U.S. $113.7 million Senior Subordinated Guaranteed Debentures mature on December 1, 2015. During 2002, Cable
repurchased U.S. $11.3 million principal amount of these debentures (note 10(e)). The subordinated debentures are
redeemable at Cable’s option, in whole or in part, at any time on or after December 1, 2005, at 105.5% of the principal
amount, declining ratably to 100% of the principal amount on or after December 1, 2009, plus, in each case, interest
accrued to the redemption date. The subordinated debentures are subordinated in right of payment to all existing and
future senior indebtedness of Cable (including the New Bank Credit Facility and the senior secured notes and debentures)
and are not secured by the pledge of a senior bond.

Interest is paid semi-annually on all of Cable’s notes and debentures. 

(d) Media:  
Bank credit  faci l ity:  
At December 31, 2003, Media had $63.5 million (2002 – nil) outstanding under its $500.0 million revolving bank credit facil-
ity with a consortium of Canadian financial institutions. Borrowings under this facility are available to Media and two
wholly owned subsidiaries, Rogers Broadcasting Limited and Rogers Publishing Limited (collectively, the “Borrowers”) for
general corporate purposes. Media’s bank credit facility is available on a fully revolving basis until maturity on
September 30, 2006 and there are no scheduled reductions prior to maturity.

The interest rates charged on this credit facility range from the bank prime rate or U.S. base rate plus 0.25% to
2.50% per annum and the bankers’ acceptance rate or LIBOR plus 1.25% to 3.50% per annum. The bank credit facility
requires, among other things, that Media satisfy certain financial covenants, including the maintenance of certain finan-
cial ratios.

The bank credit facility is secured by floating charge debentures over most of the assets of the Borrowers, subject
to certain exceptions. The Borrowers have cross-guaranteed their present and future liabilities and obligations under the
credit facility.

(e) Debt repayment:  
(i) During 2003, the Company redeemed an aggregate U.S. $334.8 million and Cdn. $165.0 million principal amount of
Senior Notes and Debentures. The Company paid a prepayment premium of $19.3 million, and wrote off deferred financ-
ing costs of $5.5 million, resulting in a loss on the repayment of debt of $24.8 million.
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(ii) During 2002, an aggregate U.S. $796.1 million notional amount of cross-currency and interest rate exchange agree-
ments were terminated either by unwinding or maturity, resulting in aggregate net cash proceeds of $225.2 million.
A portion of these proceeds was used to repay or redeem a total of U.S. $326.1 million principal amount of Senior Notes
and Debentures. The Company paid a prepayment premium of $21.8 million, recorded a gain on the unwinding of cross-
currency and interest rate exchange agreements of $4.2 million, recorded a gain on the repurchase of debt of $30.7 million
and wrote off deferred financing costs of $3.0 million, resulting in a net gain on the repayment of debt of $10.1 million.
In addition, the Company has deferred a gain of $22.5 million related to the unwinding of cross-currency exchange agree-
ments, which is being amortized to interest expense over the remaining life of the related debt. Amortization in 2003 was
$2.6 million (2002 – $0.7 million).

(f ) Interest exchange agreements:  
(i) At December 31, 2003, total U.S. dollar-denominated long-term debt amounted to U.S. $2,868.3 million (2002 –
U.S. $2,845.9 million). The Company has entered into several cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements and for-
ward foreign exchange contracts in order to reduce the Company’s exposure to changes in the exchange rate of the U.S.
dollar as compared to the Canadian dollar. At December 31, 2003, U.S. $1,943.4 million (2002 – U.S. $1,768.4 million) or
67.8% (2002 – 62.1%) is hedged through cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements at an average exchange rate of
Cdn. $1.4647 (2002 – $1.4766) to U.S. $1.00. 

(ii) The cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements have the effect of: converting the interest rate on
U.S. $1,558.4 million (2002 – U.S. $1,383.4 million) of long-term debt from an average U.S. dollar fixed interest rate of 8.82%
(2002 – 9.15%) per annum to an average Canadian dollar fixed interest rate of 9.70% (2002 – 9.94%) per annum on
$2,346.0 million (2002 – $2,110.7 million); and converting the interest rate on U.S. $385.0 million of long-term debt from an
average U.S. dollar fixed interest rate of 9.38% per annum to an average Canadian dollar floating interest rate equal to
the bankers’ acceptance rate plus 2.35% per annum, which totalled 5.11% (2002 – 5.22%) on $500.5 million at December 31,
2003. The Company assumed an interest rate exchange agreement upon completion of an acquisition during 2001. This
interest rate exchange agreement has the effect of converting $30.0 million of floating rate obligations of the Company
to a fixed interest rate of 7.72% per annum. The total long-term debt at fixed interest rates at December 31, 2003 was
$4,560.6 million (2002 – $5,024.2 million) or 86.0% (2002 – 88.3%) of total long-term debt.

The Company’s effective weighted average interest rate on all long-term debt as at December 31, 2003, including
the effect of the interest exchange agreements and cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements, was 8.48% (2002 –
8.74%). 

The obligations under U.S. $1,943.4 million (2002 – $1,768.4 million) of the cross-currency interest rate exchange
agreements are secured by substantially all of the assets of the respective subsidiary companies to which they relate and
generally rank equally with the other secured indebtedness of such subsidiary companies.

(g) Principal  repayments:  
As at December 31, 2003, principal repayments due within each of the next five years and in total thereafter on all long-
term debt are as follows:

2004 $ 11,498
2005 651,140
2006 323,125
2007 936,190
2008 568,608

2,490,561
Thereafter 2,479,671

4,970,232
Effect of cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements 334,784

$ 5,305,016

The provisions of the long-term debt agreements described above impose, in most instances, restrictions on the opera-
tions and activities of the companies governed by these agreements. Generally, the most significant of these restrictions
are debt incurrence and maintenance tests, restrictions upon additional investments, sales of assets and payment of divi-
dends. In addition, the repayment dates of certain debt agreements may be accelerated if there is a change in control of
the respective companies. At December 31, 2003, the Company is in compliance with all terms of the long-term debt
agreements.
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11. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Capital stock:
Preferred shares:

Held by subsidiary companies:
60,000 Series XXVII (2002 – 60,000) $ 60,000 $ 60,000
818,300 Series XXX (2002 – 818,300) 10,000 10,000
300,000 Series XXXI (2002 – 300,000) 300,000 300,000

370,000 370,000
Held by members of the Company’s share purchase plans:

104,488 Series E convertible preferred shares (2002 – 135,836) 1,787 2,327

371,787 372,327

Common shares:
56,235,394 Class A Voting shares (2002 – 56,240,494) 72,313 72,320
177,241,646 Class B Non-Voting shares (2002 – 158,784,358) 287,978 257,989

360,291 330,309

732,078 702,636

Deduct:
Amounts receivable from employees under certain share purchase plans 1,186 6,274
Preferred shares of the Company held by subsidiary companies 370,000 370,000

371,186 376,274

Total capital stock 360,892 326,362

Convertible Preferred Securities (note 11(b)(i)) 576,000 576,000
Contributed surplus 1,169,924 917,262
Deficit (339,436) (415,589)

1,406,488 1,077,673

$ 1,767,380 $ 1,404,035

(a) Capital  stock:  
( i ) Preferred shares:  
Rights and conditions: 
There are 400 million authorized Preferred Shares without par value, issuable in series, with rights and terms of each
series to be fixed by the Board of Directors prior to the issue of such series.

The Series XXVII Preferred Shares are non-voting, are redeemable at $1,000 per share at the option of the Company
and carry the right to cumulative dividends at a rate equal to the bank prime rate plus 13/4% per annum.

The Series XXX Preferred Shares are non-voting, are redeemable at $1,000 per share at the option of the Company
and carry the right to non-cumulative dividends at a rate of 91/2% per annum.

The Series XXXI Preferred Shares are non-voting, are redeemable at $1,000 per share at the option of the Company
and carry the right to cumulative dividends at a rate of 95/8% per annum.

The Series E Convertible Preferred Shares are non-voting and are redeemable and retractable under certain condi-
tions. All of these shares are convertible at the option of the holder up to the mandatory date of redemption into Class B
Non-Voting shares of the Company at a conversion rate equal to one Class B Non-Voting share for each convertible pre-
ferred share to be converted. These shares are entitled to receive, ratably with holders of the Class B Non-Voting shares,
cash dividends per share in an amount equal to the cash dividends declared and paid per share on Class B Non-Voting
shares.

( i i ) Common shares:  
Rights and conditions: 
There are 56,240,494 authorized Class A Voting shares without par value. Each Class A Voting share is entitled to 25 votes
per share. The Class A Voting shares may receive a dividend at a semi-annual rate of up to $0.05 per share only after the
Class B Non-Voting shares have been paid a dividend at an annual rate of $0.05 per share. The Class A Voting shares are
convertible on a one-for-one basis into Class B Non-Voting shares.

There are 1.4 billion authorized Class B Non-Voting shares with a par value of $1.62478 per share. The Class A Voting
and Class B Non-Voting shares share equally in dividends after payment of a dividend of $0.05 per share for each class.
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( i i i ) During 2003,  the Company completed the fol lowing capital  stock transactions:  
(a) 2,700,000 Class B Non-Voting shares with a value of $35.2 million were issued as consideration for the acquisition
of 3,000,000 Subordinated Voting shares of Cogeco (note 6(b));

(b) On February 7, 2003, as per the expected conditions of the 2001 acquisition of Cable Atlantic, the Company issued
1,329,007 Class B Non-Voting shares to the vendors. The vendors disputed the Company’s calculation of the requisite
number of shares to be issued. In December 2003, the Company and the vendors agreed upon the requisite number of
shares to be issued, with the Company issuing an additional 736,395 Class B Non-Voting shares to the vendors;

(c) 11,889 Series E Convertible Preferred Shares with a value of $0.2 million were converted to 11,889 Class B Non-
Voting shares and 19,459 Series E Convertible Preferred shares were cancelled;

(d) 952,250 Class B Non-Voting shares were issued to employees upon the exercise of options for cash of $8.6 million;

(e) On June 12, 2003, 12,722,647 Class B Non-Voting shares were issued to a syndicate of Canadian underwriters for net
cash proceeds of approximately $239.0 million; and

(f) 5,100 Class A Voting shares were converted to 5,100 Class B Non-Voting shares. 

As a result of the above transactions, $252.7 million of the issued amounts related to Class B Non-Voting shares was
recorded in contributed surplus.

( iv) During 2002,  the Company completed the fol lowing capital  stock transactions:  
(a) 4,500 Series XXIII Preferred Shares were redeemed from a subsidiary company for $4.5 million and cancelled;

(b) 300,000 Series XXXII Preferred Shares were redeemed from a subsidiary company for $300.0 million and cancelled;

(c) 1,042,049 Series XXXIII Preferred Shares were issued to a subsidiary company as consideration of the repayment of
debt owing by RCI to the subsidiary. These shares were subsequently redeemed for $1,042.0 million and cancelled;

(d) 120,984 Series B and 17,525 Series E Convertible Preferred Shares with a value of $1.8 million were converted to
138,509 Class B Non-Voting shares. 4,631 Series B Convertible Preferred Shares with a value of $0.1 million reached the
date of mandatory redemption and were redeemed for cash;

(e) 449,045 Class B Non-Voting shares were issued to employees upon the exercise of options for cash of $4.1 million;

(f) 4,305,830 Class B Non-Voting shares with a value of $104.8 million were issued as consideration for the acquisition
of 4,925,300 Class B Restricted Voting shares of Wireless;

(g) The 5,333,333 warrants issued in 1999 expired in 2002. The carrying value of these warrants, being $24.0 million,
was transferred to contributed surplus; and

(h) 339,100 Class B Non-Voting shares were issued to employees pursuant to the employee share purchase plan for
cash of $4.8 million.

As a result of the above transactions, $130.6 million of the issued amounts related to Class B Non-Voting shares was
recorded in contributed surplus.

(v) The Articles of Continuance of the Company under the Company Act (British Columbia) impose restrictions on the
transfer, voting and issue of the Class A Voting and Class B Non-Voting shares in order to ensure that the Company
remains qualified to hold or obtain licences required to carry on certain of its business undertakings in Canada.

The Company is authorized to refuse to register transfers of any shares of the Company to any person who is not a
Canadian in order to ensure that the Company remains qualified to hold the licences referred to above.

(b) Equity instruments:  
( i ) Convertible Preferred Securit ies and Warrants:  
Convertible Preferred Securities were issued in 1999 with a face value of $600.0 million to a subsidiary of Microsoft
Corporation (“Microsoft”). These Convertible Preferred Securities bear interest at 51/2% per annum, payable quarterly in
cash, Class B Non-Voting shares or additional Convertible Preferred Securities, at the Company’s option. The Convertible
Preferred Securities are convertible, in whole or in part, at any time, at Microsoft’s option, into 28.5714 Class B Non-
Voting shares per $1,000 aggregate principal amount of Convertible Preferred Securities, representing a conversion price
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of $35 per Class B Non-Voting share. The Convertible Preferred Securities mature on August 11, 2009, and are callable by
the Company on or after August 11, 2004, subject to certain conditions. The Company has the option of repaying the
Convertible Preferred Securities in cash or Class B Non-Voting shares.

As part of the transaction to issue the Convertible Preferred Securities, the Company issued 5,333,333 warrants to
Microsoft, each exercisable into one Class B Non-Voting share. These warrants expired on August 11, 2002.

The Company received cash proceeds of $600.0 million for the issue of the Convertible Preferred Securities and
warrants, which were allocated to Convertible Preferred Securities, including the conversion feature, in the amount of
$576.0 million and the warrants in the amount of $24.0 million. Upon expiration of the warrants in 2002, $24.0 million was
transferred to contributed surplus. Interest on the Convertible Preferred Securities is recorded for accounting purposes as
a charge to the consolidated statements of deficit, similar to a dividend.

( i i ) Preferred Securit ies:  
On August 10, 2000, the Company issued $1,154.4 million principal amount of Preferred Securities due June 30, 2003, with
an interest rate of 7.27% per annum, compounded quarterly. The Preferred Securities could have been settled, in whole
or in part, at the Company’s option, with Class B Non-Voting shares, the number of which was based on the daily average
trading prices of the Class B Non-Voting shares. Interest of approximately $216.9 million to June 30, 2003 was prepaid,
with the Company receiving net proceeds of $937.5 million, which, less fees and expenses of $12.2 million, resulted in
$925.3 million of net proceeds. Contemporaneously, the Company entered into an interest exchange agreement, effec-
tively converting the fixed interest rate to a floating interest rate at bankers’ acceptance rate plus 1.25%. The Company
could have settled its obligation under this interest exchange agreement, at its option, in cash or Class B Non-Voting
shares of the Company.

On October 8, 2002, the Company settled its obligation under the Preferred Securities using cash (note 6(c)).

( i i i ) Col lateral ized Equity Securit ies:  
On October 23, 2001, the Company entered into certain equity derivative contracts that served to monetize an additional
portion of the accreted floor price of its AT&T Canada Deposit Receipts, after taking into account the monetization
through the Preferred Securities issued in August 2000. The Company received proceeds of $248.9 million, which, less fees
and expenses, resulted in net proceeds of $245.6 million. The settlement terms of these contracts enabled the Company to
settle or net-settle in Class B Non-Voting shares, the number of which was based on the trading value of the Class B Non-
Voting shares, or physically settle or net cash settle these contracts, in whole or in part, or in any combination thereof, at
the Company’s option.

On October 8, 2002, the Company paid its obligation under the Collateralized Equity Securities in cash (note 6(c)).

(c ) Distr ibutions and accretions on Preferred Securit ies and Collateral ized Equity Securit ies:  
The distribution on Convertible Preferred Securities are recorded net of future income taxes of $3.2 million (2002 –
$12.7 million). In 2002, the accretion on Preferred Securities were recorded net of future income taxes of $9.7 million.
In addition, in 2002, the accretion on the Collateralized Equity Securities and Preferred Securities included issue costs of
$3.2 million and $12.2 million, respectively, which previously were recorded as a reduction of the carrying value of these
securities (notes 6(c)) and 11(b)(ii) and (iii)).

(d) Stock option and share purchase plans:  
( i ) Stock option plans:  
Details of the RCI stock option plan are as follows: 

The Company’s stock option plan provides senior employee participants an incentive to acquire an equity owner-
ship interest in the Company over a period of time and, as a result, reinforces executives’ attention on the long-term
interest of the Company and its shareholders. Under the plan, options to purchase Class B Non-Voting shares of the
Company on a one-for-one basis may be granted to employees, directors and officers of the Company and its affiliates by
the Board of Directors or by the Company’s Management Compensation Committee. There are 11.0 million options autho-
rized under the 2000 plan, 12.5 million options authorized under the 1996 plan, and 4.75 million options authorized under
the 1994 plan. The term of each option is 10 years; the vesting period is generally four years but may be adjusted by the
Management Compensation Committee on the date of grant. The exercise price for options is equal to the fair market
value of the Class B Non-Voting shares, as quoted on The Toronto Stock Exchange on the grant date.
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2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

W e i g h t e d W e i g h t e d
a v e r a g e a v e r a g e

N u m b e r  o f e x e r c i s e N u m b e r  o f e x e r c i s e
o p t i o n s p r i c e o p t i o n s p r i c e

Outstanding, beginning of year 16,226,896 $ 18.82 17,463,270 $ 18.86
Granted 4,197,800 18.70 228,216 21.50
Exercised (952,250) 8.99 (449,045) 9.10
Forfeited (491,413) 27.89 (1,015,545) 24.44

Outstanding, end of year 18,981,033 $ 19.06 16,226,896 $ 18.82

Exercisable, end of year 12,171,834 $ 17.85 11,349,805 $ 15.76

At December 31, 2003, the range of exercise prices, the weighted average exercise price and the weighted average
remaining contractual life are as follows:

O p t i o n s  o u t s t a n d i n g O p t i o n s  e x e r c i s a b l e

W e i g h t e d
a v e r a g e W e i g h t e d W e i g h t e d

r e m a i n i n g a v e r a g e a v e r a g e
N u m b e r c o n t r a c t u a l e x e r c i s e N u m b e r e x e r c i s e

R a n g e  o f  e x e r c i s e  p r i c e s o u t s t a n d i n g l i f e  ( y e a r s ) p r i c e e x e r c i s a b l e p r i c e

$5.78 – $8.52 4,266,400 3.5 $ 6.72 4,266,400 $ 6.72
$9.46 – $13.17 2,283,550 5.2 12.22 1,826,050 11.98
$16.75 – $23.77 8,089,632 8.1 21.31 2,902,767 23.02
$25.44 – $38.16 4,341,451 6.9 30.58 3,176,617 31.44

18,981,033 6.4 $ 19.06 12,171,834 $ 17.85

Details of Wireless’ stock option plan are as follows: 
Wireless’ stock option plan provides senior employee participants an incentive to acquire an equity ownership

interest in Wireless over a period of time and, as a result, reinforce executives’ attention on the long-term interest of
Wireless and its shareholders. Under the plan, options to purchase Class B Restricted Voting shares of Wireless may be
granted to employees, directors and officers of Wireless by the Board of Directors or by Wireless’ Management
Compensation Committee. There are 4,750,000 options authorized under the 2000 plan. The term of each option is 10 years;
the vesting period is generally four years but may be adjusted by the Management Compensation Committee on the date
of grant. The exercise price for options is equal to the fair market value of the Class B Restricted Voting shares of
Wireless, as quoted on The Toronto Stock Exchange on the grant date.

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

W e i g h t e d W e i g h t e d
a v e r a g e a v e r a g e

N u m b e r  o f e x e r c i s e N u m b e r  o f e x e r c i s e
o p t i o n s p r i c e o p t i o n s p r i c e

Options outstanding, beginning of year 3,471,017 $ 25.04 3,641,613 $ 25.57
Granted 1,111,200 20.47 269,800 16.56
Exercised (158,495) 18.18 (19,759) 17.62
Forfeited (196,625) 22.39 (420,637) 24.50

Options outstanding, end of year 4,227,097 $ 24.22 3,471,017 $ 25.04

Exercisable, end of year 2,291,372 $ 27.36 1,869,442 $ 26.72



2003 Annual Report Rogers Communications Inc.94

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

At December 31, 2003, the range of exercise prices, the weighted average exercise price and the weighted average
remaining contractual life are as follows:

O p t i o n s  o u t s t a n d i n g O p t i o n s  e x e r c i s a b l e

W e i g h t e d
a v e r a g e W e i g h t e d W e i g h t e d

r e m a i n i n g a v e r a g e a v e r a g e
N u m b e r c o n t r a c t u a l e x e r c i s e N u m b e r e x e r c i s e

R a n g e  o f  e x e r c i s e  p r i c e s o u t s t a n d i n g l i f e  ( y e a r s ) p r i c e e x e r c i s a b l e p r i c e

$11.82 – $16.88 1,158,272 7.6 $ 16.33 436,022 $ 16.02
$18.15 – $22.06 1,891,825 7.5 21.12 1,117,450 21.14
$25.96 – $32.75 588,200 7.8 27.00 149,100 30.07
$37.74 – $51.53 588,800 6.3 46.87 588,800 46.87

4,227,097 7.4 $ 24.22 2,291,372 $ 27.36

There was no compensation expense related to stock options for 2003 or 2002.

Stock-based compensation: 
For stock options granted to employees on or after January 1, 2002, had the Company determined compensation expense
based on the “fair value” method at the grant date of such stock option awards, consistent with the method prescribed
under CICA Handbook Section 3870, the Company’s net income for the year and earnings per share would have been
reported as the pro forma amounts indicated below. The fair value of the options is amortized on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period.

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Net income for the year, as reported $ 129,193 $ 312,032
Stock-based compensation expense – RCI (5,323) (441)
Stock-based compensation expense – Wireless (1,073) (185)

Pro forma net income for the year $ 122,797 $ 311,406

Earnings (loss) per share:
Reported earnings for the year $ 0.35 $ 1.05
Effect of stock-based compensation expense (0.03) –

Pro forma basic earnings per share $ 0.32 $ 1.05

Diluted earnings per share, as reported $ 0.34 $ 0.83
Pro forma diluted earnings per share 0.31 0.83

The weighted average estimated fair value at the date of the grant for RCI options granted during 2003 was $10.78 (2002 –
$10.39) per share. The weighted average fair value at the date of grant for Wireless options granted for 2003 was $12.20
(2002 – $8.35) per share. The fair value of each option granted was estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

RCI’s risk-free interest rate 4.42% 4.86%
Wireless’ risk-free interest rate 4.50% 4.81%
RCI’s dividend yield 0.21% –
Wireless’ dividend yield – –
Volatility factor of the future expected market price of RCI’s Class B Non-Voting shares 50.20% 48.82%
Volatility factor of the future expected market price of Wireless’ Class B Restricted Voting shares 55.17% 51.95%
Weighted average expected life of the RCI options 6.6 years 5 years
Weighted average expected life of the Wireless options 5.3 years 5 years

( i i ) Employee share purchase plan: 
The employee share purchase plan was provided to enable employees of the Company an opportunity to obtain an
equity interest in the Company by permitting them to acquire Class B Non-Voting shares. A total of 1,180,000 Class B Non-
Voting shares were set aside and reserved for allotment and issuance pursuant to the employee share purchase plan.

Under the terms of the employee share purchase plan, participating employees of the Company may have received
a bonus at the end of the term of the plan. The bonus is calculated as the difference between the share price at the date
the employee received the loan and the lesser of 85% of the closing price at which the shares traded on The Toronto
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Stock Exchange on the trading day immediately prior to the purchase date or the closing price on a date that is approxi-
mately one year subsequent to the original issue date.

During 2003, no Class B Non-Voting shares (2002 – 339,100) were issued under the Company’s employee share pur-
chase plan (cash in 2002 of $4.8 million). Compensation expense recorded for the Company’s employee share purchase
plan for 2003 was $0.6 million (2002 – $2.2 million).

In addition, employees of Wireless may participate in Wireless’ employees share purchase plan. During 2003, no
Wireless Class B Restricted Voting shares (2002 – 135,325) were issued under the Wireless employee share purchase plan
(cash in 2002 of $1.9 million). Compensation expense recorded in Wireless for 2003 was $0.3 million (2002 – $1.0 million).

12.  OTHER EXPENSE (RECOVERY):

2 0 0 2

Workforce reduction costs (a) $ 5,850
Wireless – change in estimate of sales tax liability (b) (19,157)
Wireless – CRTC contribution liabilities (c) 6,826

$ (6,481)

(a) Workforce reduction costs:  
During 2002, the Company reduced its workforce in Cable by 187 employees in the technical service, network operations
and engineering departments. The Company incurred $5.9 million in costs, primarily related to severance and other
employee termination benefits. Of this amount, $1.9 million was paid in fiscal 2002, with the balance of $4.0 million being
paid in fiscal 2003.

(b) Wireless – change in estimate of sales tax l iabi l ity:  
During 2002, Wireless received clarification of a provincial sales tax liability for a matter common to the wireless industry.
As a result, Wireless revised its estimate with respect to this liability and released a provision of $19.2 million associated
with this matter, which had been established in previous years.

(c ) Wireless – CRTC contribution l iabi l it ies:  
During 2002, Wireless received clarification of the calculation of the total amount of contribution payable under the CRTC
contribution subsidy decision. As a result, an additional expense of $6.8 million was recorded.

13.  INCOME TAXES:

The income tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of future income tax assets and lia-
bilities are as follows:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Future income tax assets:
Non-capital income tax loss carryforwards $ 608,691 $ 628,565
Deductions relating to long-term debt and other transactions 

denominated in foreign currencies 50,391 92,599
Investments 103,769 79,544
Other deductible differences 38,655 35,687

Total future income tax assets 801,506 836,395
Less valuation allowance 606,015 544,500

195,491 291,895

Future income tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment and inventory (121,351) (237,422)
Goodwill (48,276) (34,343)
Other taxable differences (25,864) (47,846)

Total future income tax liabilities (195,491) (319,611)

Net future income tax liability $ – $ (27,716)
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In assessing the realizability of future income tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the future income tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of future income tax
assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the years in which the temporary differences
are deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of future income tax liabilities, the character of the
income tax assets and the tax planning strategies in place in making this assessment. To the extent that management
believes that the realization of future income tax assets does not meet the more likely than not realization criterion, a
valuation allowance is recorded against the future tax assets.

Total income tax expense (reduction) varies from the amounts that would be computed by applying the statutory
income tax rate to income before income taxes for the following reasons:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Statutory income tax rate 36.6% 38.6%

Income tax expense on income before income taxes and non-controlling interest $ 60,302 $ 75,683
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:

Change in the valuation allowance for future income tax assets 46,267 (13,630)
Adjustments to future income tax assets and liabilities for changes 

in substantively enacted tax rates (70,502) (13,243)
Non-taxable portion of capital gains (9,610) (398)
Non-taxable exchange gains on debts and other items (46,954) (21,626)
Recovery of prior years’ income taxes (9,206) –
Non-deductible portion of losses from investments accounted for by the equity method 10,514 19,419
Other non-taxable amounts (14,549) (17,230)
Non-taxable portion of gain on disposition of AT&T Canada Deposit Receipts – (174,542)
Non-deductible portion of write-down of investments – 58,089
Large Corporations Tax 10,881 12,748

Income tax reduction $ (22,857) $ (74,730)

As at December 31, 2003, the Company has the following non-capital income tax losses available to reduce future years
income for income tax purposes:

Income tax losses expiring in the year ending December 31: 

2004 $ 298,225
2005 166,962
2006 54,311
2007 335,128
2008 585,299
2009 146,871
2010 64,957

$ 1,651,753



2003 Annual ReportRogers Communications Inc. 97

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

14.  EARNINGS PER SHARE:

The following table sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share: 

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Numerator:
Net income for the year $ 129,193 $ 312,032
Distribution on Convertible Preferred Securities, net of income taxes (note 11(c)) (29,791) (20,262)
Accretion of Preferred Securities, net of income taxes (note 11(c)) – (27,592)
Accretion of Collateralized Equity Securities (note 11(c)) – (19,745)
Dividends accreted on Convertible Preferred Securities, net of income taxes (20,033) (19,177)
Dividends on Series E Preferred shares (note 11(c)) (11) –

Basic income for the year 79,358 225,256
Effect of dilutive securities:

Preferred Securities, net of income taxes – 29,822
Dividends on Series E Preferred shares (note 11(c)) 11 –

Diluted income for the year $ 79,369 $ 255,078

Denominator (in thousands):
Weighted average number of shares outstanding – basic 225,918 213,570
Effect of dilutive securities:

Employee stock options 3,565 3,614
Series E Preferred shares (note 11(c)) 126 136
Cable Atlantic (note 11(a)(iii)(b)) 825 1,329
Preferred Securities – 88,870

Weighted average number of shares outstanding – diluted 230,434 307,519

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.35 $ 1.05
Diluted 0.34 0.83

For 2003 and 2002, the effect of potentially dilutive securities, including the Convertible Debentures and the Convertible
Preferred Securities, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as their effect is anti-dilutive.
In addition, options totalling approximately 12.4 million (2002 – 9.3 million) that are anti-dilutive were excluded from the
calculation. 

15.  PENSIONS:

The Company maintains both contributory and non-contributory defined benefit pension plans that cover most of its
employees. The plans provide pensions based on years of service, years of contributions and earnings. The Company does
not provide any non-pension post-retirement benefits.

Actuarial estimates are based on projections of employees’ compensation levels at the time of retirement. Maximum
retirement benefits are primarily based upon career average earnings, subject to certain adjustments. The most recent
actuarial valuations were completed as at January 1, 2001.

The Company also provides supplemental unfunded pension benefits to certain executives. As at December 31,
2003, the accrued benefit obligation relating to these supplemental plans amounted to approximately $11.8 million and
related expense for 2003 was $3.1 million.

The estimated present value of accrued plan benefits and the estimated market value of the net assets available to
provide for these benefits calculated at September 30 for the year ended December 31 are as follows:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Plan assets, at fair value $ 336,138 $ 307,231
Accrued benefit obligations 368,184 336,267

Deficiency of plan assets over accrued benefit obligations (32,046) (29,036)
Employer contributions after measurement date 11,000 –
Unrecognized transitional obligation (57,983) (67,880)
Unamortized past service 5,803 6,632
Unamortized net actuarial loss 90,682 107,382

Deferred pension asset $ 17,456 $ 17,098
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Pension fund assets consist primarily of fixed income and equity securities, valued at market value. The following
information is provided on pension fund assets:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Plan assets, beginning of year $ 307,231 $ 331,834
Actual return (loss) on plan assets 36,332 (21,326)
Contributions by employees 13,248 13,426
Benefits paid (20,673) (16,703)

Plan assets, end of year $ 336,138 $ 307,231

Accrued benefit obligations are outlined below: 

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Accrued benefit obligations, beginning of year $ 336,267 $ 308,492
Service cost 11,314 12,649
Interest cost 23,826 22,835
Benefits paid (20,673) (16,703)
Employee contributions 13,248 13,426
Actuarial loss (gains) 4,202 (4,432)

Accrued benefit obligations, end of year $ 368,184 $ 336,267

Net plan expense is outlined below: 

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Plan cost: 
Service cost $ 11,314 $ 12,649
Interest cost on accrued benefit obligations 23,826 22,835
Expected return on plan assets (22,107) (27,241)
Amortization of transitional asset (9,046) (8,950)
Amortization of net actuarial loss 7,452 2,808

Net plan expense $ 11,439 $ 2,101

Actuarial assumptions: 

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Weighted average discount rate for accrued benefit obligations 6.25% 7.00%
Weighted average rate of compensation increase 4.00% 5.00%
Weighted average expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.25% 8.25%

Allocation of plan assets: 

P e r c e n t a g e  o f T a r g e t  a s s e t
p l a n  a s s e t s , a l l o c a t i o n

A s s e t  c a t e g o r y D e c e m b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 0 3 p e r c e n t a g e

Equity securities 59.8% 50% – 65%
Debt securities 38.8% 35% – 50%
Other (cash) 1.4% 0% – 1.0%

100.0%
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The Company makes contributions to the plans to secure the benefits of plan members and invests in permitted
investments using the target ranges established by the Pension Committee of the Company. The Pension Committee
reviews actuarial assumptions on an annual basis. The assumptions established including the expected long-term rate of
return are based on existing performance and trends and expected results. 

Contributions:

E m p l o y e r E m p l o y e e T o t a l

Actual contributions during 2002 $ – $ 13,426 $ 13,426
Actual contributions during 2003 11,000 13,248 24,248
Expected contributions during 2004 9,680 13,500 23,180

Employee contributions for 2004 are assumed to be at levels similar to 2002 and 2003 on the assumption staffing levels in
the Company will remain the same on a year-over-year basis.

16.  SEGMENTED INFORMATION:

(a) Operating segments:  
The Company provides wireless services, cable services and, through Media, radio and television broadcasting and the
publication of magazines and periodicals. All of these operating segments are substantially in Canada. Information by
operating segment for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

2 0 0 3

C o r p o r a t e
i t e m s  a n d C o n s o l i d a t e d

W i r e l e s s C a b l e M e d i a e l i m i n a t i o n s t o t a l

Operating revenue $ 2,282,203 $ 1,769,220 $ 854,992 $ (59,052) $ 4,847,363
Cost of sales 244,479 129,938 131,534 – 505,951
Sales and marketing expenses 522,716 206,843 175,715 – 905,274
Operating, general and administrative expenses 787,436 768,965 441,019 (10,178) 1,987,242

Operating income (loss) before the following 727,572 663,474 106,724 (48,874) 1,448,896
Management fees 11,336 35,385 12,551 (59,272) –
Depreciation and amortization 518,599 482,050 36,311 3,303 1,040,263

Operating income 197,637 146,039 57,862 7,095 408,633
Interest on long-term debt (193,506) (237,803) (8,296) (49,260) (488,865)
Intercompany:

Interest expense – (2,867) (46,380) 49,247 –
Dividends – 4,488 43,325 (47,813) –

Gain on sale of other investments 305 – 1,107 16,490 17,902
Loss on repayment of long-term debt – (5,945) – (18,894) (24,839)
Gain (loss) from investments accounted for 

by the equity method – – 964 (54,997) (54,033)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 135,242 49,302 (852) 120,015 303,707
Investment and other income (expense) 556 (516) (464) 2,680 2,256
Income tax reduction (expense) (2,393) (7,541) 703 32,088 22,857
Non-controlling interest – – – (58,425) (58,425)

Net income (loss) for the year $ 137,841 $ (54,843) $ 47,969 $ (1,774) $ 129,193

PP&E expenditures $ 411,933 $ 509,562 $ 41,266 $ 981 $ 963,742

Goodwill acquired $ – $ – $ – $ – $ –

Goodwill $ 378,719 $ 926,445 $ 586,472 $ – $ 1,891,636

Identifiable assets $ 3,107,343 $ 3,720,087 $ 1,467,149 $ 170,916 $ 8,465,495
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2 0 0 2

C o r p o r a t e
i t e m s  a n d C o n s o l i d a t e d

W i r e l e s s C a b l e M e d i a e l i m i n a t i o n s t o t a l

Operating revenue $ 1,965,927 $ 1,596,401 $ 810,805 $ (50,088) $ 4,323,045
Cost of sales 209,948 121,335 127,555 – 458,838
Sales and marketing expenses 462,784 193,644 176,610 – 833,038
Operating, general and administrative expenses 765,508 717,942 419,005 (12,900) 1,889,555

Operating income (loss) before the following 527,687 563,480 87,635 (37,188) 1,141,614
Management fees 11,006 31,745 10,773 (53,524) –
Other expense (recovery) (12,331) 5,850 – – (6,481)
Depreciation and amortization 457,133 484,225 33,291 6,809 981,458

Operating income 71,879 41,660 43,571 9,527 166,637
Interest on long-term debt (195,150) (208,645) (13,477) (74,007) (491,279)
Intercompany: 

Interest expense – (4,687) (54,854) 59,541 –
Dividends – 5,447 63,534 (68,981) –

Gain on disposition of AT&T Canada Deposit Receipts – – – 904,262 904,262
Loss on sale of other investments – – – (565) (565)
Write-down of investments (11,136) – (289,848) (300,984)
Loss from investments accounted for by the equity method – – (2,481) (98,136) (100,617)
Gain (loss) on repayment of long-term debt 30,997 (20,880) – – 10,117
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 6,410 (3,090) 107 2,784 6,211
Investment and other income (expense) 417 (3,886) 208 5,550 2,289
Income tax reduction (expense) (5,258) 146,387 (840) (65,559) 74,730
Non-controlling interest – – – 41,231 41,231

Net income (loss) for the year $ (90,705) $ (58,830) $ 35,768 $ 425,799 $ 312,032

PP&E expenditures $ 564,552 $ 650,871 $ 42,692 $ 3,868 $ 1,261,983

Goodwill acquired $ 92,157 $ – $ 94,914 $ – $ 187,071

Goodwill $ 379,143 $ 926,445 $ 586,472 $ – $ 1,892,060

Identifiable assets $ 3,185,004 $ 3,806,778 $ 1,453,579 $ 79,142 $ 8,524,503

(b) Product revenue:
Revenue from external customers is comprised of the following:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Wireless:
Postpaid (voice and data) $ 1,920,993 $ 1,632,874
Prepaid 91,255 91,151
One-way messaging 27,565 35,238
Equipment sales 242,390 206,664

2,282,203 1,965,927

Cable:
Cable 1,167,496 1,095,736
Internet 322,290 242,635
Video store operations 282,635 262,995
Corporate eliminations (3,201) (4,965)

1,769,220 1,596,401

Media:
Advertising 456,357 422,627
Circulation and subscriber 127,258 121,094
Retail 210,547 202,219
Other 60,830 64,865

854,992 810,805
Corporate eliminations (59,052) (50,088)

$ 4,847,363 $ 4,323,045
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17.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Company entered into the following related party transactions: 

(a) The Company has entered into certain transactions in the normal course of business with AT&T Wireless Services
Inc. (“AWE”), a shareholder of a subsidiary company, and with certain broadcasters in which the Company has an equity
interest as follows:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Roaming revenue billed to AWE $ 13,030 $ 13,910
Roaming expenses paid to AWE (13,628) (18,028)
Fees paid to AWE for over air activation (292) (680)
Programming rights acquired from the Blue Jays (12,028) (12,377)
Access fees paid to broadcasters accounted for by the equity method (18,967) (16,949)

$ (31,885) $ (34,124)

These transactions are recorded at the exchange amount, being the amount agreed to by the related parties.

(b) The Company has entered into certain transactions with companies, the partners or senior officers of which are
directors of the Company and/or its subsidiary companies. During 2003, total amounts paid by the Company to these related
parties for legal services, commissions paid on premiums for insurance coverage and other services aggregated $6.1 million
(2002 – $7.0 million), for interest charges of $15.1 million (2002 – $8.5 million) and for underwriting fees related to financing
transactions and telecommunications and programming services amounted to $59.2 million (2002 – $60.4 million).

(c) As part of the arrangement with Blue Jays Holdco and RTL, Blue Jays Holdco is to pay dividends at a rate of 9.167%
per annum on the Class A Preferred Shares that RTL holds of Blue Jays Holdco. During 2003 and 2002, the Company satis-
fied the dividend by transferring income tax loss carryforwards to RTL (note 6(a)).

(d) The Company also received $0.2 million (2002 – $0.1 million) from RTL for rent and office services.

18.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

(a) Fair  values:  
The Company has determined the fair values of its financial instruments as follows: 

(i) The carrying amounts in the consolidated balance sheets of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
amounts receivable from employees under share purchase plans, mortgages and loans receivable, bank advances arising
from outstanding cheques, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair values because of the short-
term nature of these instruments.

( i i ) Investments:  
The fair values of investments, which are publicly traded, are determined by the quoted market values for each of the
investments (note 6). Management believes that the fair values of other investments are not significantly different from
their carrying amounts.

( i i i ) Long-term debt:  
The fair values of each of the Company’s long-term debt instruments are based on the period-end trading values.

( iv) Interest exchange agreements:  
The fair values of the Company’s interest exchange agreements and cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements
are based on values quoted by the counterparties to the agreements.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s long-term debt and related interest exchange agreements as at
December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

C a r r y i n g E s t i m a t e d C a r r y i n g E s t i m a t e d
a m o u n t f a i r  v a l u e a m o u n t f a i r  v a l u e

Liability (asset):
Long-term debt $ 4,970,232 $ 5,382,622 $ 5,869,701 $ 5,617,465

Cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements 334,784 388,192 (182,230) (350,502)

$ 5,305,016 $ 5,770,814 $ 5,687,471 $ 5,266,963
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Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judge-
ment and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

(b) Other disclosures:  
(i) The credit risk of the interest exchange agreements and cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements arises
from the possibility that the counterparties to the agreements may default on their obligations under the agreements in
instances where these agreements have positive fair value to the Company. The Company assesses the creditworthiness
of the counterparties in order to minimize the risk of counterparty default under the agreements. All of the portfolio is
held by financial institutions with a Standard & Poor’s rating (or the equivalent) ranging from A+ to AA.

(ii) The Company does not require collateral or other security to support the credit risk associated with the interest
exchange agreements and cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements due to the Company’s assessment of the
creditworthiness of the counterparties.

(iii) The Company does not have any significant concentrations of credit risk related to any financial asset.

19. COMMITMENTS:

(a) In the ordinary course of business and in addition to the amounts recorded on the consolidated balance sheets and
disclosed elsewhere in the notes, the Company has entered into agreements to acquire broadcasting rights to programs
and films over the next two years at a total cost of approximately $75.3 million.

(b) The Company has a 33.33% interest in each of Tech TV Canada, Biography Channel Canada and MSNBC Canada, all
of which are equity-accounted investments. The Company has committed to fund its share of the losses and PP&E expen-
ditures, in these new channels, to a maximum of $8.8 million, through equity financing and shareholder loans. As at
December 31, 2003, the Company has funded a total of $5.6 million.

(c) Pursuant to CRTC regulation, the Company is required to make contributions to the Canadian Television Fund (“CTF”),
which is a cable industry fund designed to foster the production of Canadian television programming. Contributions to the
CTF are based on a formula, including gross broadcast revenues and the number of subscribers. The Company may elect to
spend a portion of the above amount for local television programming and may also elect to contribute a portion to
another CRTC-approved independent production fund. The Company estimates that its total contribution for 2004 will
amount to approximately $30.0 million.

(d) The future minimum lease payments under operating leases for the rental of premises, distribution facilities,
equipment and microwave towers and commitments for other contracts at December 31, 2003 are as follows:

Y e a r  e n d i n g  D e c e m b e r  3 1 :

2004 $ 114,824
2005 102,984
2006 88,890
2007 70,972
2008 56,527
2009 and thereafter 85,633

$ 519,830

Rent expense for 2003 amounted to $113.7 million (2002 – $118.0 million). 

20.  GUARANTEES:

The Company has made certain warranties and indemnities to the purchasers with respect to the sale of shares of Bowdens
Media Monitoring Limited and Rogers American Cablesystems Inc. These warranties and indemnifications expire in 2005 and
are limited in both cases to the total purchase price paid being $40.3 million and $29.4 million, respectively. To date, there
have been no claims under the warranties and indemnities and the Company does not anticipate that any will occur.



2003 Annual ReportRogers Communications Inc. 103

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

21.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

(a) There exist certain claims and potential claims against the Company, none of which is expected to have a material
adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company.

(b) The Company requires access to support structures and municipal rights of way in order to deploy facilities. In a
2003 decision, the Supreme Court of Canada determined that the CRTC does not have the jurisdiction to establish the
terms and conditions of access to the poles of hydroelectric companies. As a result of this decision, the costs of obtaining
access to the poles of hydroelectric companies could be substantially increased on a prospective basis and, for certain
arrangements, on a retroactive basis. The Company, together with other Ontario cable companies, has applied to the
Ontario Energy Board to request that it assert jurisdiction over the fees paid by such companies to hydroelectric distribu-
tors. The amount of this contingency is presently not determinable.

22.  CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES ACCOUNTING POLICY DIFFERENCES:

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with GAAP as applied in
Canada. In the following respects, GAAP as applied in the United States differs from that applied in Canada.

If United States GAAP were employed, the net income in each year would be adjusted as follows: 

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Net income for the year based on Canadian GAAP $ 129,193 $ 312,032
Gain on sale of cable systems (b) (4,028) (4,028)
Pre-operating costs (c) 11,150 12,580
Interest on equity instruments (d) (35,388) (92,372)
Capitalized interest (e) 5,405 7,837
Financial instruments (h) (217,514) 125,963
Stock-based compensation (i) (1,150) (1,892)
Other 516 9,872
Non-controlling interest 43,173 (42,508)
Income taxes (k) 11,493 22,394

Net income (loss) based on United States GAAP $ (57,150) $ 349,878

Basic earnings (loss) per share based on United States GAAP $ (0.25) $ 1.64
Diluted earnings (loss) per share based on United States GAAP (0.25) 1.23

The cumulative effect of these adjustments on the consolidated shareholders’ equity of the Company is as follows:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Shareholders’ equity based on Canadian GAAP $ 1,767,380 $ 1,404,035
Gain on sale and issuance of subsidiary shares to non-controlling interest (a) 46,245 46,245
Gain on sale of cable systems (b) 124,965 128,993
Pre-operating costs (c) (8,854) (20,004)
Equity instruments (d) (586,410) (584,022)
Capitalized interest (e) 37,986 32,581
Unrealized holding gain on investments (f) 78,596 17,611
Acquisition of Cable Atlantic (g) 34,673 34,673
Financial instruments (h) (59,593) 157,921
Stock-based compensation (i) 661 1,173
Minimum pension liability (j) (7,858) –
Other (17,701) (18,217)
Income taxes (k) (253,567) (253,567)
Non-controlling interest effect of adjustments (58,401) (101,574)

Shareholders’ equity based on United States GAAP $ 1,098,122 $ 845,848

The areas of material difference between Canadian and United States GAAP and their impact on the consolidated finan-
cial statements of the Company are described below:

(a) Gain on sale and issuance of subsidiary shares to non-control l ing interest:  
Under United States GAAP, the carrying value of the Company’s investment in Wireless would be lower than the carrying
value under Canadian GAAP as a result of certain differences between Canadian and United States GAAP, as described
herein. This results in an increase to the gain on sale and dilution under United States GAAP.
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(b) Gain on sale of cable systems: 
Under Canadian GAAP, the cash proceeds on the non-monetary exchange of the cable assets in 2000 were recorded as a
reduction in the carrying value of PP&E. Under United States GAAP, a portion of the cash proceeds received must be rec-
ognized as a gain in the consolidated statements of income on an after-tax basis. The gain amounted to $40.3 million
before income taxes.

Under Canadian GAAP, the after-tax gain arising on the sale of certain of the Company’s cable television systems
in prior years was recorded as a reduction of the carrying value of goodwill acquired in a contemporaneous acquisition of
certain cable television systems. Under United States GAAP, the Company included the gain on sale of the cable television
systems in income, net of related future income taxes. 

As a result of these transactions, amortization expense under United States GAAP was increased in subsequent years.

(c ) Pre-operating costs:  
Under Canadian GAAP, the Company defers the incremental costs relating to the development and pre-operating phases
of new businesses and amortizes these costs on a straight-line basis over periods up to five years. Under United States
GAAP, these costs are expensed as incurred.

(d) Equity instruments:  
Under Canadian GAAP, the Convertible Preferred Securities are classified as shareholders’ equity and the related interest
expense is recorded as a distribution from retained earnings. Under United States GAAP, these securities are classified as
long-term debt and the related interest expense is recorded in the consolidated statements of income.

Under Canadian GAAP, the Preferred Securities were classified as shareholders’ equity and until September 2002, the
related interest expense was recorded as a distribution from retained earnings. Under U.S. GAAP, the Preferred Securities
were classified as long-term debt and the related interest expense was recorded in the consolidated statements of income.

Under Canadian GAAP, the proceeds from the Collateralized Equity Securities were classified as shareholders’ equity.
Under United States GAAP, these securities were recorded as long-term debt and recorded at their fair value at December 31,
2001. Adjustments to the fair value at each reporting date are recorded in the consolidated statements of income.

(e) Interest capital ization: 
United States GAAP requires capitalization of interest costs as part of the historical cost of acquiring certain qualifying
assets that require a period of time to prepare for their intended use. This is not required under Canadian GAAP.

(f ) Unreal ized holding gains and losses on investments:  
United States GAAP requires that certain investments in equity securities that have readily determinable fair values be
stated in the consolidated balance sheets at their fair values. The unrealized holding gains and losses from these invest-
ments, which are considered to be “available-for-sale securities” under United States GAAP, are included as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, net of related future income taxes.

As at December 31, 2003 and 2002, this amount represents the Company’s accumulated other comprehensive income.

(g) Acquisit ion of Cable Atlantic :  
United States GAAP requires that shares issued in connection with a purchase business combination be valued based on
the market price at the announcement date of the acquisition, whereas Canadian GAAP had required such shares be val-
ued based on the market price at the consummation date of the acquisition. Accordingly, the Class B Non-Voting shares
issued in respect of the acquisition of Cable Atlantic in 2001 were recorded at $35.4 million more under United States
GAAP than under Canadian GAAP. This resulted in an increase to goodwill in this amount, with a corresponding increase
to contributed surplus in the amount of $35.4 million.

(h) Financial  instruments:  
Under Canadian GAAP, the Company accounts for its cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements and interest
exchange agreements as hedges of specific debt instruments. Under United States GAAP, these instruments are not
accounted for as hedges as a result of adopting the new pronouncement entitled “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities (“SFAS 133”), effective January 1, 2001. As a result, the Company has recorded the net excess of the
fair values of the cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements and interest rate exchange agreements over the car-
rying values of these instruments as at December 31, 2000, being $18.4 million, as a cumulative transition adjustment to
net income under United States GAAP. The Company has also recorded a cumulative transition adjustment to write off
the net balance of the deferred foreign exchange as at December 31, 2000, being $20.7 million, that arose upon redesig-
nation of certain of the Company’s cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements. Further, the Company has recorded
$29.7 million as a cumulative transition adjustment to net income, which represents the excess of the fair value of the
long-term debt to which the derivative instruments relate (the “hedged debt”) over its carrying value. Therefore, the net
cumulative transition adjustment under SFAS 133 to the loss for the year ended December 31, 2001 under United States
GAAP was a charge to the net loss of $32.1 million. The adjustment to long-term debt is being amortized to net income
under United States GAAP over the remaining effective life of the related long-term debt. 

Therefore, for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, under United States GAAP, the Company has recorded
the change in the fair values of the cross-currency interest rate exchange agreements since January 1, 2001 and the amor-
tization of the adjustment to its long-term debt, as discussed above.
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( i ) Stock-based compensation: 
Under United States GAAP, options issued to non-employees must be measured at the fair value at grant dates and
recorded as deferred compensation expense and shareholders’ equity. The fair value must be remeasured at each report-
ing date until vesting is complete, with corresponding adjustments to the deferred compensation expense. The deferred
compensation is recognized as compensation expense over the vesting period of the options. As a result of the Blue Jays
not being consolidated with the results of the Company, options which were granted to employees of the Blue Jays in
2001 are treated as if they were granted to non-employees.

The Company measures compensation expense relating to employee stock option plans for United States GAAP
purposes using the intrinsic value method specified by APB Opinion No. 25, which in the Company’s circumstances would
not be materially different from compensation expense as determined under Canadian GAAP.

( j ) Minimum pension l iabi l ity:  
Under United States GAAP, the Company is required to record an additional minimum pension liability for one of its plans
to reflect the excess of the accumulated benefit obligation over the fair value of the plan assets. Other comprehensive
income has been charged with $5.0 million, net of income taxes of $2.9 million. No such adjustments are required under
Canadian GAAP.

(k) Income taxes:  
Included in the caption “Income taxes” is the tax effect of various adjustments where appropriate and the impact of sub-
stantively enacted rate changes that would not have been recorded under United States GAAP until enacted. Under
Canadian GAAP, future income tax assets and liabilities are remeasured for substantively enacted rate changes, whereas
under United States GAAP, future income tax assets and liabilities are only remeasured for enacted tax rates.

( l ) Capital  stock:  
United States GAAP requires the disclosure of the liquidation preference of capital stock. All series of Preferred shares of
the Company share equally in the distribution of assets upon liquidation, in priority to the Class A Voting and Class B
Non-Voting shares.

(m) Operating income before depreciation and amortization: 
United States GAAP requires that depreciation and amortization and other expense (recovery) be included in the determi-
nation of operating income and does not permit the disclosure of a subtotal of the amount of operating income before
these items. Canadian GAAP permits the disclosure of a subtotal of the amount of operating income before these items.

(n) Statements of cash f lows: 
(i) Canadian GAAP permits the disclosure of a subtotal of the amount of funds provided by operations before change
in non-cash operating items in the consolidated statements of cash flows. United States GAAP does not permit this sub-
total to be included.

(ii) Canadian GAAP permits bank advances to be included in the determination of cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statements of cash flows. United States GAAP requires that bank advances be reported as financing cash
flows. As a result, under United States GAAP, the total decrease in cash and cash equivalents in 2003 in the amount of
$37.2 million reflected in the consolidated statements of cash flows would be decreased by $10.3 million and financing
activities cash flows would be increased by $10.3 million.

(o) Statement of comprehensive income: 
United States GAAP requires the disclosure of a statement of comprehensive income. Comprehensive income generally
encompasses all changes in shareholders’ equity, except those arising from transactions with shareholders.

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Net income (loss) based on United States GAAP $ (57,150) $ 349,878
Other comprehensive income, net of income taxes:

Unrealized holding gains arising during the year, net of income taxes 67,727 17,611
Realized gains included in income (17,902) (747,231)
Realized losses included in income – 238,921
Minimum pension liability, net of income taxes (4,982) –

Comprehensive loss based on United States GAAP $ (12,307) $ (140,821)

(p) Other disclosures:  
United States GAAP requires the Company to disclose accrued liabilities, which is not required under Canadian GAAP.
Accrued liabilities included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities as at December 31, 2003 were $1,072.7 million
(2002 – $850.2 million). At December 31, 2003 and 2002, accrued liabilities in respect of PP&E totalled $90.3 million (2002 –
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$189.9 million), accrued interest payable totalled $83.2 million (2002 – $115.2 million), accrued liabilities related to payroll
totalled $123.8 million (2002 – $53.8 million), and CRTC commitments totalled $71.9 million (2002 – $74.0 million).

(q) Stock-based compensation disclosures:  
For options granted to employees, had the Company determined compensation costs based on the fair values at grant dates
of the stock options granted by RCI and Wireless consistent with the method prescribed under SFAS 123, the Company’s net
income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share would have been reported as the pro forma amounts indicated below:

2 0 0 3 2 0 0 2

Net income (loss) in accordance with United States GAAP, as reported $ (57,150) $ 349,878
Stock-based compensation expense – RCI (28,123) (31,125)
Stock-based compensation expense – Wireless (6,790) (8,289)

Pro forma net income (loss) $ (92,063) $ 310,464

Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.25) $ 1.64
Effect of stock-based compensation (0.16) (0.19)

Pro forma basic earnings (loss) per share $ (0.41) $ 1.45

Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (0.25) $ 1.23
Pro forma diluted earnings (loss) per share (0.41) 1.10

See note 11 for further details of stock-based compensation. 

(r ) Recent United States accounting pronouncements:  
In 2003, the FASB issued and amended Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46”).
Its consolidation provisions are applicable for all newly created variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003,
and are applicable to existing VIEs as of the beginning of the Company’s year beginning January 1, 2004. With respect to
entities that do not qualify to be assessed for consolidation based on voting interests, FIN 46 generally requires a com-
pany that has a variable interest that will absorb a majority of VIEs expected losses if they occur, receive a majority of the
entity’s expected residual returns if they occur, or both to consolidate that VIE. The Company expects this to result in its
consolidating Blue Jays Holdco (note 6(a)), which will affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, and revenues and
expenses. However, as the Company is presently recording 100% of the losses of Blue Jays Holdco, the adoption of this
standard will have no impact on net income or earnings per share.

In 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a consensus regarding EITF Issue 00-21, “Accounting for
Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables”. The consensus addresses not only when and how an arrangement
involving multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of accounting but also how the arrangement’s con-
sideration should be allocated among separate units. The pronouncement is effective for the Company commencing with
its 2004 fiscal year. The Company is currently determining the impact of prospectively adopting EITF 00-21.

In 2003, the FASB issued SFAS 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilities and Equity”. This statement requires that under specified circumstances, these instruments be reclassified from
equity to liabilities on the balance sheet. This statement is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified
after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective for the Company’s year beginning January 1, 2004. The Company did not
enter into any financial instruments within the scope of this statement after May 31, 2003, and is presently assessing the
impact of this statement on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

23.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

(a) In January 2004, Cable submitted a notice of redemption to redeem $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of
its 9.65% Senior Secured Second Priority Debentures, due 2014 at a redemption price of 104.825% of the aggregate princi-
pal amount on February 23, 2004.

(b) In January 2004, Cable announced a multi-year agreement with Yahoo! Inc. (“Yahoo”) to provide co-branded
Internet services to current and future customers of Cable’s high speed residential Internet access services. In return for
payment by the Company of a monthly fee, Yahoo will assume operation of Cable’s e-mail service and provide a suite of
customized Yahoo content, products and services to Cable’s broadband Internet access customers. These content, prod-
ucts and services include the following: a customizable browsing environment; personalized homepage; enhanced e-mail
services such as spam control, parental controls, premium pop-up blocking and storage; enhanced instant messaging
capabilities; and multi-media services. Depending on the level of Internet access service, subscribers will receive some or
all of these features as part of a monthly subscription payment. The agreement also contemplates that Cable and Yahoo
may collaborate to offer premium products and services to Cable’s subscribers for an additional fee.
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION
This annual report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation and Reform Act of 1995 regarding the future
performance of the Company that involve risks and uncertainties. All forward-looking information is inherently uncertain and actual results may differ
materially from the assumptions, estimates or expectations reflected or contained in the forward-looking information. For a discussion of factors that
may affect actual results, see the “Risks and Uncertainties” and “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information” sections of the 
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IN MEMORY
This year’s annual report is dedicated to the memory of Albert Gnat, a long time director, legal advisor and friend of the
Rogers companies, who we lost to cancer in April 2004.
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